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CHINA SECURITIES REGULATORY COMMISSION

SHANGHAI STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company prepared its 2020 Interim Report in accordance with relevant regulations and guidelines
set forth by the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, including
the Standards for the Contents and Formats of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering
Securities to the Public No. 3 — Contents and Formats of Semi-Annual Reports, the Shanghai Stock
Exchange Listing Rules and other relevant regulations and guidelines. This is a free translation into
English of a report issued in China and is provided solely for the convenience of English-speaking
readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and is construed in accordance with, China
law and professional auditing standards applicable in China. Should there be any inconsistency
between the Chinese version and the English version, the Chinese version shall prevail. Investors
can access the Company’'s 2020 Interim Report on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn).




IMPORTANT NOTES
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

VL.

Vil

VIl

IMPORTANT NOTES

The Company’s Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors and Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
guarantee that information contained in the Interim Report is true, accurate and complete and does not contain
any false representations, misleading statements or material omissions, and severally and jointly accept legal
responsibility thereof.

This Interim Report was passed at the 43rd meeting of the second session of the Board of the Company, at which
all the Directors of the Company had attended.

This Interim Report is unaudited. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) has reviewed the 2020
interim financial report of the Company and issued a review report.

Zhou Naixiang, Head of the Company (Chairman); Wang Yunlin, Head of Accounting (Chief Financial Officer); and
Tian Wei, Head of the Accounting Office (Chief Accounting Officer) guarantee that the financial report set out in this
Interim Report is true, accurate and complete.

Profit distribution plan or the conversion plan of reserves to share capital for the Reporting Period considered by
the Board of Directors

N/A
Risk statement with respect to forward-looking statements
\ Applicable [JN/A

This Interim Report contains certain forward-looking statements made on subjective assumptions and judgments on future
policies and economic trends, which may differ from the actual results or trends due to a range of variables.

The forward-looking statements regarding future plans, development strategies, etc. contained in this Interim Report do not
constitute a material commitment by the Company to investors, and investors are advised to exercise attention.

Whether there is any non-operating misappropriation of funds of the Company by the controlling shareholder and
its related parties

No

Whether the Company has provided any guarantee in favor of external parties in violation of the prescribed
decision-making procedures

No
Warning on major risks
During the Reporting Period, the Company is not exposed to major risks.

The Company has described possible related risks in detail in this Interim Report. Please refer to the relevant information
set out in “Potential risks” under Section IV “DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS OPERATION” hereof.

Miscellaneous
\ Applicable [JN/A

In addition to the reviewed financial data, the business data used in this Interim Report comes from the management of the
Company.
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SECTION |1 DEFINITIONS

In this Interim Report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following words shall have the following meanings:

Definitions of common words

China Construction First Group Corporation Limited to China Construction Eighth

China Construction First Group Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. (FERRN—F (£H) BRASEZEFERRNE/\ T

Corporation to Eighth Engineering Division

O 1 N
Xinjiang Construction & Engineering CSC/E\C_XmJlang Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (FEHEET (5£H)
e BB e
COHL China Overseas Holdings Limited (FE/E/NEFIERAE])

China State Construction Engineering Corporation International Operations (FR[EZ
REFFLIEARR)

The real estate development brand and business owned by China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd. (FEEINEEBIEAE]) (00688.HK), a subsidiary of COHL

The real estate brand and business other than “China Overseas” that CSCEC is

CSC Land .
engaged in
China Construction Engineering China Construction Engineering Design Group Corporation Limited (FEAZEILITE
Design Group HERAT)
China Overseas Land & Investment China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (FEEINEBERAE) (00688.HK)
. . ' . g B S e
CSC International China State Construction International Holdings Limited (FEZHNEPREFERAE])
(03311.HK)
i imi /SN FRR NE. .
China Overseas Grand Oceans CH)E)na Overseas Grand Oceans Group Limited (FREEIN=FEFIBEAT]) (00081

China State Construction Development Holdings Limited (PEERHFMIEFFRA
BJ) (00830.HK)

China Overseas Property China Overseas Property Holdings Limited (/840 &£F B [RAE]) (02669.HK)
West Construction China West Construction Group Co., Ltd. (F 2RI ERAE]) (002302.52)
CSC Finance China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. (FE2IFSHEEAT)

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. (&7
BRRAREEFRERAF)

China Construction Science and Industry Corporation Ltd. (formerly known as China
Construction Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (FE2NEIBRAT))

China Construction Communications Engineering Group Co., Ltd. (E23@E 2185

FBRAT)
China Construction Science & Technology ~ China Construction Science & Technology Co., Lid. (FERIEERAT)
China Construction Harbourand ~ China Construction Harbour and Channel Engineering Bureau Group Co., Ltd. (&
Channel Engineering Bureau BIRERERAT)
Articles of Association ~ Articles of Association of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited



SECTION Il COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020

SECTION Il COMPANY PROFILE AND KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Information of the Company

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road,

Address Chaoyang District, Beijing

T
O
Lo e

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Postal code of the office address 100029
Website WWW.CSCEC.COM
Email ir@cscec.com

Index for details of changes during
the Reporting Period

Name of newspaper designated by the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities News, Securities Times and
Company for information disclosure Securities Daily
Website designated by CSRC for
AN WWW.SSe.Com.cn
publishing interim report
Place for inspection of interim report CSCEC Board Office

CSC Fortune International Center, Building 3, Courtyard 5, Anding Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Index for details of changes during the

Reporting Period /
Overview of Stocks
Type Stock exchange Abbreviation Stock code Original ticker

A share Shanghai Stock Exchange CSCEC 601668 N/A
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Other Relevant Information

\ Applicable [JN/A

Name Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership)
Accounting firm engaged Office address Level 16, Ernst & Young Tower, Oriental Plaza, No. 1 East
by the Company (domestic) Chang An Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
Name of signatory Zhou Ying, Yang Shujuan, Shen Yan

Key Accounting Data and Financial Indicators of the Company

h Key accounting data

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Reporting Period Same period Change
Key accounting data (January to June) of last year YoY (%)
Revenue 728,187,767 685,419,315 6.2
Profit before income tax 43,774,877 41,954,380 4.3
Net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company 19,839,785 20,308,445 -2.3
Net profit attributable to ghareholders of the ' 18,583,408 19,141,626 29

Company after deducting non-recurring profit or loss
Net cash flows from operating activities -70,645,206 -82,896,698 /

As at the
end of the At the Change
Reporting Period end of 2019 (%)
Net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company 277,772,957 277,197,681 0.2
2,175,448,096 6.9
(I Key financial indicators
Reporting Period Same period Change
Key financial indicators (January to June) of last year YoY (%)
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.47 0.45 4.44
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.46 0.45 2.22
Basic EPS (BMB/share) after deducting 043 0.42 238
non-recurring profit or loss
Weighted average return on net assets (%) 6.98 7.5 _O.'54
percentage points
Weighted average return on net assets -0.58
. . : 6.53 7.06 .

after deducting non-recurring profit or loss (%) percentage points
Net assets per share attributable 6.38 554 15.16

to ordinary shareholders (RMB/share)

Explanation on the key accounting data and financial indicators of the Company
\ Applicable [JN/A

@® When calculating earnings per share, the restricted shares that have not yet met the unlocking conditions and
become invalid are deducted from the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued by the Company.

@ According to relevant accounting requirements, when calculating earnings per share, the dividends or interests of
other equity instruments such as preference shares and perpetual bonds and restricted shares shall be excluded
from the net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company.
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® The net assets per share attributable to ordinary shareholders are the net assets attributable to shareholders of the
parent company deducting other equity instruments, and then divided the balance by the total number of issued
shares as at the end of the Reporting Period.

For details, please refer to Note X| “Share-based payment”, Note V (63) “Earnings per share” to the financial statements
under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof, and SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PROVIDED BY MANAGEMENT 2
“Return on net assets and earnings per share” and other relevant information.

VIIl. Differences between Accounting Data under Domestic and Foreign Accounting Standards
[1Applicable  N/A

U)) Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the
financial report disclosed in accordance with the International Accounting Standards and
Chinese Accounting Standards

[1Applicable + N/A
(Iy  Differences of net profit and net assets attributable to shareholders of the Company in the

financial report disclosed in accordance with both foreign accounting standards and Chinese
accounting standards

[ Applicable + N/A
(1 Explanation on differences between domestic and foreign accounting standards
[]Applicable v N/A
IX. Statement of Non-Recurring Profit or Loss

\ Applicable [JN/A

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Non-recurring items Amount Note (if applicable)
Gains/(losses) from disposal of non-current assets 12,763 /
Government grants recognised through profit or loss (other than government
grants which are closely related to the Company’s normal business Included in
operations, which comply with national policies and can be enjoyed non-operating
continuously based on a fixed amount or a fixed quantity) 55,236 income

In addition to the normal operation of the Company’s effective hedging
business, income/losses arising from changes in fair value and from

disposal/redemption of the financial assets held for trading, derivative /

financial assets, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative financial

liabilities and other debt investments 303,772
Reversal of the provision on receivables and contract assets

: ) o : 849,843 /

for impairment on an individual basis
Investment income from disposal of subsidiaries 18,104 /
Losses from non-operating activities or occasional matters 67,456 /
Other non-operating income and expenses than the above items 432,594 /
Impact on income tax -368,160 /
Impact on non-controlling interests (after tax) -115,231 /
Total 1,256,377 /

X. Miscellaneous

[]Applicable / N/A



SECTION Il OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

SECTION Il OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

l. Explanation on the Company’s Principal Business, Business Model and Industry Information
during the Reporting Period

()] Principal business and business model

As an investment and development conglomerate bestowed with the longest history of specialized and market-oriented
operation and the most developed level of integration in the PRC, CSCEC is a market leader in building construction engineering,
infrastructure construction and investment, real estate development and investment, prospecting and design etc. CSCEC is
the largest engineering contractor in the world, ranking 18th in Fortune Global 500. The Company ranked among top 3 on the
list of Fortune China 500 for eight consecutive years, topped the list of Top 250 Global Contractors published by Engineering
News-Record (ENR) for five consecutive years, and ranked among the top 10 in the list of “Top 250 International Contractors” for
three consecutive years. CSCEC has been rated as Grade A by the SASAC of the State Council for 15 times in a row. The leading
global rating agencies i.e. S&P Global Ratings, Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings affirmed CSCEC’s ratings as A/A2/A
(respectively) with “Stable” outlook, the highest credit ratings among the global industry peers.

CSCEC stands as one of the most competitive investment companies in China, specializing in real estate, infrastructure and
integrated urban construction. Featuring a “four in one” business model integrating planning and design, investment and
development, infrastructure construction and building construction engineering, it provides a turnkey solution covering all aspects,
processes, elements for urban development projects, with a priority given to the synergy between internal resource integration and
business development.

Tapped into more than 100 countries and regions, CSCEC, as the largest engineering contractor in the world, specializes in a
broad range of business covering all aspects related to urban development and each stage throughout construction projects.
The Company is well equipped with the capabilities of comprehensive design, construction and land development, and is
well positioned to compete relying on its complete industry chain of construction products ranging from R&D on technology of
products, prospecting and design, real estate development, construction contracting and equipment manufacturing to property
management. Among ultra-high-rise buildings above 300 meters tall in China, those technically sophisticated and structurally
complicated are mostly built by CSCEC.

Among the 10 model enterprises selected by SASAC for the “World-class Enterprises Campaign”, CSCEC is the only one engaged
in a “perfectly competitive market”. Its affiliate, the Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction First Group Corporation
Limited, is officially included in SASAC’s “Two-hundred Campaign”; and China State Decoration is accredited as a pilot company
for the fourth mixed-ownership reform of the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC). In 2020, CSCEC made
continuous efforts to transform itself into a world-class company, and continued to deepen reform as a state-owned enterprise
(SOE). Guided by the “Three Leading Positions”, “Three Pre-eminences” and “Three Models” standards set by SASAC, as well as
the “Decision to Accelerate the Establishment of World-class Enterprises” and the “Implementation Plan of the World-class Model
Enterprises Campaign”, the Company further strengthened the scientific connotation of the strategic objectives of “one creation
and five aspects of strength!” and clarified the great significance of proposing the strategic goal of “one creation and five aspects
of strength”. Furthermore, the Company comprehensively benchmarked world-class leaders in the industry, and focused on
enhancing technological innovation, improving governance efficiency, deepening the reform as a SOE, integrating into national
strategies, enhancing international operations, and accelerating digital transformation, promoting green development, cultivating
and expanding new business, and enhancing the guidance of party building. In 2020, the Company has started the preparation of
the “14th Five-Year Plan” in an all-round way, which will follow the guidance to “implement the new development concepts and
adhere to high-quality development” in order to promote the adjustment of corporate structure, transformation and upgrading.
Regarding “one creation and five aspects of strength” as the strategic goal of the “14th Five-Year Plan” to unify thinking and take
lead in the future, CSCEC has accelerated “Two-hundred Campaign” reform and “mixed-ownership pilot campaign”, pushed
forward mixed-ownership reform, optimized its governance structure, and improved relevant incentive and restraint mechanisms,
in line with its commitment to establishing CSCEC as a leading global conglomerate with strong value creativity, international
competitiveness, industry leadership, brand influence and cultural soft power.

! “One creation” refers to the goal of establishing CSCEC as a world-class company with strong global competitiveness. “Five aspects of
strength” refer to strong capability in value creativity, international competitiveness, industry leadership, brand influence and cultural soft

power.
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Positioned as a competitive player in the entire construction industry chain, we are
committed to providing domestic and foreign clients with one-stop services from
design, construction to implementation of major high, large, professional, cutting-edge,
complicated and special construction projects. To this end, we implemented a series of
measures, including tapping our potential, strictly controlling over construction quality
and costs, and improving client satisfaction. Meanwhile, we adhered to a marketing
strategy oriented toward “high-end markets, high-end clients, and high-end projects” and
an operation strategy prioritizing “low cost competition, and high-quality management”.
We have constructed a large number of extremely challenging landmark projects ranging
from skyscrapers, large public buildings, clean plants, hotels, hospitals to schools in the
civilian and industrial construction sector, representing the highest standard of building
construction in China, which established CSCEC as a leader in the Chinese and global
housing construction markets. As a trendsetter in the industry, the Company seeks
to enhance the standards of ecological civilization and green development, reduce
energy consumption, and create an excellent living environment for the public through
industrialized, eco-friendly and intelligent construction, reinforcing people’s sense of
gain, spiritual well-being and security.

Building
construction
engineering

Placing equal emphasis on construction and investment operations, we completed
many high-profile domestic and international infrastructure projects ranging from urban
rail transits, high-speed railways, extra-large bridges, expressways, municipal roads,
urban utility tunnels, ports and waterways, electricity, mining, metallurgy, petrochemical,
airports to nuclear power plants, leveraging our advantages in technology, talent
and management. In addition, the Company rapidly grows to be the best Chinese
infrastructure financier and investor in reliance upon solid financial strengths. Recognized
as one of the most trusted investors for BT (Build-Transfer), BOT (Build-Operate-Transfer)
and PPP (Public-Private Partnership) projects, we invested in and constructed numerous
key national and regional projects, with long-term strategic partnerships in respect of
infrastructure investment and construction established with a number of provincial,
autonomous region, and direct controlled municipal governments and dozens of major
cities. Furthermore, infrastructure facilities built by the Company can also be found in
dozens of countries and regions worldwide, including North America, Central America,
Hong Kong SAR, Macao SAR, Southeast Asia, North Africa, Central and West Africa,
South Africa, Middle East, and Central Asia. As an important driver for economic growth
and effective implementation of national strategies, the infrastructure industry bolsters
areas of weakness at the grassroots level to foster the public’s well-being, and serves as
the main vehicle for driving development along the “Belt and Road” and for strengthening
interconnection between China and countries covered by the Belt and Road Initiative
(BRI). As a strong supporter of national strategies caring for the needs of people’s
livelihood, CSCEC will continue to broaden its infrastructure business with the aim of
improving people’s livelihood, bolstering areas of weakness to promote the public’s
well-being, and setting the development direction for emerging industries.

Infrastructure
construction
and investment
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Real estate
development
and investment

Prospecting
and design

China Overseas and CSC Land are the two real estate brands owned by CSCEC. China
Overseas encompasses all real estate business of COHL, and has always ranked
among the most valuable property brands in China, with strong business presence in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (GBA), the Yangtze River Delta,
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and dozens of economically dynamic cities across
the country. It boasts a well-established and balanced nationwide strategic business
network. CSC Land is the brand used in the property business of the Company’s
branches. CSCEC has stepped up synergy between internal resources integration and
business development to actively promote the vertical integration of a wide variety of
operations ranging from investment, property development, design and construction to
property operation and services. With excellent construction technology, advanced real
estate development concepts and first-class property service quality, it has established
a sophisticated investment operation and risk management system in the real estate
field, which has formed a unique industrial chain competitive advantage. In addition, the
Company has actively innovated products and business models, made a series of major
breakthroughs focusing on the public’s housing needs, and has been closely involved in
the “New Urbanization” campaign to expand a happy living environment and build a more
beautiful China.

The prospecting and design business arm of CSCEC mainly consists of seven top-rated
major prospecting and design service providers and affiliated design entities, with
business covering architectural design, urban planning, engineering survey, public utility
design, etc. The Company has established itself as a market leader in the construction
of ultra-high-rise buildings, airports, hotels, sports facilities and exhibition venues and
ancient architects. We currently have over 20,000 high-end technical professionals
specializing in construction engineering and design, public utility engineering,
engineering survey and geotechnical engineering, outranking all other market players.
The Company has made outstanding contributions to development of the sector in terms
of design originality, technology innovation and industry standards development.

Overseas
operations

(¥

CSCEC is one of the earliest companies that conducted international engineering
contracting business in China, and has always upheld the operating philosophy of
“going global”. After continuous overseas market development and operation over the
decades, the Company has established strong business presence in global markets, with
foreign engineering contracting business covering housing construction, manufacturing,
energy, transportation, water conservancy, industry, petrochemical, hazardous substance
treatment, telecommunications and sewage/waste treatment projects, while exploring
and successfully completing overseas real estate projects. In terms of project operation,
apart from the traditional general contracting model, the Company actively explored other
project operating models, such as financing and investment channels to give an impetus
to such project business models as general contracting, DB (Design-Build), EPC (Engine
ering-Procurement-Construct), BOT and PPP. Meanwhile, the Company has accelerated
capital operations such as mergers and acquisitions to drive a quantum leap in core
business overseas. Adhering to the guiding principle of “prioritizing overseas markets”,
the Company has strengthened localized business management focusing on integration
of resources, and has developed overseas business development strategies from a loftier
vantage point and with a strong sense of responsibility to promote business globalization,
in line with the objectives of the BRI.
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(1)  Overview of the industry

In 2020, the growth of China’s construction sector decelerated
amid an increase in market concentration, and overseas
construction project contracting markets started to recover at a
moderate pace. Sticking to the proactive fiscal policy, the state
government has expanded effective investments, increased
investment in strategic emerging industries, stepped up the
transformation and upgrading of the construction industry,
and promoted information technology (IT) applications in the
construction industry on a comprehensive scale, with a shift of
the focus to innovation and application of technologies toward the
BIM, mobile internet, Internet of Things (loT) applications, artificial
intelligence (Al), big data, and cloud computing. Driven by IT
applications, efforts have been made to push forward the “internet
+” initiatives, and branch out into innovative construction business
and emerging fields. Adhering to the “green development”
strategy, the government has worked out a scientific and
sound urbanization plan focusing on improving the ecological
environment, developed eco-friendly planning, design and
construction standards, and is fully committed to building smart
cities to promote harmony between people and nature, leveraging
digitalized construction, IT and other new technologies.

h!

A total demand for
residential properties of

80.....90....

square meters

The property construction market has great potential for
growth. According to the national urbanization plan, China’s
urban population will grow to nearly one billion by 2030, implying
a total demand for residential properties of eighty billion to ninety
billion square meters (including housing properties and public
buildings). A considerable gap between supply and demand
indicates the promising prospect of the property construction
market. Specifically, the government has pushed forward new
urbanization initiatives such as affordable housing and shanty
town housing projects, and medical and healthcare, cultural
and entertainment, sports and fitness facilities, opening up new
opportunities for construction companies. The government
has also promoted prefabricated building development and
increased the proportion of prefabricated buildings, which
is expected to inject tremendous growth momentum into the
construction market. As the BRI deepened and gained traction
on the international stage, a growing number of countries have
joined the global development initiative, leading to continuous
growth of our prospective overseas markets. In general, the
property construction business will see solid development going
forward. CSCEC has a proven track record of effective branding,
management and technology development in the upscale
property construction market, and is well equipped to maintain its
leading position in the field. Meanwhile, benchmarked against the
leading international standards, CSCEC has actively implemented
“prefabrication + internet + loT” technological innovation and
construction practices, aiming to develop eco-friendly investment,
industry and technology platforms that promote Smart Buildings
and construction industrialization (prefabricated and modular
buildings) within the CSCEC system.

Momentum of infrastructure investment will recover. In
2020, the central government has made important deployment
for the construction of urban agglomerations and central cities.

In terms of improving the carrying capacity of the central cities,
the priorities were to bolster areas of weakness of people’s
livelihood projects, construct public service projects, build human
settlements, and develop new districts and large industrial towns
in first- and second-tier cities. In terms of connection network
improvement within urban agglomerations, the priorities were to
build the intercity rail transit network in the Yangtze River Delta,
the GBA, Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region and other regions, and to
bolster areas of weakness such as railways, motorways, water
transportation, airports, water conservancy, energy, agricultural
and rural development, ecological and environmental protection,
and construction of urban parking facilities and cold chain
logistics facilities in urban and rural areas. Specifically, rail
transport, underground space, eco-environment protection and
telecommunication facility are expected to be the fastest growing
segments, and the total volume of road and railway projects will
remain at a high level. Along with the commercialization of the
5G technology in the future, the focus of infrastructure investment
will shift toward the new-generation infrastructure such as Al, the
Industrial Internet and loT.

Steady and healthy development of the real estate market. In
2020, adhering to the regulatory policy that “houses are for living

MOHURD has launched
pilot projects in

[

in, not speculation”, the central government stepped up efforts to
establish a multi-supplier and multi-channel housing system that
places equal emphasis on rental housing and properties for sale.
The goal is to meet the housing needs of all Chinese residents,
while shifting the public’s perception of housing properties toward
their intrinsic function — houses are for people to live in. The
regulatory policies show no signs of relaxation in the short term,
the incremental market tends to stabilize, and the real estate
industry will gradually shift from an incremental model to a stock
model. Urban renewal is an inevitable product of the stock era,
which contains huge space and opportunities. Besides, China’s
urban renewal focuses more on refinement and micro-renewal,
and the transformation of old communities has become a hot
spot. The Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
(MOHURD) estimates that the overall investment of transformation
of old communities exceeds RMB1 trillion. At present, local
authorities have successively issued three-year action plans
for the transformation of old communities, and the MOHURD
has launched pilot projects in 15 cities including Xiamen and
Guangzhou. The most prominent feature of the transformation
is “renovation”, which promotes the development of the market
for decoration and public supporting facilities construction. The
central government will ensure steady economic growth in the
second half of 2020 by continuously ramping up countercyclical
market regulation, and the real estate industry will achieve sound
and healthy development guided by the market regulation policy
of stabilizing land prices, housing prices and expectations. The
COVID-19 outbreak has temporarily suppressed the demand
for housing properties, but market demand will not disappear.
City-specific real estate market policies will become more targeted
and flexible, thus bringing opportunities in regional markets as well
as “structural opportunities” across the “housing market system”
and the “housing security system”.

B
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Il. Explanation on Significant Changes in the Company’s Major Assets during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [JN/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no significant changes in the Company’s major assets.

Among them: overseas assets amount to RMB212.0 billion, accounting for 9.7% of the total assets.

The above data of overseas assets has not been reviewed.
lll. Analysis of the Core Competitiveness during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [JN/A

During the Reporting Period, there were no significant changes in the core competitiveness of the Company. The core competitiveness
is defined as follows:

Market-oriented operating mechanism

As a main body of the market economy, CSCEC will always adhere to the market-oriented operating mechanism, to respect,
abide by, adapt to and use market rules, and gradually enhance its ability to operate in compliance with market rules. Faced
with the cut-throat market competition, CSCEC will take innovative approaches to tap into and continuously meet the real
and potential needs of customers, and continuously retain and attract customers with high-quality products and value-added
services. The Company will always adhere to the concept focused on performance, and pursue excellence in performance
by clearly defining objectives, scientifically designing processes and strengthening efficient operations, as well as pursuing
the growth at scale supported by profitability. With the efficient utilization and operation of resources, the Company will
improve efficiency in turnover of assets, achieve return on assets higher than that of average level of the industry while
vigorously promoting economies of scale, and continue to gain higher market share through steady growth. We always pay
close attention to cash flow and take all measures to ensure net operating cash inflow to pursue the sustainable and healthy
development of the Company.

Innovation is the eternal focus for enterprises. As uncertainties in the market economy are becoming common, CSCEC will
break the market equilibrium with creativity, actively capture profit opportunities, seek to reorganize production elements,
continuously enhance quality of products and service, and open up new markets, new business and new customer base
to make full use of changes to explore innovation, thereby enhancing the Company’s market competitiveness. As an
economic organization, the Company will always be committed to pursuing economic performance, while believing that an
enterprise that truly stands up to market trends and has an ever-growing foundation must be a model for practicing social
responsibility. CSCEC will uphold the concept of green development, be dedicated to building quality projects for the
society, actively fulfill social responsibilities, and expand a happy living environment.

Direction of globalization

The Company has always been adhering to the international business philosophy, solidly promoting the high-quality
development of overseas business, focusing on the integration of domestic and foreign resources, and is committed to
becoming a multinational company that allocates resources globally and operates efficiently. To meet the needs of the
international market, CSCEC has expanded the scale and accelerated the development through market-based operations,
and achieved win-win development with stakeholders through localized operations. In the face of changes in the global
construction industry, CSCEC has always been guided by market demand, working out “CSCEC Solutions” and contributing
“CSCEC Intelligence” to provide better solutions and create more value for its clients. The concept of globalization has
promoted the Company’s transformation from business “going global” to brand “going global”. While bringing benefits to
itself, the Company has enhanced the level of international management and improved the global talent team, which laid a
solid foundation for participating in global competition and cooperation at a higher and deeper level.

Relevant and diversified and vertically integrated expansion

Producing or offering products or services that can continue to secure, serve and satisfy customers, is an important
guarantee for the long-term development of the Company. In terms of selecting products (or services), the Company has
centered on the diversification based on its existing technological advantages and market advantages. The Company will
continue to maintain its traditional advantages in prospecting and design, building construction and real estate development,
while actively expanding horizontally in other fields such as infrastructure investment and construction business.

CSCEC is committed to the vertically integrated expansion of investment, design, construction, operation and services, and
strives to establish a unique market position in the domain of its business, creating competitive advantages that are difficult
for its competitors to follow suit.




SECTION Il OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS
[ CHiiNA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020

(V)

Competitive strategy featuring high quality, low cost and differentiation

Providing products and services with high quality and at low cost to the public has always been the goal of CSCEC.
High quality comes from the Company’s technological, human resources and organizational advantages; while low
cost stems from the Company’s integrated business model, benefits of scale as well as economies of speed. As an
outstanding SOE representative in a perfectly competitive industry, CSCEC has always taken “making appropriate
and correct decisions and doing right things” as the basic direction of the Company’s production, operation and
career development. Focusing on implementing the marketing strategy of “high-end markets, high-end clients, and
high-end projects”, the Company continues to carry out “differentiation-oriented” market operations and competition.
Through implementing the “differentiation” strategy, different subordinate enterprises within the Company focus on their
respective market segments, either differentiating by professional (specialization), or by regional (regionalization), to
develop their own “core products, unique services” to reduce internal disorderly competition and strengthen the overall
advantage of external competitiveness.

A management and control model with balanced authorization and centralization

Showing respect to the development history of CSCEC, a competitive group management and control model is explored
and formed on the basis of the Group formed by multi-legal carriers. The Company’s headquarters is positioned as
one that exercises strategic management and control, fulfilling the responsibilities and duties of leadership, service and
supervision, and insists on the unification of the second-level subordinate enterprises. The second-level subordinate
enterprises operate under the authorization of the Company and enjoy the corresponding authorities based on the
extent of the responsibility. For labor-intensive and mature business, we increase the authorization and expand market
contact to speed up market response and improve service quality. For capital-intensive and less mature business, we
focus on resources to bring impact to target market segments, and actively seek rapid breakthroughs in target markets
on the basis of effectively avoiding risks. Aiming at different market segments, we adopt different strategies for market
competition and corresponding management and control models.

Results-oriented and accountability-based management system

The management measures exerted by the Company have always been committed to the realization of the Company’s
mission, vision and goals. The fundamental purpose of management is to improve work efficiency, while making
our employees more fulfilling and the Company more prosperous in the future. By way of the organic integration of
the management actions in the various functional areas of the Company, a vital, scientific, reasonable, concise and
efficient system is formed, which is believed to play an effective role in avoiding taking isolated and disorderly actions
and making excuses, and achieving the unification of responsibilities and rights. We firmly believe that managers are
defined by their responsibilities. In order to improve the quality of products and services, the Company is committed to
the standardization of management, technology and works. With the help of information technologies and through the
“two integrations” of standardization and informatization, work efficiency is improved, and “bottom line management” is
implemented to enhance product quality and reduce operating costs.

“People-oriented” human resource management

The Company firmly believes that human resource is one of its core competitiveness. For CSCEC, its competitive
advantage is best reflected in its large number of talents who are dedicated to the Company and their careers, have
faith in that the interests of the team are higher than those of the individuals, have a good knowledge of technology and
management and are good at marketing with merits as self-discipline, self-motivation and self-development.

The Company will always follow the basic human resources management concept of “retaining talents with career
development opportunities, emotional connection and rewards” and “caring for individuals”, and will embed this
concept into the human resources management policies of the Company. Through the full coverage of three aspects,
namely career planning, education and training, as well as performance evaluation, the Company intends to establish
a salary incentive mechanism that combines individual value creation and ability and shares the solid results of the
development of enterprise, while strengthening the attraction and development of talents to better provide strong talent
support to its development.

The Company will always adhere to the employment principle of having both ability and morality while deeming virtue as
a priority. The Company believes that, “every individual has his/her shortcomings and strengths”, and does not pursue
perfect talents, but instead follows the concept of “employing people with strengths”. The Company adheres to the
“performance-based principle”, and “evaluates talents based on performance” through the “horse racing mechanism”.
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(V1) Promote development under the strategy of “integration of industry and finance”

Under the ever-changing external environment and in response to the diversified needs of its principal business, CSCEC
gives full play to the role of industrial finance, tapping the potential of its internal financial service institutions and providing
financial services for the development of its principal business by means of internal credit, credit financing, equity financing
and asset revitalization, thus forming an industry-financing integration mode with the characteristics of CSCEC. Leveraging
internal professional financial platforms such as CSC Finance and China Construction Capital, and in line with the
characteristics of the industry in which the Company engaged, the Company has carried out domestic and overseas capital
pooling, loan pooling, bank credit financing, bond financing, equity financing, structured financing, accounts receivable
factoring, asset securitization, supply chain financing, financial leasing, insurance pooling and other business, thus providing
timely, differentiated financial services which are irreplaceable by social finance and playing an active role in driving the
development of the principal business, broadening financing channels, reducing financing costs, revitalizing stock assets,
increasing operating cash inflow and realizing capital reduction and efficiency gains. At the same time, the Company strictly
implements relevant national policies, strengthens daily management, strictly controls financial risks, and stops its capital
moving from the real economy to the virtual economy and arbitrage of idle funds.

Core competitiveness driven by innovation in science and technology

The Company believes that science and technology are the primary productive force, which is a critical pull for the growth
and expansion of the Company. Despite being a player in a traditional industry, our continuous efforts in scientific and
technological innovations have brought changes in our production and organization models, ensuring our leadership in cost
control and providing support for economies of scale and speed to form solid competitiveness in key aspects. During the
“13th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company took the lead in undertaking 10 national key R&D projects, ranking first among
construction companies, involving green building, intelligent construction, building industrialization, energy conservation and
environmental protection, basic engineering software and other fields.

During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the Company accelerated the construction of an open and collaborative
technological innovation system, further stimulated the innovation drive, intensified efforts to make breakthroughs in key
and core technologies, and created strong industrial technology advantages. In deepening the reform of the science and
technology system, the Company improved the system of scientific research and results management, and incentives for
R&D talents by granting scientific research personnel the authority to make decisions on the technical route, expanding
the authority to adjust the scientific research budget of the undertaking unit, increasing the incentive for R&D talents, and
mobilizing the enthusiasm for innovation. In terms of strengthening technical leadership, through continuous innovation, the
Company has been engaged in diverse business fields such as ultra-high-rise construction equipment and technology,
large-span building construction technology and techniques, intelligent manufacturing of steel structures, high-performance
concrete new materials, new-generation nuclear power plant construction technology, architectural design with new Tang
style and airport architectural design. The Company gained strong scientific and technological strength in these fields,
providing powerful impetus for the development of its housing construction, infrastructure, overseas and new business.

The Company has been increasing its investment in science and technology to reinforce the science and technology system.
The landscape of innovation platform has taken shape, with 86 high-tech enterprises, 5 national-level technology centers
(sub-centers), 59 provincial- and ministerial-level technology centers, and 31 provincial- and ministerial-level innovation
platforms (i.e. 5 provincial- and ministerial-level engineering research centers, 23 engineering technology research centers,
and 3 provincial- and ministerial-level key laboratories and engineering laboratories). In addition, 10 postdoctoral workstations
and 16 other technology innovation platforms have been established. An innovative development mechanism led by
independent innovation and combining industry, education and research has been put in place.

Corporate culture: internalized in mind and externalized in practice

CSCEC is an enterprise with a glorious history. We are innovating in the course of inheritance. In the process of fulfilling the
mission and realizing the vision, the core values of “quality assurance, value creation” and the entrepreneurial spirit of “integrity,
innovation, transcendence, and win-win” have been integrated into the rules and management behaviors as part of the soft
power of the Company.

Resources can be exhausted, only culture lasts. Adhering to its creed formed against the backdrop of the market economy,
the Company has seen a constant integration with its subordinate enterprises in culture development, which provides ongoing
internal support for the Company’s ever-growing business.
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IV. Brand, Creditability and Honors

Based on CSCEC'’s good performance in brand building and operation development, the brand reputation and industry influence
of the Company has been further strengthened. The Company ranked 18th in Fortune Global 500 and 3rd in Fortune China 500,
topped the list of Top 250 Global Contractors published by Engineering News-Record (ENR) for five consecutive years, and ranked
among the top 10 in the list of “Top 250 International Contractors” for three consecutive years. CSCEC brand ranked first in the
industry in the China Brand Value Evaluation organized by the China Council for Brand Development, and ranked 17th in the “2020
China Top 100 Brand Value List”. The Company was presented the 2020 Enterprise of the Year Award by Bosnia-Herzegovina's
mainstream media Evening News in recognition of its great contribution to the progress of the Pan-European 5C corridor
expressway project in the face of the pandemic, becoming the only foreign company among the winners.

CSCEC has maintained the world’s highest credit rating in the industry for six consecutive years (S&P A/Moody’s A2/Fitch A, with
“stable” outlook). The Company became one of the “2020 High-quality and Integrity Enterprise in Foreign Contracting Projects” in
the first selection under the cross-border RMB self-discipline mechanism in Beijing.

The Company has continued to strengthen its management in project safety. In 2020, a total of 62 domestic and foreign projects
constructed by CSCEC won the International Safety Awards 2020 unveiled by British Safety Council, including 3 Distinction
awards, 28 Merit awards and 31 Pass awards.

The Company continued to harvest in the high-level scientific and technological achievements and enhance its leadership in the
industry. During the Reporting Period, the Company was granted 3,233 new patents, including 190 invention patents, and had 262
construction methods recognized at the provincial- and ministerial level. The Company prepared the “Technical Specification for
Advanced Geological Forecast of Highway Engineering Tunnel ((AE& TIZPHEBRTIIRTIRFE AFFEY)", which was included in
the national highway industry standard preparation plan. The 249 scientific and technological achievements accomplished by its
subsidiaries have been evaluated, 88 of which, including the “Research and Practice of Construction Engineering Technology for
Reuse of Abandoned Mine”, have reached the international advanced level and above.
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SECTION IV DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS OPERATION

. Discussion and Analysis of Business Operation

In the first half of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic brought an unprecedented impact on global economic and social
development. Despite increasing downward pressure on China’s economy, the phased achievements of pandemic
prevention and control as well as stable and orderly economic and social development have guaranteed continued
resumption of production and supply, gradual rebound of market demand, strengthened market confidence and
steady recovery of national economy. From January to June 2020, China’s total investment in fixed assets (excluding
rural households) was RMB28.16 trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.1%; the investment in real estate
development was RMB6.28 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.9%; commercial housing sales in terms of
value stood at RMB6.69 trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.4%; commercial housing sales in terms of floor
area totaled 694.04 million square meters, representing a year-on-year decrease of 8.4%; the total output value of the
construction industry was RMB10.08 trillion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.8%.

In the first half of 2020, when confronted with the sudden outbreak of COVID-19, the Company earnestly implemented the
decision-making and deployment of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council as well
as the work requirements of the SASAC of the State Council, worked together to overcome difficulties, and coordinated the
pandemic prevention and control and business development. During the Reporting Period, the Company adhered to the
general principle of improving quality and efficiency, enhancing management, advancing reforms, continuing innovation,
actively turning crises into opportunities and looking for opportunities in crises. Under the pressure in the preliminary stage,
all business showed a good sign of recovery. In general, the Company encountered extremely unusual challenges in the
first half of 2020. All operating results were hard-won.

1. The pandemic prevention and control have achieved remarkable results. When the COVID-19 was raging in early
2020, the Company was entrusted with a mission at a critical stage to build two emergency hospitals for pandemic
prevention and control, being “Huoshenshan Hospital” and “Leishenshan Hospital” under extreme conditions. With
strong supply chains, rapid construction service capabilities, and systematic prefabricated construction technologies,
the Company successfully accomplished this mission. It also organized the compilation and release of relevant standard
documents and key technological achievements, filling the technical gaps in the rapid construction of emergency hospitals
in China. In the first half of 2020, the Company has built a total of 127 emergency engineering projects across Mainland
China, Hong Kong SAR, Macao SAR, Singapore and other places, fully demonstrating the China Speed and China Power.
In addition, we adhered to the principle that our employees’ life safety and physical health come first, and always fulfilled
our responsibilities. No cluster outbreak occurred at any of our institution or project site at home and abroad, and the life
safety and physical health of the Company’s employees were well protected.

2. Active and promising market exploration. The Company continued to do a good job in marketing and project
management, strengthened the connection with high-end regional markets, and the scale of orders increased steadily.
During the Reporting Period, the value of new contracts increased by 5.2% year-on-year to RMB1,510.1 billion.
Specifically, the housing construction business developed steadily, with the value of new contracts reaching RMB1,061.7
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.6%; the value of new contracts for infrastructure business was RMB261.0
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.6%; the value of new contracts for prospecting and design business
was RMB6.8 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.2%; the contract sales of real estate business amounted to
RMB180.7 billion, representing a slight decrease of 1.9% year-on-year.

3. Steady progress in operating performance. During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved continuous growth
in revenue and profit before income tax with continued sound and stable business development. It achieved revenue
of RMB728.2 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 6.2%, and profit before income tax of RMB43.77 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 4.3%. The weighted average return on net assets (WARA) was 6.98%; the
basic earnings per share (EPS) was RMB0.47, representing a year-on-year increase of 4.4%; financial risks were overall
controllable with an eased pressure on cash flows. At the end of the period, the asset-liability ratio was kept at 75.95%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.59 percentage points.

4. Strong national strategic services. During the Reporting Period, the Company actively engaged in the national and
regional coordinated development strategies such as the coordinated development of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region,
the development of the Yangtze River Economic Belt, the construction of the GBA, and the integrated development of
the Yangtze River Delta. By taking advantages of its nationwide development strategy and concentrating on high-quality
resources to make breakthroughs, the Company obtained from the above areas a total of RMB927.5 billion in value of new
contracts, accounting for more than 60% of the total value of new contracts; the Company has actively responded to local
development strategic plans, strengthened exchanges with senior officers of Shanghai, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Chongqging, and
other provinces and cities, promoted cooperation with State Grid, China Post, China Rong Tong, The Export-Import Bank
of China and other corporations and institutions, and realized the coordinated development of enterprises and regional
economies.
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In-depth advancement on the reforms and governance. China Construction Science and Industry and China
Construction Science & Technology became the “Innovative Technology Reform Demonstration Enterprise” of the SASAC
of the State Council, and initiated and implemented reform ideas and measures. As a unit selected by the SASAC of the
State Council for the “Two-hundred Campaign”, the Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China Construction First Group
Corporation Limited has achieved substantial results in market-oriented debt-to-equity swaps, optimization of business
structure and improvement on operating efficiency. As a pilot company for the fourth batch of mixed-ownership reform of
the National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC), China State Decoration optimized and adjusted the overall
planning of the mixed-ownership reform, refined and improved the implementation plan, and further broadened the
introduction channels of strategic investors. New progress has been made in the reform of the personnel system, and the
tenure incentive pilot has been implemented in five secondary units. During the Reporting Period, the Company actively
implemented the concept of rule of law, studied the new Securities Law in details, maintained insurance for directors,
supervisors and senior management, and continued to improve corporate governance, so as to enhance its ability to
prevent and resolve risks, improve the efficiency of corporate governance by law, and promote high-quality development
of the Company.

Continuous breakthroughs in technological innovation capabilities. The Company actively explores fields such as
prefabricated construction, rapid construction, and smart construction to lay the foundation for the expansion of emerging
business areas and industrial transformation and upgrading. The Company is one of the first central enterprises in the
industry to conduct prefabricated construction business. It has a wide presence in steel structure, precast concrete, etc.,
and has a competitive advantage in the entire industry chain from design to construction. The production capacity of the
Company'’s steel structure exceeds 1.2 million tons. The Company’s precast concrete business adheres to the five-in-one
business model to drive the development of EPC. It has an advanced fully automatic smart precast factory in China, and
has developed and established a green prefabricated building smart construction platform with proprietary intellectual
property rights. The total design capacity of prefabricated components reaches 4 million cubic meters per year, which can
support the construction of nearly 50 million square meters of buildings. In the field of smart construction, the Company
has established a city-level smart parking cloud platform, piloted China’s first 5G smart construction site, and incorporated
new technologies into the Company’s development. Meanwhile, the Company has continued to strengthen its advantages
in top engineering construction business in the industry, including ultra-high-rise buildings, large-span space structures,
and has made further breakthroughs in the R&D and manufacturing of major equipment, large-scale bridge construction
technology and other fields. Many technologies such as the factory-style “residential building machine” and super-heavy
bridge turning construction have been practically applied in projects, providing favorable support for the Company to
consolidate its position in the high-end market.

A responsible corporate citizen. The Company'’s all three targeted poverty-alleviation counties in Gansu have been lifted
from poverty, and the Company has won the highest award in the central unit’s targeted poverty alleviation assessment
for three consecutive years. The Company hired more than 26,000 college graduates, and organized 2,000,000 migrant
workers to return to work. The Company thoroughly implemented the “Regulation on Ensuring Wage Payment to Migrant
Workers” of the State Council and paid migrant workers’ wages in full. It maintained “zero arrears” by paying private
enterprise as agreed, reduced or exempted rents, and exempted highway tolls, so as to support small, medium and micro
enterprises and individual industrial and commercial households to tide over the difficulties.

The second half of 2020 will be a critical period in the countdown to China’s decisive battle against poverty and
decisive victory in building a moderately prosperous society in all respects. It is also a critical period for the Company to
successfully complete its “13th Five-Year Plan” and launch the “14th Five-Year Plan”. CSCEC will pay close attention to
changes in the domestic and foreign macroeconomic developments, grasp the new development pattern in which the
domestic big cycle dominates and the domestic and international double cycles reinforce each other. It will carefully plan
the Company’s “14th Five-Year” strategic plan, and follow the decision-making and deployment of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China and the State Council to coordinate and promote pandemic prevention and control as well
as production and operation, do a solid job of “six stabilities”, and fully complete the “six protections” task. The Company
will break new ground in crises and seek new opportunities amidst changes to effectively enhance its ability to compete,
innovate, control, influence and resist risks.
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Key Business Data

2020 2019 Growth YOY

Item Unit (January to June) (January to June) (%)

Total value of new contracts RMB100 million 15,101 14,360 5.2
I. Construction business

() Accumulative value of new 13.294 12,518 6.2

contracts during the period

(I1) Area of housing construction / / /
projects square meters
1. Accumulative area
under construction Ten thousand [ 125,550 83
............. 2A|at|veareaofnew Square
- Aeeumuiaiy : meters 16,128 18,054 107
construction projects
3. Accumulatlye area of completed 6,225 9,122 318
construction
/ / / /
Kilometers 1,614 1,753 -7.9

Ten thousand
square meters

Ten thousand
square meters

(1) Subscription sales at the end
of the period

(V) Land reserve at the end
of the period@(Full amount)

Ten thousand
square meters
Ten thousand
square meters

Note: @ China Overseas refers to the real estate business that China Overseas Land & Investment and its subsidiaries are
engaged in, but does not include China Overseas Grand Oceans;

@ Land reserve at the end of the period = land reserve at the end of the previous year + newly acquired land reserve —
area completed in the current period + (or —) area of projects being adjusted.
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Key Earnings Results

[=} . .
S(® Value of new contracts for construction business

12,140 12,518

13,294

January to June
2018

January to June
2019

January to June
2020

=)
S® Revenue

5,889

6,854

7282

January to June
2018

January to June
2019

January to June
2020

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

(=} .
S® Contract sales of real estate business

2,000

1600 1,410

1,200
800
400

0

1,842 1,807

January to June January to June
2019 2020

January to June
2018

‘s‘f@ Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company

300

240

180

120

191.4 203.1 198.4

January to June January to June January to June
2018 2019 2020
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(=} .
£® Proportion of new contract value

[0)
11.97% 0.45%

17.28%

70.30%

[ Housing construction M Infrastructure Real estate M Design

S0 Proportion of gross profit by segment

note

0.78%

41.05% 39.69%

18.48%

[ Housing construction M Infrastructure Real estate M Design

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

(=) .
E® Proportion of segment revenue

note

0.55%
14.90%

19.62%

64.93%

W Housing construction M Infrastructure

o Gross profit margin by segment

note

Real estate M Design

29.0%
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.1%
15.0%
9.9%
10.0%
6.4%
5.0%
0.0%
Housing Real
construction  Infrastructure estate Design

Note: The denominator of the segment business is the direct summation of data from the four business segments of the Company

(housing construction, infrastructure, real estate and design).
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()

Main Operation Results for the Reporting Period

Analysis of principal business

1

Analysis of changes in related items in the financial statement

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of
Amount in the the same Change ratio
ltems current period period last year (%)
Revenue 728,187,767 685,419,315 6.2

Reason for changes in revenue: In recent years, the value of the Company’s new contracts has
maintained a relatively high growth rate, and the projects under construction have been smoothly
advanced.

Reason for changes in cost of sales: The expansion of the business scale will lead to the increase in the
cost of sales accordingly.

Reason for changes in selling and distribution expenses: The Company’s real estate business
increased advertising investment during the pre-sale period, and business fees and sales commissions
grew rapidly.

Reason for changes in general and administrative expenses: Such expenses increased due to the
expansion of business scale as well as the increase in management personnel and business activities.

Reason for changes in finance expenses: The increase in interest expenses and exchange losses.

Reason for changes in research and development expenses: The Company paid attention to
technological innovation, strengthened technological R&D and application, and continued to increase
investment in technological research and development.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from operating activities: It was primarily due to the increase in
cash receipts for sales of goods and provision of labor services in the current period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from investment activities: It was primarily due to the decrease
in cash paid for investment and other cash paid for investment-related activities in the current period.

Reason for changes in net cash flows from financing activities: It was primarily due to the increase in
cash receipts for absorbing investment, borrowing and bond issuance in the current period.

Miscellaneous

(1) Detailed explanation on major changes in the Company’s profit composition or source of profit

[ Applicable +/ N/A

2) Miscellaneous

[ Applicable + N/A
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(I

Analysis of business by segment

By industry

Building
construction
engineering

Infrastructure
construction
and investment

Real estate
development
and investment

Prospecting
and design

By region

Mainland China

Overseas |,

Note:

Revenue

478,527,534

Revenue

690,298,352

Principal business by industry

Gross

margin

Cost of sales (%)
-447,693,163 6.4
-130,208,084 9.9
77,921,243 29.0
-3,413,440 15.1
-5,394,976 36.7
16,251,733 /
-648,379,173 11.0

Change YoY
of revenue
(%)

Principal business by region

Gross profit

margin

Cost of sales (%)
-612,852,048 11.2
-35,5627,125 6.2
-648,379,173 11.0

“Overseas” refers to regions other than Mainland China.

Change YoY
of revenue
(%)

Unit: ’000 yuan Currency: RMB

Change YoY
of cost of sales
(%)

Change YoY
of cost of sales
(%)

71

Change YoY of
gross profit margin
(%)

1.4 percentage
points increased

1.2 percentage
points increased

3.6 percentage
points decreased

1.2 percentage
points decreased

6.4 percentage
points increased

0.9 percentage
points increased

Change YoY of
gross profit margin
(%)

0.8 percentage
points increased

0.4 percentage
points decreased

0.9 percentage
points increased
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Building construction engineering business

During the Reporting Period, the housing construction business continued to grow and maintained the leading position in the high-end
markets. The total value of new contracts was RMB1,061.7 billion, an increase of 2.6% year-on-year with revenue at RMB478.5 billion,
an increase of 7.5% year-on-year; the gross profit was RMB30.83 billion, with a gross margin of 6.4%, an increase of 1.4 percentage
points year-on-year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s advantages in high-end housing construction such as medical buildings, conference
and exhibition centers, sports facilities, warehousing and logistics compound have become more prominent. In terms of medical
construction, the value of new contracts totaled RMB43.79 billion, a year-on-year increase of 81.2%; in terms of conference and
exhibition centers, it won the bid for National Convention and Exhibition Center (Tianjin) Phase I, Xi'an High-tech International
Convention Center Phase I, Zhejiang Ningbo International Convention Center and other large-scale projects; in terms of sports
facilities, the 2022 Winter Olympics “Ice Arena” project undertaken by the Company became the first new stadium for Beijing Olympics
Games completed this year. In addition, the Company actively participated in the construction of new urbanization, undertook the
construction project of resettlement housing in Liujia Panlong Village, Guandu District, Kunming, the construction of resettlement
housing group project in Rongdong area of Xiong’an, and the construction of youth training center and convenience service center in
Suiyang District, Shanggiu City.

During the Reporting Period, the Company leveraged its technological leadership in the field of housing construction and increased
the application of green buildings, BIM technology, and new materials. The Company maintained its leading advantages in green
construction, smart construction, and building industrialization. It has made thorough R&D on management and control software
systems for intelligent construction sites and intelligent construction, integrating 5G technology into the construction of quality projects,
and providing support for the perfect performance of the project through digital service models. The “JD Headquarters Phase ||
Project” undertaken by the Company, which launched China’s first 5G intelligent construction site, has attracted widespread attention
from the society. The “one-stop security remote inspection system” independently developed by the Company has seamlessly
combined with 5G technology and smart helmets to improve the efficiency of safety inspections. The self-developed technologies
“pblockchain-based quality traceability in the whole process” and “key equipment, technology and engineering application for digital
manufacturing of building steel structures” have reached the international leading level according to evaluation.

Infrastructure construction and investment operations

During the Reporting Period, the Company achieved continuously stable growth in the revenue and efficiency of its infrastructure
business. The value of new contracts for infrastructure business was RMB261.0 billion, an increase of 23.6% year-on-year; it recorded
revenue of RMB144.6 billion, an increase of 2.9% year-on-year; and achieved gross profit of RMB14.35 billion, an increase of 16.8%
year-on-year. The gross profit margin was 9.9%, an increase of 1.2 percentage points year-on-year.

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively responded to market changes, vigorously promoted infrastructure contracting
business, steadily carried out investment business in the infrastructure field, and won the bidding for a number of major infrastructure
construction projects. In terms of rail transit, the Company won the bidding for Chengdu Rail Transit Line 27 Phase |, the east extension
of Changchun Rail Transit Line 2, and the northeast section of Zhengzhou Rail Transit Line 6 Phase I; for highway, it won the bidding
for Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region Trunk Highway (Qinghe to Fuyun to Altai section); as to airport construction, it won the bidding
for the Hohhot New Airport Terminal Section A Project, Baiyun Airport Phase Il Expansion Project and Surrounding Airport Economic
Industrial Park Phase | Project; in the field of bridge construction, it won the bidding for the Xianyang Cross-Weihe Bridge and Taiping
Bay Shugang Highway Cross-sea Bridge, etc.; and in the field of smart parking, it won the bidding for the smart parking project of
Shenzhen New Energy Bus Integrated Station.

During the Reporting Period, the Company closely followed the national development strategy and policies, optimized infrastructure
investment projects, and won the bidding for the PPP project (section B) of reconstruction and expansion in the northern area of
Urumai Diwopu International Airport, and the PPP project in Zhangjiagang Comprehensive Bonded Zone in Jiangsu Province, and
other large-scale infrastructure investment projects, contributing “CSCEC Power” to bolster areas of weakness in the field of national
infrastructure construction. The Shanghai-Suzhou-Nantong Railway undertaken by the Company was put into operation, boosting the
integrated development of the Yangtze River Delta; Qingdao Metro Line 8, Zhengzhou Metro Line 3, Xuzhou Metro Line 3, Nanchang
Changnan Avenue, Guangxi Dapu Expressway and other key projects have completed the milestone construction work as scheduled.
In addition, the Taihangshan Expressway Shimen Super-Large Bridge Project, Beijing-Shanghai Expressway Jinan Connection Line,
Taizhou Coastal Expressway undertaken by the Company won the “Steel Structure Gold Award in China”, the “Taishan Cup (ZLL
)" (the award for the construction project of highest quality in Shandong Province), the “Qianjiang Cup (52, I4%)" (the award for
construction project of highest quality in Zhejiang Province) and other awards.

Real estate development and investment business

During the Reporting Period, the Company adhered to the strategy of “prudent land acquisition, high turnover, and capital protection”,
and the real estate business continued to achieve sound development. The real estate business of the Company achieved contract
sales of RMB180.7 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 1.9%; the contracted sales area of 10.06 million square meters,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 2.1%; the revenue of RMB109.8 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.4%; and
the gross profit of RMB31.89 billion with a gross profit margin of 29.0%, representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.6 percentage
points.

During the Reporting Period, the Company realized a new construction area of 13.03 million square meters, representing a



SECTION IV DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS OPERATION
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

year-on-year increase of 40.7%; and an area under construction of 81.84 million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase
of 25.5%. The newly acquired land banking was 9.08 million square meters, and the land banking at the end of the period was
approximately 120.61 million square meters. Over 70% of the Company'’s real estate inventory is concentrated in first-tier and provincial
capital cities.

During the Reporting Period, in light of the policy environment and policy changes, the Company adjusted its business strategy in a
timely manner, expanded its business models to include rental housing and shared property housing, and expanded business areas
to commerce, pension and education, to continuously improve the management and profitability of asset operations. After years of
development, the Company currently owns 11.54 million square meters of investment properties encompassing office buildings, hotels,
apartments, commercial real estate and others, with a net book value of RMB88.51 billion, accounting for 4.1% of the Company’s total
assets and concentrating in first- and second-tier cities and economically developed provinces.

During the Reporting Period, China Overseas achieved growth in contract sales and sales area despite a loss of nearly two months
for development, construction and sales. In terms of commercial properties, China Overseas overcame the severe impact of the
COVID-19, seized the opportunity for market integration effect and commercial asset revaluation to advance the full-cycle management
of “investment, financing, management and exit” in commercial assets. It sold Block H office building of China Overseas International
Center in Chengdu, and acquired Foshan Vivo City Shopping Center with a total GFA of 130,000 square meters, and continued to
accumulate high-quality commercial assets.

For details, please refer to “Real estate development costs”, “Real estate development products” in Note V. (8) “Inventories”, and
“Pre-sale deposits” in Note V. (29) “Contract liabilities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Prospecting and design business

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s prospecting and design business maintained a sound growth momentum. The value of
new contracts amounted to RMB6.8 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 23.2%. It achieved revenue of RMB4.02 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.3%; and gross profit of RMB610 million with gross profit margin of 15.1%, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 1.2 percentage points.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to promote the building of a design-centered industrial chain, actively expanded
its engineering consulting business, and built a design industry system with full-field coverage, full-process services, full-value chain,
and full-element growth. The Company’s prospecting and design business adhered to the idea of consolidating and expanding the
advantages of its main design business, and its original design capabilities have been continuously enhanced. In addition, it vigorously
strengthened the construction of specialization and cultivated characteristic business sectors. During the Reporting Period, the
Company won the bid for five projects in Xiong’an New District in a row, including the prospecting and design of resettlement houses in
the southern part of Anzhou characteristic town, and the urban architectural style design of the guide block (B4 bid section) in Xiong'an
New District, Hebei, to contribute to the millennium plan. The Company undertook the design of Chongqging Jiangbei International
Airport T3B terminal project, Xi'an Xianyang International Airport Phase Il project, Xining Caojiabao Airport Phase Il expansion project
and Yulin Yuyang Airport Phase Il expansion project, further highlighting the Company’s competitiveness in the field of original design
of large-scale hub airports.

Overseas business

During the Reporting Period, the value of new contracts for overseas business was RMB101.0 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 11.8%, with revenue of RMB37.9 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 19.5%. The decrease was mainly due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries around the world, which had a certain impact on overseas production and operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Company steadily expanded overseas markets and signed a series of new major projects, including
Studio City project in Macao, the new Phnom Penh International Airport terminal project in Cambodia, the 700-bed CHU hospital
project in Algiers, Algeria and the infrastructure of Bulim Square (Phase 1) in Singapore and so on. In addition, the Company made
every effort to ensure project performance under the premise of preventing and controlling the pandemic. During the Reporting Period,
the Company made important progress in the construction of Egypt's new capital’s central business district project, with the first
high-rise building to achieve structural ceiling; key projects under the BRI including the extension of the southern expressway of Sri
Lanka’s transportation and economic artery, and the largest social housing project in Maldives with 7,000 social housing have been
completed ahead of schedule.

During the Reporting Period, the Company won worldwide acclaim as it actively fulfilled its overseas social responsibilities, and worked
with the host country to fight the pandemic by making foreign donations and undertaking overseas emergency medical security
projects. The Company helped the local government to fight the pandemic and completed the construction of a residential facility that
can accommodate 800 foreign workers in just 22 days, which has improved the living conditions of local foreign workers and is highly
appreciated by the local government and people.

Other businesses

Other businesses of the Company mainly include the income from primary land development, lease of machinery equipment and
engineering supervision and management. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s revenue was RMB8.5 billion, a decrease of
7.6% year-on-year; the gross profit amounted to RMB3.12 billion, with a gross profit margin of 36.7%, an increase of 6.4 percentage
points year-on-year.

For details, please refer to Note V (49) “Revenue and cost of sales”, Note V (61) “Expenses by nature” and Note XIV “Segment
Information” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.
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(I

Operating investment business

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed an investment of RMB153.6 billion, a decrease of 4.5%
year-on-year, which was mainly due to the slowdown in the construction progress of some investment projects under
the impact of COVID-19, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in the completed investment amount. In order to ensure
the stable development of investment business, the Company will continue to promote production and operation under
normalized pandemic prevention and control to reduce the adverse impact of COVID-19 on investment business.

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Amount of
investment during Proportion YoY increase
Classification of projects the Reporting Period (%) (%)
By categories of projects
“'Féle‘él"éé'té'té'dé'\}él‘dbhﬁ'éh't ....................................................................... Tiss g s
B ‘hb'u's”iHdééhé{fdé{iéh ............................. qag o s
“'Cb'rﬁb'réhé‘héi\‘/é'Li'r'b'éﬁ'dé\}éiébfﬁéh‘t' ...................................................... o sy T s
o hetts A Ot i pe o5 s
. By con 't'i‘r'it]i‘t'y‘ of bi"dj'é'éfé ........................................................................................................................................
“'C'(‘J'ri'ti‘riijéd‘i'h\}éét'r;ﬁéh'{'br'éjéé‘té .............................................................. Taoe gy 50
“'Néi/'\/”bfbjé'c‘:'t‘é”i'ri'édéd .............................................................................. age ey g
Cqotal oo s

Note: The above classification of projects is designed in accordance with industry practices and the Company’s
internal management needs. The classification attributes of some projects will be adjusted according to the actual
circumstances of the project. The year-on-year growth rate in the table will be adjusted retrospectively to the
changed projects accordingly.

1. Real estate development business

During the Reporting Period, the investment amount of the Company’s real estate development business
reached RMB112.5 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 5.6%; payback of investment return was RMB116.7
billion, a year-on-year decrease of 7.9%; and ratio of investment to income was 104%, a year-on-year
decrease of 2 percentage points.

2. Business of investment in infrastructure and housing construction

During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment in infrastructure and housing construction of the
Company'’s real estate development business reached RMB34.7 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 0.3%;
payback of investment return was RMB16.7 billion, a year-on-year increase of 8%; and the income to
expenses ratio of investment was 48%, a year-on-year increase of 3 percentage points.

3. Comprehensive urban construction business

During the Reporting Period, the amount of investment of the Company’s comprehensive urban
construction business reached RMB5.95 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 0.5%; payback of investment
return was RMB5.3 billion, a year-on-year increase of 68%; and the income to expenses ratio of investment
was 89%, a year-on-year increase of 36 percentage points.

4. Investment and construction in key regions

The Company resolutely implements the major decision-making and deployment of the Central Committee
of the Communist Party of China and the State Council, takes the responsibility as a central enterprise
around major national strategic planning and deployment, actively practices regional coordinated
development strategies, and is deeply involved in the investment and construction in key national areas
such as the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, the Yangtze River Economic Belt, and the GBA. During the
Reporting Period, the amount of investment of the Company in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region, Yangtze
River Economic Belt and the GBA reached RMB101.9 billion, representing 66.3% of the Company’s overall
investment.

5. Development of PPP business

In accordance with the relevant national requirements for the standardized development of PPP business,
the Company closely followed the national policy guidance, comprehensively cleared up and rectified
existing PPP projects, maintained reasonable control of the scale of PPP, and adhered to the high-quality
development of PPP business. As of the end of June 2020, the Company has 374 PPP projects under
implementation, with a planned investment of RMB619.2 billion. The fields involved include municipal
engineering, transportation, comprehensive development of towns and industrial parks, ecological
construction and environmental protection.

The Company attaches great importance to the operation and management of PPP, upholds the core
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(V)

(V)

concept of “operation-centered and performance-oriented” and focuses on project operation management

in the life-cycle management of the Company’s PPP business. As of the end of the

Reporting Period, the

operational performance evaluation of the Company’s PPP projects which has entered the operating phase
delivered satisfactory result, providing a solid guarantee for investment returns. Through the PPP business,
the Company has invested in a number of major landmark projects related to the national economy and

people’s livelihood, which has strongly promoted the Company’s steady growth and
The goal is to help the Company to develop from a company which is solely

structural adjustment.
engaged in housing

construction business to the world’s largest investment and construction conglomerate, and enhanced the

brand influence of CSCEC.

Operating status of the professional sectors

The Company has been implementing the “specialization” strategy for ten years, during which the development
of its specialized sectors has continued to maintain a good momentum. Accelerating business development,
enriching specialized corporate culture and improving professional strength provided solid support for CSCEC
to develop its capabilities in full business areas, full life cycles, and full industry chain. During the Reporting

Period, these specialized sectors achieved a total value of new contracts of RMB227.94 bil

lion; the revenue was

RMB156.89 billion, a year-on-year decrease of 6.9%; the gross profit was RMB9.64 billion, a year-on-year decrease

of 22.4%; and the operating profit was RMB4.18 billion, a year-on-year decrease 36.8%.

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Amount YoY YoY
of new Revenue Increase  Gross profit Increase
ltem Name of sector contracts  for 2020 H1 (%)  for 2020 H1 (%)

Installation

Cross-sector

Infrastructure
Gross profit margin (%)
YoY change
(Percentage
ltem Name of sector 2020 H1 2019 H1 points) 2020 H1
Installation 5.6 -4.2

0.1
Cross-sector
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Explanation on significant changes in profit arising from non-major business
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Operating YoY
profit  Increase
for 2020 H1 (%)

Operating profit margin (%)

YoY change
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Other explanation
\ Applicable [JN/A

During the Reporting Period, the Company actively responded to the COVID-19 pandemic by introducing the “ten
financial measures”, and replenishing its financial resource reserves to help with the pandemic prevention and
control as well as the resumption of work and production to improve the production and operational capacities of
the enterprise. It supported relevant entities to complete key tasks in the pandemic prevention and control through
setting up a designated loan fund pool and a green approval channel. In the first half of the year, the Company
issued new bonds with face value of approximately RMB17.7 billion, which well satisfied the need for funding
arising from the rapid development of business as well as industrial restructuring. The Company’s financing
structure was further optimized through increasing the efforts in direct financing.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Company’s total interest-bearing liabilities were RMB545.7 billion,
representing an increase from the beginning of the year. This was mainly due to the increase in the Company’s
business volume, the corresponding increase in borrowings, and the increase in interest expenses. During the
Reporting Period, the interest payment/redemption of corporate bonds and debt financing instruments are listed as

follows:
Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Whether to pay
interest/redeem
Category Abbreviation Value date Maturity date Amount  normally

Redemption and
interest payment

Medium-term note 15 China Construction MTNOO1 April 28, 2015 April 28, 2020 30

Redemption and
interest payment

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V (33) “Current portion of non-current
liabilities” and Note V (36) “Bonds payable” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”
hereof.

During the Reporting Period, the bonds issued by the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
Unit: 100 million yuan/dollars Currency: RMB/USD
Balance at

Name of bond Value date Term (year) Amount  the end of period  Issuer

20 China Construction Eighth ' China Construction Eighth
Engineering Division SCP001 April 13, 2020 049 5 (RMB) 5 (RMB) Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.

20 China Construction Eighth China Construction Eighth

Engncerng Diisonscpooy AP0 017 EME) 01 - nginering Division Cop. Lig.
B e Dk dne1s 220 046 20(wB)  20(wB) CRelonREmONEI
SOOI T L s O
S — e S — e
S — e e B
China Overseas Green Property April 28, 2020 18 37(RMB) 37(RMB) Beijing China Overseas Plaza

Management Assets-backed Plan 1 Commercial Development Ltd.

Note: “20 China Construction Eighth Engineering Division SCP002” is super short-term commercial paper, and has
been redeemed in the current period.

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V (33) “Current portion of non-current
liabilities” and Note V (36) “Bonds payable” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”
hereof.
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(Vi)

Analysis of investment

1.

General analysis of external equity investment
\ Applicable [JN/A
The Company’s external equity investment mainly includes stocks purchased from the secondary market
for trading purposes, and equities held in other listed or unlisted companies for non-trading purposes.
Accounting items include financial assets held for trading, other investment in equity instrument, long-term
equity investments and other non-current financial assets.
(1) Major equity investment
[]Applicable v N/A
(2) Major non-equity investment
[] Applicable v N/A
(3) Financial assets measured at fair value
\ Applicable [JN/A
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB
Investment ~ Changesin Investment ~ Carrying Profitsor ~ Changes in
costatthe investment cost at valueat lossesduring  fair value in
beginning  costduring  theendof  theendof the Reporting the Reporting  Accounting Source
Stock code Stock name oftheperiod ~ theperiod  theperiod  the period Period Period  items of stocks
Financial assets
B rerbeRm B P rediorang P
Financial assets
R L BT g R
Financial assets
S S L D elriadng P
Financial assets
s mworeRen B BB edng U
CHENGDU HI-TECH o
000682 DEVELOPMENTCO 440 - Mo 2661 418 41 TGS pygpgse
LTD. g
........................................................................................................................................... T
s e R s e e
Financial assets
RS MR Wt e e eldiorang P
Financial assets
S M e IS el P
Financial assets
s sere R S ? . hedioriedng P
AGRICULTURAL BANK Investments in other
I OFOHNA D IR s R eyimsuments P
Investments in other
TS TUMRBRNC A s e e equy nsruments "1
Investments in other
T TOUTORNES e e e e e equy nsruments "
Investments in other
St S equy rsiuments "%
Investments in other
s S equy rsuments "%
Investments in other
o equlyinsiumenis""1%%
Other current assets _ P!
........................................................................................................................................... Other current assefs _ Purchase
Financial assets
............................................................................................................................................. heldfortiading =777
/ /

This table sets out the Company’s investment in stock securities including as financial assets held for
trading and investments in other equity instruments.

Profits or losses for the Reporting Period, with respect to financial assets held for trading, includes the
investment income and changes in fair value during holding period; with respect to investments in other
equity instruments, includes investment gains during the period.

Other securities investment refers to investment in stock securities accounted for as financial assets held
for trading and investments in other equity instruments other than those listed above.

In addition to the table above, for other items included in financial assets held for trading and investments
in other equity instruments, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V (2) “Financial assets
held for trading” and Note V (15) “Investments in other equity instruments” to the financial statements under
Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

(4) Disposal of major assets and equity interests
[] Applicable v N/A
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(V) Analysis of major controlling companies or companies with shareholding

(1X)

\ Applicable [JN/A

1. Major subsidiaries acquired through incorporation or investment
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Name Nature of business Registered capital  Shareholding (%) ~ Totalassets ~ Netassets Net profit
COORL Investment holding 81082258 10000 860,911,057 278855259 20,998,061
China Overseas Real estate investment

 Lndginesment  anddewdopment OO0 P TRAMEE BRI BRI
. CSClntemational Gonstruction and installation. HKD1,500000000 6466 148846220 44344705 2630995
.. China Overseas Property Property management  HKD30000000 6118 30864239 1994831 2855
China Consiruction First Construction and 7,000,000 10000 92130279 20412940 1197274
44444 Group Corporation  nstallation
China Construction Second Construction and

 EngneeingDision insllaion e (000 T e LR
China Consiruction Third Construction and 5,039,865 10000 234132043 48061475  3236,265
44444 Engineering Division  installation
China Construction Fourth Construction and

 EngneeingDuison insllaion e (00 AT BERES 8T
China Construction Fiffh Construction and 6,018,000 10000 158500500 20174463 1619673
44444 Engineering Division  installation
China Construction Sixth Construction and

 EngneeingDuison insllaion e (000 et AT T
China Construction Seventh  Construction and 6,000,000 10000 100507550 20837481 711926
..... Engineering Division instalation
China Construction Eighth Construction and

 EngneeingDuision insllaion | e (000 T AEmA I
ChmavCongtructlon Englneenn‘g prospecting 510,000 100,00 2483321 881217 138,969
..... Engieering Design Group _anddesign T T
' . Industrial renovation

CraSabecolor . addecodon e e e eman B
China Construction Busmessofvlnfrastructure 5,000000 100,00 65178027 16053122 459107
Fangcheng construction

Major subsidiaries acquired through combination of businesses under common control
Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Name Nature of business Registered capital Shareholding (%) ~ Totalassets ~ Net assets Net profit

CSCEC Xinjiang ! . )

. Constuclon Engneerng IO 00 B memem mAmeR W
struction m 57.79 23,721,408

Real estate development
and operation

Major subsidiaries acquired through combination of businesses not under common
control

Unit: '000 yuan Currency: RMB

Name Nature of business Registered capital  Shareholding (%)  Totalassets ~ Net assets Net profit
. CSC Development Consiruction and installation  HKD100000.000 4789 b34d7er 1067897 137734
China Construction Harbour and - Business of infrastructure 1333.333 000 10112299 1970507 58626

Channel Engineering Bureau construction

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in “1. Interests in subsidiaries” under Note VII
“Interests in other entities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Structured entities under the control of the Company

\ Applicable  [JN/A

For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in “3. Consolidated special purpose vehicle” under
Note VII “Interests in other entities” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.
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Other Disclosures

(1

(I

Warning on forecast of any potential loss in accumulated net profit for the period from the
beginning of the year to the end of next Reporting Period or any material change from the
same period of last year and the explanations thereon

[1Applicable + N/A

Potential risks
\ Applicable []N/A

1.

Risks arising from prevention and control of COVID-19 pandemic and resumption of work
and production

During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 emerged in the PRC and various countries in the world and
became a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern (PHEIC)”. At present, the COVID-19 has
spread around the world. In view of the pandemic and the current situation, CSCEC is required to, on
one hand, commit itself to preventing and controlling the pandemic to ensure the health and security of
its employees, and, on the other hand, cope with the new risks brought by the pandemic, such as the
risk relating to resumption of work and production due to restricted materials or personnel, and derivative
risks from a decrease in business performance as affected by the pandemic and from contract disputes,
etc. With the improvement of anti-pandemic work, the economy and society get stable overall, resumption
of work and production speeds up, and the economic recovery continues. However, since June, the
unexpected comeback of the pandemic in Beijing has brought us new challenges on our anti-pandemic
work. Paying close attention to this situation, the Company strengthened coordination, deployment,
organization and guidance in the prevention and control of the pandemic and in the resumption of work
and production across the Company. It guided and supervised all subsidiaries to establish a working
system in their projects covering all segments and levels and determining each person’s responsibilities
in work. The Company strictly implemented the reporting mechanism for prevention and control of the
pandemic with dynamic followups and monitoring. Assuming the responsibilities as a central enterprise
and leveraging its professional strengths, the Company has actively participated in the renovation and
expansion of designated emergency hospitals in various places; actively resumed work and production
under the premise of ensuring effective prevention and control work, made in-depth analysis of impact of
the pandemic on production and operation to formulate targeted policies and measures while enhancing
work deployment. At present, various operating indicators of the Company have been improving.

Macroeconomic risks

Due to the pandemic, the resumption of work and production has been delayed in many places of the
PRC, with significantly shrink business activities and restricted travels. There is a substantial decrease in
consumption needs and investment, and a basic suspension in investment in real estate and infrastructure
construction in the short term. In this regard, China is facing unprecedented challenges in economy
growth. In addition, China’s economy is currently under a shift in its growth rate with serious aging of
population and high macro leverage ratio. Coupled with the COVID-19 outbreak at the beginning of
the year, the external environment becomes more unfavorable, resulting in even worse economy under
greater downward pressures. Meanwhile, as affected by the pandemic, the economic developments of
most countries in the world have weaker performance than expected, which may contribute to a global
economic crisis and financial crisis. In the future, the Company will put more efforts on the research on
macro economy, industry policies, infrastructure construction market, financial market and exchange
rate, as well as the interest rate, closely follow national and local investment and construction hotspots,
accelerate business transformation and upgrading, promote radiation and extension of its business, make,
in advance, tracks of infrastructure construction projects, arrangement for financing plan and researches
on innovation plans, so as to control financing costs and prevent financial risks; improve the sensitivity
and predictability of the Company to changes in the economic environment, comprehensively assess
the Company’s ability to address risks, identify weakness and provide targeted prevention and control
measures. The Company will also strengthen monitoring in the course of the implementation of strategic
planning, and revise corporate strategy in a timely manner; adopt targeted measures to expand the scale
and strength of the Company through integration of resource, external mergers and acquisitions and other
measures, and enhance the ability to counter risks. The linkages and interaction among different regions
should be strengthened to enhance synergies, and give play to the Company’s advantages in integration
of resources, so as to reduce exposure to macroeconomic risks. In addition, the Company will continue to
conduct diversified and regional operations through realizing innovative development and expanding its
business scope.
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()

International business risks

During the Reporting Period, the COVID-19 spread overseas has not yet been effectively contained, which has
materially impacted the global society and economy, and posed great uncertainties to the global economic
development. As the Company’s overseas operations span various countries and regions, in which the political
system, economic situations, legal environment as well as cultures and customs are quite different, the maturity
of each market is obviously different, and the investment environment is complicated. Confronting such complex
and ever-changing international situation, the Company has been consolidating its ability to identify and respond
to international business risks, refining the comprehensive risk management system of the entire business chain
of overseas business, and improving the risk assessment and monitoring mechanism of overseas projects. It
has also paid attention to the effective operation of overseas supervision mechanisms on safe production, and
properly identified, prevented and resolved risks of international operations. Moreover, the Company has set up an
overseas institution for pandemic prevention and control, closely followed up the development of the pandemic in
host countries and regions, and provided materials for protection and prevention to ensure the implementation of
various anti-pandemic measures. It has also established and improved emergency mechanisms to ensure safety of
employees and labor workers while promoting the gradual resumption of the Company’s production and operation
and the high-quality development of its overseas business. In the meantime, the Company continues to further
strengthen the regulation and overseas audit supervision during the performance of overseas projects to improve
the quality of overseas operation and management. It has established a normal self-supervision work mechanism.
Overseas mergers and acquisitions are steadily promoted by selection of large- and medium-sized construction and
design enterprises in developed European and American countries as the targets, and comprehensive consideration
of risks, prevention in advance and making planning for integration of operations after the mergers and acquisitions.

Safety and environmental protection risks

The Company’s engineering contracting business accounts for a large proportion of its business portfolio and covers
a wide range of sectors. Due to the nature of the industry and the external environment, in the course of construction,
production safety incidents may take place, and it may be exposed to natural disasters such as floods, rainstorms,
earthquakes, typhoons, and fires and risks such as unexpected public events. Accordingly, the Company is exposed
to certain risks in its production. With the further deepening of environmental protection and green architecture concepts
in the construction field, environmental checks become stricter. At present, there is still a gap between the Company’s
safety and environmental protection regulation team with the development scale of the Company and requirements of
laws and regulations in terms of capacity, quality, regulatory methods and measures, etc., which influences the brand
reputation of the Company and causes economic loss to the Company. Adhering to the concept of “life first, safety
operation foremost”, the Company gives highest priority to safe production, and attaches great importance to safety
and quality work, and has strictly fulfilled the production safety responsibilities following the principles of “Party and
government sharing the same responsibility, one post with dual responsibilities”. The Company has also established
and improved safe and environmental-friendly production supervision agencies in according with the laws, appointed
adequate number of full-time safety supervisors and personnel for environmental protection to strengthen the quality
and capability building of the safety supervision and environmental protection team. Besides, it has strictly followed the
safe production supervision model of CSCEC to improve the safety supervision system of the business at all levels down
to the production unit; strictly implemented the national laws and regulations on safe production and the safe production
rules of CSCEC. Meanwhile, the Company and its secondary subsidiaries are required to publicize safety rules, and
focus on enhancing the safety supervision of infrastructure, EPC, overseas projects, etc.; strengthen emergency
response capacity, and increase the efforts on governance of accident-prone areas and enterprises.

Investment risks

During the Reporting Period, due to the pandemic at home and abroad, as well as the economic downturn, there were
increasing risks relating to the recovery of investment amounts. With the increasingly strict financial regulation, it was
more difficult to finance for projects, which may increase the Company’s financing costs while reducing investment
gains. As the central government insists on the general keynote of “houses are for living in, not speculation”, and with
intensive introduction of real estate regulation and adjustment policies by various local governments, the financing
channels for real estate have been restricted and investment costs have increased. Coupled with the control due to the
pandemic, regional sales and collection of project payment have been interrupted, which results in the risks of cash flow
shortage. In addition, the overall growth of investment in the industry has slowed down with limited incremental space for
investment, and with the growing number of qualification upgrade on construction enterprises, the market competition
has been exceptionally fierce and even irrational, resulting in a decrease in investment returns. In this connection, the
Company will strictly implement the requirements of relevant national policies and documents, strictly regulate the
expansion of PPP projects, and strictly implement the requirements of investment business management and control
with a “zero tolerance” approach in terms of risks in non-compliance of projects to earnestly improve the quality of
new investment projects. Meanwhile, the Company will strengthen the research on national policies, regulations and
industry policies, increase the efforts in exploring structured financing and other modes, and innovate project financing
ways; adopt stable and prudent investment strategies, strictly control the expansion of new projects and advance the
management and control level of investment business; control investment scale within a reasonable range, improve
process management and control for investment projects and statistical management for investment to enhance the
operational ability of project in an all-around way.

Various financial risks faced by the Company in its operating activities include market risks (mainly interest rate risk,
exchange rate risk and equity instrument investment price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The overall risk management
plan of the Company will focus on the unpredictability of the financial market, and reducing the potential adverse impact
on the financial performance. For details, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note VIII “Risks relating to
financial instruments” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

For details of the Company’s goodwill and its impairment, please refer to the relevant information as set out in Note V (20)
“Goodwill” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

Other disclosures
[]Applicable + N/A
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SECTIONV IMPORTANT MATTERS

. Overview of the General Meetings
Index for details of the
Date of designated website for  Date of disclosure of
Session general meeting publishing resolutions resolutions
2020 first extraordinary general meeting February 19, 2020 WWW.SSe.com.cn February 20, 2020
2019 annual general meeting May 25, 2020 WWW.SSe.Com.cn May 26, 2020

Description of general meetings
\ Applicable [JN/A

During the Reporting Period, a total of 4 proposals were considered and approved by voting at the 2020 First Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company. A total of 15 proposals were considered and approved by voting at the 2019 annual
general meeting of the Company.

Il. Profit Distribution Plan or Reserve Capitalization Plan

0] Profit distribution plan and reserve capitalization plan proposed for the first half year
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VL.

VIL.

VIIL.

Appointment and Dismissal of the Accounting Firm

Explanation on appointment and dismissal of accounting firm
\ Applicable [JN/A

On May 25, 2020, as considered and approved at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company, Ernst & Young
Hua Ming LLP (Special General Partnership) was appointed as the auditor for the financial report and internal control of
the Company for 2020, for a term of one year. For details, please refer to the Announcement on Change of Auditor for
Financial Reports published by the Company on February 4, 2020, the Announcement on Change of Auditor for Internal
Control published on April 25, 2020, the Information on 2019 Annual General Meeting published on May 15, 2020, and the
Announcement on Resolutions of 2019 Annual General Meeting published on May 26, 2020.

Explanation on change of accounting firm during the audit period

[]Applicable +/ N/A

Company’s explanation on the “Modified Audit Report” issued by the accounting firm
[JApplicable + N/A

Company’s explanation on the “Modified Audit Report” issued by the certified public accountant for the financial report
included in the annual report of the previous year

[]Applicable +/ N/A

Matters Related to Insolvency/Reorganization
[JApplicable / N/A

Matters Related to Significant Litigation and Arbitration

[] There were significant litigations and arbitrations during the Reporting Period

\/ There was no significant litigation or arbitration during the Reporting Period

Penalty and Rectification for Listed Companies and Their Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management, Controlling Shareholders, De Facto Controller and Acquirers

[JApplicable +/ N/A

Explanation on the Integrity of the Company and Its Controlling Shareholder and De Facto
Controller during the Reporting Period

[]Applicable +/ N/A
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IX.

Equity Incentive Scheme, Employee Stock Ownership Plan or Other Employee Incentive
Measures of the Company and Their Implications

(1)

Relevant equity incentive matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further

progress or changes in subsequent implementation

\ Applicable [N/A

Summary of matter

The number of shares subject to the second tranche of unlocking in 2019 in
respect of phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme was 112,527,800,
which were listed for circulation on February 14, 2020.

It was considered and approved by the Company to repurchase a total of
10,604,200 restricted shares, including 7,214,200 (5,153,000 before the
reserve capitalization of the Company) phase Il restricted A shares and
3,390,000 phase Il restricted A shares, which were held and shall not
be unlocked by the 106 participants of phase Il and Il restricted A share
incentive scheme, at an adjusted grant price of RMB3.47571 per share
(RMB4.866 per share before the reserve capitalization of the Company)
for phase Il restricted A shares and RMB3.468 per share for phase Ill
restricted A shares, totaling RMB36,831,018. After cancellation of the shares
repurchased, the registered capital of the Company would be decreased by
RMB10,604,200 to RMB41,965,025,511.

The Company repurchased and canceled a total of 10,558,200 restricted
shares (including 210,000 phase | restricted shares, 7,438,200 phase |l
restricted shares and 2,910,000 phase Il restricted shares) held by 108
participants in aggregate of phase I, Il and Il restricted A share incentive
schemes (including 7 as participants of both phase Il and Il restricted
A share incentive schemes). Upon completion of this repurchase and
cancellation, the number of restricted shares to be repurchased by
the Company amounts to 2,094,667 in total, including 788,667 phase |
restricted shares, 826,000 phase |l restricted shares and 480,000 phase |lI
restricted shares to be repurchased. Upon completion of this repurchase
and cancellation, the remaining restricted shares under the equity incentive
scheme are 711,468,667 shares. Upon completion of the repurchase and
cancellation, the registered capital (and share capital) of the Company
will be decreased by RMB10,558,200 (and 10,558,200 shares) to
RMB41,965,071,511 (and 41,965,071,511 shares).

Index for details

Announcement on the Second
Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in
Respect of Phase Il Restricted
A Share Incentive Scheme and
Listing of Shares published on
February 5, 2020

Announcement on Decrease
in Registered Capital of the
Company after Repurchase and
Cancellation of Part of Phase
Il and Ill Restricted Shares
and Notice to the Creditors
published on February 20, 2020

Announcement on Implementation
of Repurchase and Cancellation
of Part of Restricted Shares under
the Equity Incentive Scheme
published on April 13, 2020

Incentive not disclosed in provisional announcements or with subsequent progress

Information of equity incentives

[1Applicable  N/A

Other explanation

] Applicable +/ N/A

Information of employee stock ownership plan
[JApplicable + N/A

Other incentives

[ Applicable + N/A
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X.

Material Related Party Transactions

()

Related party transactions relating to ordinary course of business

1.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation

\ Applicable  [JN/A

Summary of transaction

The Proposal in Respect of Daily Related Party Transactions of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited for 2020 was
considered and approved at the 37th meeting of the second session
of the Board of Directors, the 19th meeting of the second session of
the Board of Supervisors and the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company on April 24, 2020 and May 25, 2020, respectively.

The Company and China State Construction signed the Comprehensive
Services Framework Agreement Between China State Construction
Engineering Corporation and China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited in respect of the related party transactions arising
from the sales, procurement, commercial factoring services, financial
leasing services, property leasing and other business between
the Company with China State Construction and its subsidiaries.
Specifically, the sales between the Company and China State
Construction or its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMB2.5 billion;
procurement shall not exceed RMB3.0 billion; the maximum balance of
commercial factoring services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall
not exceed RMBO.5 billion, and factoring interest and service fee shall
not exceed RMBO0.04 billion; the maximum balance of financial leasing
services (excluding those from CSC Finance) shall not exceed RMB0.3
billion, and leasing interest and service fee shall not exceed RMB0.025
billion; property leasing shall not exceed RMBO0.2 billion; other daily
related party transactions shall not exceed RMBO0.6 billion (RMBO0.2
billion for interest on capital borrowings, RMBO.1 billion for signing
trademark license agreement, and RMBO.3 billion for others).

CSC Finance, a subsidiary of the Company, and China State
Construction signed the Financial Services Framework Agreement
Between China State Construction Engineering Corporation and China
State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. in respect of the related party
transactions arising from the deposits, loans, financial and financing
consultancy and other relevant financial services provided to China
State Construction and its subsidiaries from CSC Finance. During the
term of the agreement, the daily balance cap of the deposits (inclusive
of accrued interests thereon) to be placed by China State Construction
and its subsidiaries with CSC Finance shall not exceed RMB20.0 billion,
with the daily balance of loans (inclusive of accrued interests thereon)
to be obtained not exceeding the daily balance cap of the deposits
(inclusive of accrued interests thereon); the fees to be charged by CSC
Finance in respect of the other financial services provided by it to China
State Construction and its subsidiaries shall not exceed RMBO0.3 billion.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in

subsequent implementation

[ Applicable + N/A

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements

[] Applicable v N/A

Index for details

Announcement on Dally Related
Party Transactions under the
Comprehensive Services
Framework Agreement and the
Financial Services Framework
Agreement Signed with China
State Construction Engineering
Corporation published on April
25, 2020.

Announcement on Resolutions
of 2019 Annual General Meeting
published on May 26, 2020.
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(In

()

(V)

(V)

(VD)

Related party transactions as a result of acquisition of assets or acquisition or disposal equity

1.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[]Applicable + N/A

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[ Applicable  N/A

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
[ Applicable + N/A

Disclosure of performance achieved for the Reporting Period if with agreed-upon
performance targets

[]Applicable v N/A

Material related party transactions in joint external investment

1.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[]Applicable v N/A

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[]Applicable v N/A

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
[ Applicable + N/A

Creditor’s rights and debts with related parties

1.

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements without further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[ Applicable + N/A

Matters disclosed in provisional announcements but with further progress or changes in
subsequent implementation

[ Applicable + N/A

Matters not disclosed in provisional announcements
[ Applicable + N/A

Other material related party transactions
[]Applicable v N/A

Miscellaneous
\ Applicable [JN/A

For related party transactions of the Company, please refer to the related information of Note X “Related party
relationships and transactions” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.
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3.

Other material contracts
\ Applicable []N/A

(1)

Major domestic business contracts during the Reporting Period

Name of contract

General construction contract in respect of the
phase | pro%ec of Tanjin Metro Line 7 (X FEMETS
B-HIEMIRAERR)

Contracting contract in respect of the section
ZJTLSG-2 of the station project of Shandong section
of the newly-buit Znengzhou-Jinan Railwa ay HEAM
ERERBLRRIE A TR ZITLSG-4rBA B 5lF)

General contracting construction contract in respect
of the terminal project of the reconstruction and
expansion of Urum A|rport(% ATy BT
ENA IR RIS AESR)

EPC contract in respect of the phase Il project of the
National Convention & Exhibition Center works (B
SEPOITE_SVEBPCRABTERIAR)

Construction contract in respect of the prOJect of the
Chinese Folk Arts Grand Garden (FEIREXZ AN
EREBIAE)

Prospecting-design-construction (EPC) contract

in respect of the phase Il project of Henggin
International Commercial Center (a‘fé? e
BRI S ABEPCIESA)

Engineering-procurement-construction contract in
respect of the proj oject of Guan%zhou Football Field
r \\E%%Iﬁﬁuﬁmﬂﬁﬁml EBAR)

Prospecting-design-construction general
contracting contract in respect of the project of
resettlement housing construction (shanty town
reformation) in Liujia Panlong Village, Guandu
District (EEX A FER BT REEEZME (1
FEE&U@) B, Wt HISAOMEIRSAS

EPC contract (secnon 1) in respect of the project of
construcnon ofa h\gh school in Yunnan province (=
H;mEFL (B EPCRAR (TR —)EPCER

General contracting contract in respect of the
comprehensive development (new-type urbanization
pilot) PPP project of Qiaclin Old Town Area in Pukou
District, NanJJm City (BRTEOX R, Ko
AFK B PPPIE TR AD4R)

General contracting construction contract in respect
of section DOO9X-TAO1 of phase | project of Nanjing
Metro Line 9 (R ER9S 4 — T IEH LR AR
DO09X-TAOLAFHEL &)

General contracting construction contract in respect
of section 11 of Xiong'an Commercial Service Center
(ERBSRSPONE _HERBLEAESE)
General contracting contract in respect of the 9
projects including the road works in the West Coast
New Area, Qingdao (EBABFMXER TR
ESTESAEAR)

General contracting contract in respect of the works
of Kong Shan Kuang Area (the Future Garden) of
the J|an%u Garden Expo Park (I AREEEFLLE F
X (KR ITRIEEAEAR)

EPC contract in respect of the project of
construction of the Youth Training Center and the
Convenience Service Center in Swyan? District,
Shanq(%qm City ( ‘ﬁfﬁﬁﬁ AR EVEE]I L RER
REPOREMEBEPCRABRRTERIAR)

The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually signed by

Unit: 100 million yuan Currency: RMB

Signing party

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited and China Construction
Eighth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd., China Construction Third Engineering
Bureau Co., Ltd. and CSCEC Xinjiang
Construction & Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd.

China Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Communications
Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Third Bureau First
Engineering Co., Ltd.

China Construction Fourth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau
Co., Ltd., China Southwest Architectural
Design and Research Institute Corp. Ltd.,
China Southwest Geotechnical Investigation
& Design Institute Co., Ltd. and China
Changjiang Construction Investment Corp., Ltd.

China Construction Seventh Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited, China Construction
Eignth Engineering Division Corp. Ltd. and
China Construction Industrial & Energy
Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Communications
Engineering Group Co., Ltd.

China Construction Eighth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

China Construction Fifth Engineering Division
Corp. Ltd.

the Company as at the end of the Reporting Period.

Value of
contract

40.85

Type of
contract

Infrastructure
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction

Infrastructyre
construction

Infrastructure
construction

Housing
construction



SECTIONV IMPORTANT MATTERS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

(2) Major overseas business contracts during the Reporting Period

Unit: 100 million dollars Currency: USD

Value of Type of
No. Name of contract Signing party contract contract
General contracting contract in respect of the . ‘ o
1 phosphoric acid plant project in Abuta, Egypt (%5 Ch&is ;?;;O%Oﬁ:i?;ém Engheering 8.51 ‘22?}2%3%?
MHERR METREAGSR)
General contracting (comprehensive) construction China State Construction Engineering (Hong Housin
2 contract in respect of the Studio City Macao project Kong) Limited and China Construction 8.35 constructiog
FEFLNELE (G5) BIAR) Engineering (Macao) Company Limited
General contracting (engineering & construction)
3 contract in respect of the terminal project of the China Construction Third Engineering Division 596 Infrastructure
New Phnom Penh International Airport (¥ &R Corp. Ltd. ' construction
.............. MRS BB LBOR)
Construction contract in respect of the 700-bed Housin
4 CHU hospital project in Algiers (FI’RE/RT00RCHU  CSCEC Algeria 4.58 el g
ERAERTAR) construction
5 Contract in respect of the landmark tower projectin -~ China Construction First Group Corporation 385 Housing
Indonesia (EDEMAFEIE Ti246H) Limited ' construction
Contract in respect of the phase | project of Tseung . ) o
6 Kwan O seawater desalination plant ($Z 28K Ch}|<na Stal_tfe (iogstruchon Engineering (ong 355 Infrastructure
A E-NEREER) ong)Limte
Contract in respect of the residential housing Housin
7 project at No. 128 Wong Ma Kok Road, Stanley (75 Treasure Construction Engineering Limited 2.28 constructiog
.............. R R o) e
Engineering service contract (section E) in respect
ofthe consiruction of he 700N sglar {hermal The Second Construction Co., Ltd. of China Infrastructure
8 power and 250MW solar photovoltic power plant Construction Third Engineering Bureau 187 construction
project in Dubal (BEET00MWHFAFI250MW K AR
.............. R O e
Engineering contract in respect of the Training . ‘ ” )
9 Center HTTC (CCDC) of the Ministry of Home Affairs Ch&a gt(;nittrgct\on (South Pacifc) Development 1.84 con;?uucstligg
(RERERIIERRLHTTC (CCDC) Ti2EH) o
Engineering contract in respect of the HDB flat- . ‘ " .
10 TPN2(CCDC) in Tampines (AEEER-TPN Ché’f g{;”i‘{gc“o” (South Paciic) Development 169 Con;fu”;'igﬁ
(CCDC) THEEM) S
‘ China Construction Zhongyuan Saudi Arabia Housing
11 Phase | for Telal A-Ghoroob Project Limited (FEHEMSERAT) 1.65 construcion
Construction contract in respect of the phase Il . ) o
12 project of Addis Ababa National Stadium (TEFIE7TE Chér;a:s;?;i;oairnuglon Engineering 1.64 lrg;isst{rl:ittﬁ
NEEXEEH_BHRERLER)
.............. ContractmrespectoflheBullmmfrastruclureworks
13 phase! ((BLT-CSCEC works) (RAERIEHTIE— Chma Construgtion Representative Office in 143 Infraslrucigre
(BL1)-CSCECTRRAR) Singapore construction
RS o respect i Log|st|cs e Naaja .................... S ; ousmg .
1 Algeria (XAMLEDARLTE PLHCATZAH) CSCEC Algeria L construction
15 Contract in respect of the road project of the China Construction Sixth Engineering Division 104 Infrastructure
Industrial Park in Kuwait (g TV ERERMBEH) Corp. Ltd. ' construction
Note: The contracts listed above are mainly sourced from the statistics of the contracts actually signed by

the Company as at the end of the Reporting Period.



SECTIONV IMPORTANT MATTERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020 [

(3) Newly-sighed comprehensive credit facility contracts

Unit: 100 million yuan/dollars Currency: RMB/USD

Name of comprehensive credit Comprehensive
No. facility contract Credit grantor Accredited party credit facility limit ~ Credit period
Comprehensive credit facility ~ China Minsheng Banking China ‘Statel Construct\op - January 9, 2020 -
1 Engineering Corporation RMB6.0 billion
contract Corp., Ltd. Beijing Branch o January 8, 2021
Limited
Master ggregment on tra(jlvng The Export-mport Bank of China .State. Construchop - April2, 2020
2 and financial credit facility . Engineering Corporation RMB15.0 billion
‘ China 2 December 6, 2020
business Limited
March 4, 2020 - no
HSBC Bank (China) China State Construction fixed expiry date
3 Creditfacility letter Company Engineering Corporation USDO0.2 billion (subject to the
Limited Beijing Branch Limited results of annual

review by the bank)

(4) Newly-signed strategic cooperation and business cooperation agreement

No.  Name of contract Signing date Contents of contract

1. In order to leverage the experience and strengths of both
parties, Party B shall cooperate preferentially with Party A in its
comprehensive real estate development projects in China, while
Party A shall provide full support to Party B in terms of development,
design, construction, etc.

2. Inorder to leverage Party A's experience in development and

Strategic cooperation : . . ) :
memorandum between Party B's experience in operation and management of commercial
1 China State Construction January 24 2020 properties, both parties shall seek in-depth cooperation on
. Engineering Corporation e comprehensive exchanges in respect of operation of office buildings

and commercial facilities, development and operation of airports,
comprehensive logistics center, metro hub TOD and other real estate
projects.

3. Inorder to leverage the development abilities of Party A and the
business network of Party B in Japan and Asia, the parties will
actively expand the development of and cooperation in projects
outside China.

Limited and Orix Corporation
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Xll. Poverty Alleviation by the Listed Company
\ Applicable [JN/A

1. Targeted poverty alleviation planning
\ Applicable [JN/A

Under the unified arrangement of the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development,
the Company and its controlling shareholder China State Construction resolutely implement the deployment
requirements of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, the State Council and SASAC for poverty
alleviation and targeted poverty alleviation. In fulfilling their social responsibilities and obligations as key central
enterprises, from 2013 to the first half of 2020, they helped alleviate poverty in Kangle County, Zhuoni County
and Kangxian County of Gansu province and have made a series of fruitful efforts in education and employment,
improved people’s livelihood and industrial development, enhanced local infrastructure and the construction of
beautiful countryside. In the first half of 2020, the Company’s controlling shareholder China State Construction
has successively convened a special party meeting on poverty alleviation, a meeting on the promotion of targeted
poverty alleviation and a video conference on poverty alleviation. At the meetings, China State Construction
reviewed the 2020 Poverty Alleviation Priorities of China State Construction and the task indicators of the central
enterprises’ responsibility for targeted poverty alleviation, in order to promote the prevention and control of the
pandemic and poverty alleviation in a coordinated manner. Based on the implementation of targeted poverty
alleviation and the results of thorough investigation on impoverished people relieved from poverty, Targeted
Poverty Alleviation Agreement and Agreement on Poverty Alleviation through Consumption were entered into with
the three counties in Gansu province, making a detailed annual plan for the targeted poverty alleviation to help
those three counties out of poverty and embark on a moderately prosperous life.

2. Summary of targeted poverty alleviation during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [JN/A

In the first half of 2020, the Company’s controlling shareholder China State Construction resolutely implemented the
“four continuing requirements” (“Z9-N3E") proposed by the central government by strengthening organizational
leadership, increasing resources investment and implementing precise strategies. The Company has invested
and assisted in the injection of poverty alleviation funds of RMB94.30 million, designated 11 subsidiaries with
advantages to directly participate in targeted poverty alleviation and another 35 subsidiaries in poverty alleviation
through consumption, assigned 15 cadres for posting. Cadres at all levels have carried out 275 surveys and
supervisions for targeted poverty alleviation. The Company has trained 1,592 cadres and technical personnel at
lower level, purchased and helped to sell agricultural products worth RMB33.28 million in poverty-stricken areas,
recruited and exported labor services of 1,258 impoverished people in the three counties of Gansu province,
contributing the “CSCEC Power” for successful poverty alleviation there. At present, all the three counties have
been relieved from poverty, and the Company has received the highest rating in the targeted poverty alleviation
assessment for central enterprises for three consecutive years.
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3. Effectiveness of targeted poverty alleviation
\ Applicable [N/A
Unit: 0°000 yuan Currency: RMB

Indicators Amount/Quantity & Implementation

I. General

3. Number of registered impoverished people relieved
from poverty with the help offered

Including: 1.1 Type of industrial projects for poverty alleviation

1.3 Amount of investment in industrial projects for poverty

- 6,554
alleviation
1.4 Number of registered impoverished people relieved 28 558
from poverty with the help offered '
2. Poverty alleviation through transfer of employment
Including: 2.1 Amount of investment in occupational skill training 720.8
2.2 Number of persons receiving vocational skill training 1654
(person/time) ’
2.3 Number of registered impoverished people getting 1 058
employed with the help offered ’
3. Poverty alleviation through relocation
Including: 3.1 Number of persons getting employed for relocated /

households with the help offered

4.3 Amount of investment in improving the educational

' . 1,172
resources in poverty-stricken areas
5. Poverty alleviation through healthcare improvement
Including: 5.1 Amount of investment in the medical and health 161 21

resources in poverty-stricken areas

[] Carry out ecological conservation
and maintenance

[] Establish compensation ways for

) ) ecological conservation
|nc|ud|ng; 6.1 Name of project T S ERIATITIER P
[] Set up specialized posts for

handling ecological and public
charity related affairs
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Indicators

7. Baseline security

Amount/Quantity & Implementation

Including: 7.1 Amount of investment in helping the elderly people,
women and left-behind children in rural areas

7.2 Number of elderly people, women and left-behind
children in rural areas receiving the help offered

7.4 Number of needy disabled people receiving the help
offered

Including: 8.1 Amount of investment in coordinated eastern-western
poverty alleviation efforts

9.3.Number of registered impoverished people relieved
from poverty with the help offered

9.4.Description about other projects

The Company organized 17 Party
branches from 6 subsidiaries to work
in pairs with Party branches from 17
impoverished villages in the three
counties of Gansu province to “carry
out the Party initiatives and promote
poverty alleviation”. Specifically,
the Company implemented
2 comprehensive projects of
safe drinking water and “seven
reconstructions” (i.e. reconstruction
of roads, houses, water systems,
electric circuits, livestock pens, toilets
and kitchens) and 2 model labor
village construction projects; trained
589 cadres at lower level; supported
43 leading enterprises and 88
cooperatives; purchased and helped
to sell agricultural products worth
RMB33.281 million in poverty-stricken
areas; and implemented other poverty
alleviation projects.

The Company has been recognized as the “Advanced Group for Assistance in Battle of Poverty Alleviation
in Gansu Province”, and has received the highest rating in the targeted poverty alleviation assessment for
central enterprises for three consecutive years. The Company was invited to share its experience at the
conference on poverty alleviation of state-owned enterprises in Gansu province, and its “CSCEC Model”
of targeted poverty alleviation was selected into the Blue Book on Corporate Poverty Alleviation released
by the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development and the series of
books entitled "Poverty Alleviation — Power of Central Enterprises” ((BR B IR - RibJIE)) compiled by the
News Center of SASAC and the People's Political Consultative Daily. Its poverty alleviation program was
included by the State Council Leading Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development in the “Top
50 Comprehensive Cases for Targeted Poverty Alleviation by Corporates” and “Top 50 Cases for Poverty

Alleviation by Volunteers”.
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Staged progress in fulfilling the social responsibility of targeted poverty alleviation
\ Applicable [JN/A

Through making full use of the characteristics of industries and the resource advantages of the targeted poverty
alleviation counties, and adhering to the combination of “blood transfusion” and “blood making”, the Company
continued to implement the “CSCEC Model” of targeted poverty alleviation through industry, employment, education,
consumption and Party-building, and made every effort to solve the significant problems to help local people have
“No Worry about Food and Clothing with Compulsory Education, Basic Medical Care and Housing Guaranteed”. With
further development of local industry for poverty alleviation, the Poverty Alleviation Demonstration Park project for
Tourism Industry in Kangxian County has fully integrated the tourism resources across the county to help extremely
impoverished villages to build a 4A-level scenic spot, and phase | of the project has been opened for trial operation
during the Labor Day holiday. Phase | of CSCEC-Zhuoni County Characteristic Industry Street was officially opened
on June 24, becoming a new tourism landmark of Zhuoni County. The Company made precise efforts in poverty
alleviation through employment and effectively alleviated the difficulties of migrant workers in work disruption caused
by the COVID-19 pandemic. Its 8 subsidiaries were mobilized to provide employment opportunities for the labor
force in the three counties. They held 23 special recruitment fairs and employed 1,258 impoverished people in
the three counties. In the education field, the Company invested RMB10.22 million in the construction of teaching
buildings and ancillary projects of Shaleng Primary School in Kangle County and the Women and Children Activity
Center in Zhuoni County, and in the construction of HD video classrooms and the purchase of desks and chairs,
computers and other teaching equipment for rural primary schools in the three counties. Through the implementation
of the “CSCEC Happiness Courses Plan” (FZF=EIRE1TH), the Company paired its 3 affiliated schools, including
Dongguan Nankai Experimental School, up with 4 primary schools (or kindergartens) in the three counties and
assigned 23 excellent teachers from those 3 schools to provide supports for them. Poverty alleviation through
consumption has also achieved effective results: The Company made use of “Haihui Youxuan (8Ef{fi%)” and
other e-commerce poverty alleviation platforms to promote the sales of stagnant agricultural products, supporting
43 leading enterprises and 88 cooperatives, creating more than 40 local agricultural product brands including
“Kangle Mushrooms (FE5R&%E)”, and purchasing and helping to sell agricultural products worth RMB33.28 million
in poverty-stricken areas, which benefited 16,000 local people. Aiming at the innovation of poverty alleviation
through Party-building, combined with the actual conditions of Party-building pair-ups of poverty-stricken villages,
the Company helped develop a comprehensive plan to win the battle against poverty. The experience of poverty
alleviation through Party-building in Hejiagou Village was demonstrated and promoted across Kangle County. The
Company has invested RMB17.27 million in the construction of 17 poverty alleviation workshops, and has driven
10,200 people to prosperity through project contracting, villagers’ share dividends and mass employment. The
Company comprehensively participated in the “3+1” initiative, invested in the “seven reconstructions” comprehensive
upgrading project of Madika impoverished village in Ka’ergin Town in Zhuoni County, installed heating equipment for
15 township health centers in Kangle County and repaired 65 valve wells, benefiting 102,000 local people.

Subsequent targeted poverty alleviation plan
\ Applicable [N/A

In the second half of 2020, the Company and its controlling shareholder will fully implement the decisions on
battle of poverty alleviation of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council,
overcome the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, determinedly complete the remaining poverty alleviation tasks,
strictly implement the “four continuing requirements” proposed by the central government to maintain the strength,
depth and extent of targeted poverty alleviation. It will also focus on the major problems and weak spots in battle
of poverty alleviation in the three counties of Gansu province, and actively explore a long-term mechanism for
solving relative poverty, so as to ensure that the impoverished people there and in the whole nation will embark
on a moderately prosperous society in all respects. The main measures include: completing the construction of
the CSCEC-Zhuoni County Characteristic Industry Demonstration Zone, Rural Ecotourism Comprehensive Service
Center Construction Project of Basong Town in Kangle County and phase Il project of CSCEC-Kangxian County
Tourism Industry Demonstration Park to help the three counties to strengthen their project operation capacity; and
researching and consolidating the poverty alleviation mechanism of 17 poverty alleviation workshops, including
mushroom cultivation cooperatives in Hejiagou Village to form a mature and stable production and marketing
business model and enhance the “hematopoietic” function of poverty alleviation through industrial development. In
addition, the Company will promote the development of CSCEC advanced skill talents training courses, make great
efforts to provide employment skills training for rural pioneers who create their wealth through entrepreneurship
and impoverished people, so as to promote the construction of model labor villages and form a long-term
model of poverty alleviation through employment. The Company will further develop the brand activities such
as “Caihong Yilu (F4Imig)” and “Inspirational Summer Camp (FIEESE)", and donate materials to the three
counties to improve the qualification of teachers in impoverished mountainous area, help impoverished students to
successfully finish their studies and block the intergenerational continuity of poverty. It will further exploit potential
of poverty alleviation through consumption by improving the online and offline sales system of agricultural products
in poverty-stricken areas to continuously promote the commercialization and brand-building of agricultural
products. It will also improve the effectiveness of poverty alleviation through Party-building by deepening the
cooperation with the local Party branches of impoverished villages to enhance the ability of local Party branches
in villages to lead impoverished people out of poverty and create wealth, and train a local poverty alleviation task
force as mainstay.
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Xlll. Convertible Corporate Bonds

[JApplicable +/ N/A

XIV. Environmental Information

(1)

()

(V)

Statement on environmental protection efforts of the highly polluting companies and their key
subsidiaries as announced by the environmental protection authority

[1Applicable v/ N/A

Statement of environmental protection efforts of companies other than highly polluting
companies

\ Applicable [JN/A

The Company and its controlling shareholder intensively study and implement the ideology on ecological
civilization proposed by President Xi Jinping, closely follow the major decision and deployment on ecological
environmental protection of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council, focus on
promoting green development and solidly promote ecological environmental protection.

The Company attaches great importance to the construction of environmental governance system. The
Company and its controlling shareholder revised the existing management system, formulated and issued
the Provisions on the Responsibility Management on Ecological Environmental Protection in CSCEC (for Trial
Implementation) based on the latest policies and regulations such as the Guiding Opinions on Building a Modern
Environmental Governance System and the newly revised Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes. They continuously strengthened the construction of
ecological and environmental protection organizations and institutions at all levels and strengthened full-time and
part-time staffing in order to continue to improve the corporate environmental management system.

The Company attaches great importance to environmental governance capacity building. The Company and
its controlling shareholder have regularly organized the investigation and rectification on potential environmental
risks to improve the risk prevention and control system and enhance the ability of emergency response to
environmental risks. They incorporated environmental management training into the overall corporate training
arrangement, organized training and education activities through special training, experience exchange, case
sharing and internal observation, strengthened the cultivation of professional talents, enhanced the ability of
environmental management personnel to perform their duties, and actively created a sound atmosphere to get
every staff member involved in and responsible for environmental risk management.

The Company attaches great importance to the pollution prevention of construction projects. For
construction projects invested by the Company, it conducted environmental impact assessment according to
law, and incorporated relevant requirements into the entire process of design and construction to ensure the
simultaneous design, construction, and delivery of pollution prevention facilities and the main works. For the
contracted construction projects, the Company strictly implemented the national and local regulatory requirements
and have in place and properly operate various pollution prevention facilities and promoted the green and
smart construction by giving priority to the use of new green materials, new technologies and new processes, to
reduce pollution and material consumption from the source, cut down energy consumption, improve recycle and
utilization efficiency of resources and ensure the effective implementation of environmental protection and pollution
prevention measures.

Explanation on reasons for no environmental information disclosure made by companies
other than highly polluting companies

[ Applicable / N/A

Explanation on the subsequent progress or changes in the environmental information
disclosure during the Reporting Period

[ Applicable +/ N/A
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XV.

XVI.

Explanation on Other Significant Matters

0] Changes in accounting policies, estimates and methods compared with the previous
accounting period and the reasons for and implications of such changes

\ Applicable [JN/A

The Ministry of Finance issued the Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13 on
December 10, 2019. The Company has implemented the Interpretation as of January 1, 2020, without retroactive
effects on the accounting in the previous years. Please refer to “Changes in accounting policies” in Note Il (34)
“Changes in accounting policies and estimates” to the financial statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT”
hereof.

(I The retrospective restatements of material accounting error corrections during the Reporting
Period and the corrected amounts, reasons for and effects of such restatements

[ Applicable +/ N/A

(1 Miscellaneous

[ Applicable + N/A
Index of Information Disclosure

During the Reporting Period, the Company published 84 documents on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(www.sse.com.cn), and related announcements were also published in the China Securities Journal, Shanghai Securities
News, Securities Daily, and Securities Times.

No. Matter Date of disclosure
CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to December 2019 January 10, 2020
2 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project January 18, 2020

CSCEC: Independent Director’s Independent Opinions on Appointment of the
Company’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Appointment of the
Company'’s Auditor for Financial Reports in 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Amendments to the Articles of Association of China State
6 Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and the Rules of Procedure of the February 04, 2020
General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Independent Directors’ Independent Opinions on Redemption of 150,000,000
Unlisted Preference Shares of the Company

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 18th Meeting of the Second Session of

10 the Board of Supervisors February 04, 2020
11 CSCEC: Articles of Association (2020 Revised Draft) February 04, 2020
12 CSCEC: First Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preference Shares February 04, 2020
13 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 34th Meeting of the Second Session of February 04, 2020

the Board

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters Regarding
14 Second Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share February 05, 2020
Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited

CSCEC: Announcement on the Second Tranche of Unlocking in 2019 in Respect of
Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares
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No. Matter Date of disclosure

18 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project February 20, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Decrease in Registered Capital of the Company after
19 Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Phase Il and Il Restricted Shares and Notice February 20, 2020
to the Creditors

CSCEC: Announcement on Distribution of Dividends for Phase | Preference Shares
from 2019 to 2020

CSCEC: Independent Directors’ Independent Opinions on Appointment of Zheng
Xuexuan as the Company'’s President

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 35th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board

CSCEC: Legal Opinions of King & Wood Mallesons on Relevant Matters Regarding
Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares under Phase I, Il and

35 IIl Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme of China State Construction Engineering April 13, 2020
Corporation Limited
36 CSCEC: Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of April 13, 2020

Restricted Shares under the Equity Incentive Scheme

CSCEC: Advance Announcement on Performance Presentation and Cash Dividend

38 Meeting of 2019 April 22, 2020
39 CSCEC: 2019 Sustainability Report April 25, 2020
40 CSCEC: Summary of 2019 Annual Report April 25, 2020
CSCEC: Announcement on Daily Related Party Transactions under the Comprehensive
41 Services Framework Agreement and the Financial Services Framework Agreement April 25, 2020
Signed with China State Construction Engineering Corporation
CSCEC: Independent Director’s Independent Opinions on Proposal of the Company’s .
42 Daily Related Party Transactions in 2020 April 25, 2020
43 CSCEC: Accounting Firm’s Audit Report on the Company’s Internal Control April 25, 2020
44 CSCEC: Independent Director’s Independent Opinions on Financing Guarantee of the April 25, 2020

Company in 2020

CSCEC: Independent Director’'s Independent Opinions on the Concurrent Position
45 of Zheng Xuexuan, Wang Yunlin, Zhao Xiaojiang, Ma Zeping, Zhou Yong and Wang April 25, 2020
Xiangming as Senior Executive of the Controlling Shareholder

CSCEC: Independent Director’s Independent Opinions on the 2019 Profit Distribution

46 Plan of the Company April 25, 2020
CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Change of the .

a7 Company’s Auditor for Internal Control in 2020 April 25, 2020

48 CSCEC: Special Report on Fund Occupation by Controlling Shareholder and Other April 25, 2020

Related Parties

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 37th Meeting of the Second Session of
the Board
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No. Matter Date of disclosure
CSCEC: Independent Director’s Prior Approval of Opinions on Proposal in Respect of

o Daily Related Party Transactions of the Company for 2020 April 25, 2020
CSCEC: Independent Director’s Independent Opinions on Change of the Company’s .
52 Auditor for Internal Control in 2020 April 25,2020
53 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 19th Meeting of the Second Session of April 25, 2020
the Board of Supervisors
54 CSCEC: Work Report of Independent Directors in 2019 April 25, 2020
55 CSCEC: Announcement on Proposed Additional Financing Guarantee in 2020 April 25, 2020
56 CSCEC: Announcement on Significant Project April 25, 2020
57 CSCEC: 2019 Annual Report April 25, 2020
58 CSCEC: 2019 Internal Control Evaluation Report April 25, 2020
59 CSCEC: Announcement on Change of Auditor for Internal Control April 25, 2020
60 CSCEC: Announcement on Profit Distribution for 2019 April 25, 2020
61 208109EC Special Notes and Special Reports on Changes in Accounting Policies for April 25, 2020
62 CSCEC: Report on the Performance of Duties of the Audit Committee of the Board of April 25, 2020
Directors for 2019
63 i of 2019

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 20th Meeting of the Second Session of

64 the Board of Supervisors April 30, 2020
65 CSCEC: Briefings of Report of Q1 2020 April 30, 2020
66 giCBEOi:réAnnouncement on Resolutions of the 38th Meeting of the Second Session of April 30, 2020

CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 39th Meeting of the Second Session of

the Board

70 CSCI_EC: Announcement on Additional Temporary Proposals at 2019 Annual General May 14, 2020
Meeting

71 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 21st Meeting of the Second Session of May 14, 2020

the Board of Supervisors

- Announcement on Resolutions of the 22nd Meeting of the Second Session of

’8 the Board of Supervisors May 29, 2020

79 CSCEC: Announcement on Resolutions of the 40th Meeting of the Second Session of May 29, 2020
the Board

80 CSCEC: Briefings on Business from January to May 2020 June 16, 2020

81 CSCEC: Announcement on Implementing Rights and Interests Distribution for 2019 June 17, 2020

82 CSCEC: Condensed Report on Change in Shareholding June 20, 2020

83 CSCEC: Holding Announcement on Changes in Equity of Shareholders Holding More June 20, 2020

Than 5%
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(I

2. Explanation on changes in shares
\ Applicable [JN/A

As of the end of the Reporting Period, there were two changes in the Company’s shares, which were caused
by the Company’s unlocking of restricted shares, repurchase and cancellation of some restricted shares. The
details are as follows:

(1) The Company completed the unlocking of the second tranche of 112,527,800 restricted shares in
phase Il restricted A share incentive scheme, changing the circulating shares subject to trading
moratorium to circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium. The Company'’s total share capital
is 41,975,629,711 shares. For details, please refer to the Announcement on the Second Tranche of
Unlocking in 2019 in Respect of Phase Il Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme and Listing of Shares
published by the Company on February 5, 2020.

(2) The Company completed the repurchase from the participants and cancellation of 10,558,200 restricted
shares that were not eligible for unlocking. Upon completion of the repurchase and cancellation,
the registered capital (and share capital) of the Company decreased by RMB10,558,200 (and
10,558,200 shares) to RMB41,965,071,511 (and 41,965,071,511 shares). For details, please refer to the
Announcement on Implementation of Repurchase and Cancellation of Part of Restricted Shares under
the Equity Incentive Scheme published by the Company on April 13, 2020.

3. The impact, if any, of changes in shares between the end of the Reporting Period and the

date of disclosure of the Interim Report on financial indicators such as earnings per share
and net asset per share

[ Applicable + N/A

4. Other disclosures that the Company deemed necessary or were required by securities

regulatory authorities

[ Applicable  N/A
Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium
\ Applicable [JN/A

Unit: Share (s)

Number of shares

Number of shares Number of shares ~ Number of new shares subject fo trading

subjecttotrading  released from trading subject to trading moratorium as
moratorium at the moratorium for the moratorium for the atthe end of the Reasonforthe  Date of release from
Name of shareholder beginning of the period Reporting Period Reporting Period Reporting Period trading moratorium trading moratorium
Participants of Resmcted 834,554 667 123086000 0 711,468,667 During !he tradyng |

Share Incentive Scheme moratorium period

Total 834,054,667 -123,086,000 0 711,468,667 / /

For details, please refer to “2. Explanation on changes in shares” in “(l) Table of changes in shares” under
“|. Changes in Share Capital” in this Section.
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II. Shareholders

0] Total number of shareholders

Total number of ordinary shareholders as at the end of the Reporting Perio

Total number of preference shareholders with voting rights restored
as at the end of the Reporting Period

() Shareholding of top 10 shareholders, top 10 holders of circulating shares (or holders of
shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at the end of the Reporting Period

Unit: Share (s)

Shareholding of top 10 shareholders

Increase/ Number of Number of Pledged or frozen
decrease shares shares held
Name of shareholder during the held as at the Percentage  subject to trading Nature of
(full name) Reporting Period  end of the period (%) moratorium Status Number shareholder
China State
Constction 0 23630695997 56.31 0 Ni o Staleowned
Engineering legal person
Corporation
Dajia Life Insurance
Co., Ltd. - Universal ~ -1,275,708,679  2,094,057,068 499 0 Nil 0 Other
Product
China Securities
Finance Corporation 0 1258300998 3.00 0 Nil 0 Other
Limited
Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company 257,288,315 1,123,207 ,462 2.68 0 Nil 0 Other
Limited
Central Huijin Asset State-owned
Management Co., 0 596,022,420 1.42 0 Nil 0
Ltd. legal person
GIC PRIVATE LIMITED 215080 287,864,145 069 0 Nl 0 Foreign
legal person
Bank of
Communications Securiies
- E Fund 50 Index -7,000,000 162,642,126 0.39 0 Nil 0 investment fund
Securities Investment
Fund
UBS AG 153147600 154848258 037 0 Nl o Foreionleca
person
Industrial & Commercial
Bank of China - SSE
index 0 Tradng 19384380 142316912 034 0 Ni o Seoues
Open-end Index investment fund
Securities Investment
Fund
Agricultural Bank of
China Limited -
Huaxia CSI State- Securities
Owned Enterprises 14,347,400 69,623,487 0.17 0 Nil 0 investment fund
Structural Adjustment
Index ETF Securities

Investment Fund



SECTION VI CHANGES IN ORDINARY SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020

Shareholdings of the top 10 holders of circulating shares not subject to trading moratorium

Number of circulating Class and number of shares

shares not subject to
Name of shareholder trading moratorium Class Number
China State Construction Engineering Corporation 23,630,695,997 RMB ordinary shares 23,630,695,997

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China - SSE Index 50 Trading Open-end
Index Securities Investment Fund

Agricultural Bank of China Limited - Huaxia CSI State-Owned Enterprises
Structural Adjustment Index ETF Securities Investment Fund

There is no related relationship or action in concert between China State

L L ) Construction Engineering Corporation, the largest shareholder of the Company,
Descriptions on the related relationship or acts in concert of the above ‘ )
shareholders and any other shareholder mentioned above. The Company is not aware of any
related relationship among the above shareholders, or whether they are parties
acting in concert.

Descriptions on the preference shareholders with voting rights restored and
number of shares held

Number of shares held by top 10 holders of shares subject to trading moratorium and trading moratorium
[ Applicable + N/A

Please refer to the relevant content of “(Il) Changes in shares subject to trading moratorium” under “I. Changes in
Share Capital” in this Section.

(1  Strategic investors or general legal persons becoming the top 10 shareholders as a result of
new share placement

[ Applicable + N/A
lll. Changes in Controlling Shareholders or De Facto Controller

[]Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION Vil INFORMATION RELATED TO PREFERENCE SHARES

\ Applicable [JN/A

I Issuance and Listing of Preference Shares during the Reporting Period
Unit: ten thousand shares
Number of
shares
permitted
Abbreviation Number tobe
Code of of preference Date Issue price Dividend of shares Date of listed for
preference shares shares of issue (in RMB) rate (%) issued listing trading Delisting date
China
360007 Construction March 2, 2015 100 58% 15000 March 20, 2015 15,000 March 2, 2020
Preference Stock 1

On March 6, 2015, upon consideration and approval at the 76th meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors of the Company, it was agreed to replace the
self-pooled upfront investment in projects to be invested through fund raising with the proceeds from preference shares of RMB12.763 billon. The Company’s
independent directors and the Board of Supervisars agreed on the matter. For details of and investment in the projects, please refer to the relevant announcements

Use progress such as CSCEC: Announcement on the Replacement of the Self-Pooled Upfront Investment in Projects to be Invested Through Fund Raising with the Proceeds from
and changes Preference Shares issued by the Company on March 10, 2015. In accordance with the commitment made in the application document for the issuance of preference
of proceeds shares, the remaining proceeds from preference shares of RMB2.212 billion were used for the category I of projects, i.e. supplementing the Company's general

working capital.

All the proceeds from the Company's initial non-public issuance of preference shares of RMB15.0 billion have been fully utiized. Please refer to the relevant content of
(a) “Preference Share” under Note V/ (43) “Other equity instruments” to the Financial Statements under Section X “FINANCIAL REPORT” hereof.

II. Preference Shareholders

{)) Total number of preference shareholders

() Miscellaneous
\ Applicable [JN/A

On February 3, 2020, the Proposal on the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preference Shares of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was approved at the 34th meeting of the second session of the
Board of Directors of the Company. On February 19, 2020, the above Proposal, the Proposal on Amendments
to the Articles of Association of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited and the Proposal
on Amendments to the Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited were approved at the 2020 First Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company. On March 2,
2020, the Company redeemed all preference shares held by all the preference shareholders of the Company.

lll. Repurchase and Conversion of the Company’s Preference Shares during the Reporting
Period

U] Repurchase

\ Applicable [JN/A

Repurchase Subjectof ~ Impacton
Codgof ~ Abbreviation price Number of shares Totalfunds Term of excising  the share
preference ~ of preference Dt of (RMB per Pricing repurchased for repurchase Source share  repurchase capital structure
shares shares epurchase share)  principle (tenthousand shares) ~ Proportion (%) (inRMB100 milion) offunds  repurchase option  of the Company
China Par value of preference shares
Construction ~ March 2, plus dividends resolved to be ity shaes o
360007 100 15,000 100 150 Selffinance March 2, 2020 CSCEC  affected, and the number

Preferred 220 paic but not yet paid in the current
Stock 1 period (RMBS.80 per share)

of preference shares is il
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VL.

(I

Explanation on matters such as the procedure for considering the repurchase of preference
shares

As approved at the 2020 First Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company convened on February 19, 2020,
the redemption and cancellation of all the issued 150,000,000 preference shares of China Construction Preferred
Stock 1 was completed on March 2, 2020. For details, please refer to relevant announcements of the Company:

1.

On February 3, 2020, the Proposal on the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preference Shares of China State
Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was approved at the 34th meeting of the second session of the
Board of Directors and the 18th meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company;

2. On February 4, 2020, the First Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preference Shares was
published by the Company;

3. On February 19, 2020, the Proposal on the Redemption of 150,000,000 Unlisted Preference Shares of China
State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was approved at the 2020 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company;

4. On February 20, 2020, the Second Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preference Shares was
published by the Company;

5. On February 21, 2020, the Third Holding Announcement on Redemption of Unlisted Preference Shares was
published by the Company;

6. On February 26, 2020, the Announcement on Redemption and Delisting of All Unlisted Preference Shares and
the Holding Announcement on the Suspension of Trading of Unlisted Preference Shares were published by the
Company;

7. On March 4, 2020, the Announcement on Results of the Redemption of All Unlisted Preference Shares was
published by the Company;

Conversion

[ Applicable + N/A

No terms for compulsory conversion to ordinary shares are provided in China Construction Preferred Stock 1.

Restoration and Exercise of Relevant Voting Rights that the Company shall Disclose if the

Voting Rights of Preference Shares Restored

[ Applicable  +/ N/A

Accounting Policies Adopted by the Company for Preference Shares and Reasons Therefor

\ Applicable [JN/A

Pursuant to requirements of the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 37 — Presentation of Financial

Instruments and the Provisions for Differentiation between Financial Instruments and Equity Instruments and Relevant

Accounting Treatment issued by the Ministry of Finance, the total amount actually received from issuance of China
Construction Preferred Stock 1 net of related transaction costs was accounted for as other equity instruments.

Miscellaneous

[]Applicable  N/A
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SECTION Vil DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Changes in Shareholding

h Changes in shareholdings of incumbent and resigned directors, supervisors and senior
management during the Reporting Period

\ Applicable [JN/A

Changes in shareholdings of incumbent directors, supervisors and senior management

Name
Zhou Naixiang

Position
Chairman

Number of
shares held at
the beginning
of the period

Number of
shares held at
the end of the

period

Unit: 0,000 shares

Changes in
shares during

Chairman of the Board
of Supervisors

Employee
representative
supervisor

Employee
representative
supervisor

Vice president,
Chief financial officer

Secretary to the
Board of Directors

the Reporting Reason for
Period changes
0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /

0 /
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Changes in shareholdings of resigned directors, supervisors and senior management
Unit: 0,000 shares

Number of Number of Changes in
shares held at  shares held at  shares during
the beginning  the end of the  the Reporting Reason for
Name Position of the period period Period changes

) Former chairman of the
Gao Lieyang Board of Supervisors 16.8 16.8 0 /

Mr. Gao Lieyang, former chairman of the Board of Supervisors, resigned as supervisor and chairman of the
second session of the Board of Supervisors in July 2020 due to job arrangement. For further details, please refer to
II. “Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.

Other explanation

[]Applicable v N/A

(I Stock options granted to directors, supervisors and senior management during the Reporting
Period

\ Applicable [JN/A
Unit: 0’000 shares

Number of
Number of newly granted Number of
restricted restricted restricted
shares held at shares during shares held
the beginning the Reporting Unlocked Locked at the end of
Name Position of the period Period shares shares  the period
Zhou Naixiang Chairman 0
ctor, Pres 0
Independent director 0 0
Independent director 0 0
ependent d
ependent
shi Zhiping Chairman of the Board 718 0 1.9 59.9 59.9
of Supervisors
Li Jianbo Supervisor 0 0 0 0 0
Tian Shifang Supervisor 0 0 0 0 0
Employee
Ning Wangchu representative 0 0 0 0 0
supervisor
Employee
Lu Yanbin representative 0 0 0 0 0
supervisor

Vice president,

Wang Yuniin Chief financial officer 0 0 0 0 0
Zhao Xiaojiang Vice president 0 0 0 0 0
Ma Zeping Vice president 0 0 0 0 0
Zhou Yong Vice president 71.8 0 1.9 59.9 59.9
Huang Kesi Vice president 71.8 0 1.9 59.9 59.9
Xue Keqing Secretary to the Board 71.8 0 1.9 59.9 59.9
of Directors
Gao Lieyang Former chairman of the 0 0 0 0 0

Board of Supervisors
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m SECTION VIII DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

\ Applicable [JN/A

Name Position Changes

Zheng Xuexuan Chairman Appointed
ol eyang .................................... e RSP p s o |gned ....................
o Zh|p|ng ....................................... Charo i BoardofSuperwso e Coed

Explanation on changes in directors, supervisors and senior management
\ Applicable [JN/A
Changes in directors: Nil

Changes in supervisors: The Board of Supervisors of the Company received the resignation report from Mr. Gao Lieyang
in July 2020. Mr. Gao Lieyang resigned as supervisor and chairman of the second session of the Board of Supervisors
due to job arrangement. For further details, please refer to the Announcement on the Resignation of a Supervisor and
Nomination of Candidates for Supervisor published by the Company on July 30, 2020. The Company convened the 23rd
meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors on July 29, 2020, at which the Proposal on the Nomination
of Candidates for Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was approved, and as
recommended by the controlling shareholder of the Company, China State Construction Engineering Corporation, the
Board of Supervisors of the Company agreed to nominate Mr. Shi Zhiping as a candidate for supervisor of the second
session of the Board of Supervisors of the Company and such proposal was submitted to the general meeting of the
Company for consideration. On August 21, 2020, the Company convened the 2020 Second Extraordinary General Meeting,
at which the Proposal on Nomination of Candidates for Supervisor of China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited was approved and Mr. Shi Zhiping was elected as a supervisor of the Company. For details, please refer to the
Announcement on Resolutions of the 2020 Second Extraordinary General Meeting of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited published by the Company on August 22, 2020. On August 24, 2020, the Company convened the
25th meeting of the second session of the Board of Supervisors, at which the Proposal on the Election of Chairman of the
Second Session of the Board of Supervisors of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited was approved.
For details, please refer to the Announcement on Resolutions of the 25th Meeting of the Second Session of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company dated August 25, 2020.

Changes in senior management: Mr. Zheng Xuexuan is a director of the second session of the Board of Directors of the
Company. On March 4, 2020, the Company convened the 35th meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors,
at which the Proposal on the Appointment of Mr. Zheng Xuexuan as President of China State Construction Engineering
Corporation Limited was approved to appoint Mr. Zheng Xuexuan as President of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the Announcement on Appointment of Company’s President published by the Company on March 5, 2020.

Miscellaneous

[] Applicable +/ N/A
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SECTION IX INFORMATION ON CORPORATE BONDS

[] Applicable +/ N/A

SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

I Review Report

\ Applicable [JN/A

Please refer to the attached hereto

II. Financial Statements

Please refer to the attached hereto

SECTION XI INDEX OF DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Financial statements signed and sealed by the Company’s legal representative (Chairman),
person-in-charge of the accounting affairs (chief financial officer) and person-in-charge of
the accounting institution (head of the accounting institution)

Index of documents The original review report with the seal of the accounting firm and signatures and seals of
available for inspection the certified public accountants

The originals of all Company documents and manuscripts of announcements publicly
disclosed in newspapers designated by the China Securities Regulatory Commission during
the Reporting Period

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang

Submission date approved by the Board of Directors: August 27, 2020

Amendments

] Applicable +/ N/A
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REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

EY:

REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2020) Zhuan Zi No. 61398485_A05

To the Shareholders of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited:

We have reviewed the interim financial statements of China State Construction Engineering Corporation Limited, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated and
company statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated and company statements of
changes in equity and the consolidated and company statements of cash flows for the six months then ended, and the
notes to the financial statements (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Interim Financial Statements”). The preparation of
interim financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express a report on review of interim financial statements based on
our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with China Certified Public Accountant Review Standard No. 2101 — Review of
Financial Statements. This standard requires us to plan and perform the review to obtain limited assurance about whether
interim financial statements are free from material misstatements. A review is limited primarily to procedures as enquiry of
entity’s personnel and analytical review procedures applied to the financial information and thus provides less assurance
than an audit. We have not performed an audit, and therefore we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying Interim Financial
Statements are not prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
cannot present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and company financial position as at 30 June 2020, and
financial performance and cash flows for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Zhou Ying
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yang Shujuan

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Shen Yan

Beijing, China 27 August 2020
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB
ASSETS Notes V 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Current assets

274,235,275

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Notes V 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB
For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019
Revenue 49 728,187,767 685,419,315

Including: Share of profit of associates and

joint ventures 3,090,860 2,527,317
Losses from derecognition of financial
assets measured at amortised cost (853,615) (1,189,369)

osses) arising from changes in fair value

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (531,092) (510,837)
Attributable to owners of the parents 45 (353,868) (443,507)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss (281,936) 442,681
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (37,920) 170
Changes in fair value of investments in
other equity instruments (244,016) 442,511
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss (71,932) (886,188)
Shares of other comprehensive losses that will be
reclassified subsequently into profit or loss by the
investee under equity method (45,448) (71,302)
Changes in fair value of other debt investments (7,914) 6,736
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency
financial statements (18,570) (821,622)

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB
For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019

1.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from sales of goods and rendering of
services

Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets,

intangible assets and other long-term assets 407,802 1,621,360
Net cash receipts from disposal of subsidiaries and

other business units - 54,354
Net cash receipts from acquisition of subsidiaries and

other business units 428,856 435,601
Cash receipts relating to other investing activities 64 10,196,002 8,442,032
Sub-total cash inflows from investing activities 15,590,200 16,857,114
Cash payments to acquire fixed assets, intangible

assets and other long-term assets 13,315,435 10,300,068
Cash payments for investments 4,275,524 5,810,863
Net cash payments to acquire subsidiaries and

other business units 1,154,210 -
Cash payments relating to other investing activities 64 8,908,619 13,183,673
Sub-total cash outflows from investing activities 27,653,788 29,294,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months For the six months
Notes V ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019
3.CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from capital contributions 24,088,660 8,834,221
Including: Cash receipts from capital contributions from
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries 6,085,792 8,834,221
Cash receipts from borrowings 140,131,048 125,291,336
Cash receipts from issuance of bonds 13,199,667 6,120,000
Cash receipts relating to other financing activities 64 10,954,550 9,654,409
Sub-total cash inflows from financing activities 188,373,925 149,899,966
Repayments of borrowings 77,458,739 71,971,016
Cash payments for distribution of dividends or profit and
interest expenses 19,550,808 19,434,170
Including: Dividends or profit paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries 1,235,314 3,617,852
Cash payments to acquire non-controlling interest of
subsidiaries - 190,204
Other cash payments relating to financing activities 64 26,185,724 7,956,262
Sub-total cash outflows from financing activities 123,195,271 99,551,652
Net cash flows from financing activities 65,178,654 50,348,314
4. EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 388,728 100,277
5.NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (17,141,412) (44,885,597)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period 271,727,808 298,810,194
6.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF
THE PERIOD 65 254,586,396 253,924,597
The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB
ASSETS Notes XV 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Current assets

23,025,343

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET (continued)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY Notes XV 30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Current liabilities

The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB
For the six months For the six months
Notes XV ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019
Revenue 4 40,706,237 48,753,929

Including: Share of losses of associates and
joint ventures (71,348) (155,918)

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss 23,970 -

Changes in fair value of investment in other equity

instruments 24,990 -
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss (102,754) (8,540)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency
financial statements (102,754) (8,540)
Total comprehensive income 22,294,132 11,092,408

The financial statements have been signed by:
Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019

1.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and

other long-term assets 1,291 337
R C ashrecelpts relatmgtoothermvestmgact|V|t|es ........................................................... 1,552,106 ..................... 2454012
R S ubtotalcashmflows fromlnvestlngactlvmes ........................................................ 20,611,427 ................... 15266625
....... C ashpaymentstoacqulreflxedassetsmtanglbleassetsand

other long-term assets 79,426 25,888
R C ashpaymentsforlnvestments ......................................................................................... 4,267,082 ..................... 4021466
R C ashpaymentsrelatmgtoother|nvest|ngact|V|t|es ........................................................... 505,640 ..................... 2730270
R S ub-totalcashoutflowsfrommvestlngactlwtles ........................................................ 4,852,148 ..................... 6777624
R Net cash flowsfrom |nvest|ngact|v|t|es ...................................................................... 15,759,279 ..................... 8489001

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

For the six months For the six months
ended 30 June 2020 ended 30 June 2019

3.CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from capital constructions 10,000,000 -
R ashrece|ptsfromborrowmgs ........................................................................................ e S o0 000
e e e|p : srelatmgtooth . f|nanc|ngact|v|t|es ................................................................ 18,995 ........................ 94112 .
e ubtotalcash|nf|owsfromf|nanc|ngactlvmes .............................................................. e G unt s
- Repaymentsofborrowmgs ............................................................................................... e T o0s 000
....... . ashpaymentsfordlstrlbutlonofd|V|dendsorprof|tand

interest expenses 9,723,783 9,176,865

4.EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The financial statements have been signed by:

Chairman: Zhou Naixiang Chief Finance Officer: Wang Yunlin Head of the Finance Department: Tian Wei

The accompanying notes to financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

China State Construction Engineering Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) was established as a
joint stock limited company under the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) laws and regulations
in accordance with the approval of Guo Zi Gai Ge
[2007] No. 1495 issued by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council (“SASAC”) on 6 December 2007. The
founder-members of the Company are China State
Construction Engineering Corporation (“CSCEC”),
China National Petroleum Corporation, Baosteel
Group Corporation and Sinochem Corporation (the
latter three are called by “other founder-members”).

In November 2017, after approval by SASAC,
CSCEC was transformed from a wholly
people-owned enterprise to a wholly state-owned
company. After the transformation, the Company’s
name was changed to China State Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“CSCEC”), and its contributor
was SASAC who represents the State Council.

The Company was established on 10 December
2007 in Beijing, PRC, and its head quarter is
situated in Beijing, PRC. The parent company and
the ultimate parent company of the Company is
CSCEC. The Company was listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (“A shares”) for trading in July
2009. As at 30 June 2020, total share capital of
the Company was approximately RMB42 billion at
the par value of RMB1.00 per share. As at 30 June
2020, CSCEC held approximately 23,630,700,000
shares, representing 56.31% of the total share
capital.

The approved scope of business of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
includes survey, design, construction, installation,
consultation, development, decoration service,
manufacturing, wholesale, retail and imports and
exports. The core operations include: offering
a full range of construction-related services to
foreign and domestic civil engineering and building
construction such as construction, installation
and consultation, investment and construction of
infrastructure projects, foreign and domestic real
estate investment and development, architecture
and infrastructure construction survey and design,
decoration engineering, landscape engineering
design and construction, industrial investment,
contracting for foreign projects in PRC, import and
export, production and distribution of construction
materials and other non-metal mineral products,
construction-related metalwork and tools and
construction engineering and drilling equipment,
and financial business such as lending and
borrowing within the Group.

These financial statements are authorised for issue
by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 August
2020.

Please refer to Note VI for details of significant
subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope
in the current year. The Group does not have
any significant subsidiaries newly included in
the consolidation scope or excluded from the
consolidation scope in the current year.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises — Basic Standard and specific
accounting standards, implementation guidance,
interpretations, other relevant regulations issued
subsequently by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”)
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “ASBESs”)
and the disclosure requirements in the Preparation
Convention of Information Disclosure by Companies
Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 — General
Rules on Financial Reporting issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission.

The financial statements have been presented on a
going concern basis.

Significant accounting policies and
estimates

Specific accounting policies and accounting
estimates were decided by the Group according to
the characteristics of its production and operation,
mainly including measurement of expected
credit losses on receivables and contract assets,
valuation method of inventories, recognition and
measurement of revenue, etc.

Statement of compliance with ASBEs

The consolidated and company financial statements
present fairly and fully the financial position of the
Group and the Company as at 30 June 2020, and
the financial performance and the cash flows for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 in accordance with
ASBEs.

Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January
to 31 December of each calendar year.

Functional currency

The Group’s reporting and presentation currency is
Renminbi (“RMB”).

Each subsidiary, joint venture or associate of the
Group determines its own functional currency based
on the primary economic environment in which it
operates. The financial statements are presented in
RMB.

Business combinations

Business combinations are classified into business
combinations involving entities under common
control and business combinations not involving
entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

A business combination involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after
the combination, and that control is not transitory.
In a business combination involving entities under
common control, the entity that, at the combination
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date, obtains control of another combining entity
is the absorbing entity, while that other combining
entity is the entity being absorbed. The combination
date is the date on which the absorbing entity
effectively obtains control on the entity being
absorbed.

The assets and liabilities (including goodwill arising
from the ultimate controlling party’s acquisition of
the entity being absorbed) that are obtained by the
absorbing entity in a business combination involving
entities under common control shall be measured
on the basis of their carrying amounts in the
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
at the combination date. The difference between
the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and
the carrying amount of the consideration paid for
the combination (or the aggregate face value of
shares issued as consideration) shall be adjusted to
share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
premium is not sufficient to absorb the difference,
any excess shall be adjusted against retained
earnings.

Business combinations not involving entities
under common control

A business combination not involving entities under
common control is a business combination in which
all of the combining entities are not ultimately
controlled by the same party or parties both
before and after the combination. In a business
combination not involving entities under common
control, the entity that, on the acquisition date,
obtains control of another combining entity is
the acquirer, while that other combining entity is
the acquiree. The acquisition date is the date on
which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the
acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired in the business combination at
their fair values on the acquisition date.

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured at
cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred (or the fair
value of the equity securities issued) and any fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Where the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred (or the fair value of the
equity securities issued) and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is lower than the Group’s interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets,
the Group reassesses the measurement of the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities and the fair value of the
consideration transferred (or the fair value of the
equity securities issued), together with the fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree. If after that reassessment, the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred
(or the fair value of the equity securities issued)
and the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is still lower than the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s net identifiable
assets, the Group recognises the remaining
difference in profit or loss.

Where a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control is achieved
through multiple transactions in stages, the
long-term equity investments held in the acquiree
before the acquisition date is remeasured at fair
value at the acquisition date,with any difference
between fair value and carrying amount included

5.

in investment income for the current period.
Where the long-term equity investments held in
the acquiree before the acquisition date relates to
other comprehensive income measured under the
equity method,the accounting treatment shall be
conducted on the same basis as the direct disposal
of related assets or liabilities by the invested
entity,other changes in shareholders’ equity except
net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution shall be transferred to income
for the period in which the acquisition date falls.
Where the equity instrument investments held in
the acquiree before the acquisition date,the equity
instrument investment accumulates changes in
the fair value of other comprehensive income into
retained earnings before the acquisition date.

Consolidated financial statements

The scope of the consolidated financial statements,
which include the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries, is determined
on the basis of control.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies of a
subsidiary are different from those of the Company
have made adjustments to the financial statements
of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting policies, Where the accounting period of
a subsidiary is different from that of the Company,
the Company has adjusted the financial statements
of the subsidiary based on the Company’s own
accounting period. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Where the loss for the current period attributable
to non-controlling interests of a subsidiary exceeds
the non-controlling interests of the opening balance
of equity of the subsidiary, the excess shall still be
allocated against the non-controlling interests.

For subsidiaries acquired through business
combinations not involving entities under common
control, the financial performance and cash flows
of the acquiree shall be consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date such control
ceases. While preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Group shall adjust the subsidiary’s
financial statements, on the basis of the fair values
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business
combinations involving entities under common
control, the financial performance and cash
flows of the entity being absorbed shall be
consolidated from the beginning of the period in
which the combination occurs. While preparing the
comparative financial statements, adjustments are
made to related items in the financial statements
for the prior period as if the reporting entity after
the combination has been in existence since the
date the ultimate controlling party first obtained the
control.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if any changes in facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control.

A change in the non-controlling interests, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the accounting treatment of a transaction is
inconsistent in the financial statements at the Group
level and at the Company or its subsidiary level,
adjustment will be made from the perspective of the
Group.
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Classification of joint arrangement and
joint operation

A joint arrangement is classified as either a joint
operation or a joint venture. A joint operation is
a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint
operators have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

A joint operator recognises the following items
in relation to its interest in a joint operation: its
solely-held assets, and its share of any assets held
jointly; its solely-assumed liabilities, and its share of
any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue from the
sale of its share of the output arising from the joint
operation; its share of the revenue from the sale of
the output by the joint operation; its solely-incurred
expenses, and its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and
bank deposits that can be readily withdrawn on
demand. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates foreign currency transactions
into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded,
on initial recognition in the functional currency using
the spot exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions in which the transactions occur.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the spot exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss, with the exception
of those relating to foreign currency borrowings
specifically for the construction and acquisition
of qualifying assets, which are capitalised in
accordance with the guidance for capitalisation
of borrowing costs. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions, and the
amount denominated in the functional currency
is not changed. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income depending on the nature of
the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their
functional currency amounts into RMB when
preparing the financial statements as follows: as at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities
are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date, and equity items other
than “unappropriated profit” are translated at the
spot exchange rates at the dates of transactions;

revenue and expense items in profit or loss are
translated using the spot exchange rates prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in profit or loss. If the disposal only
involves a portion of a particular foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss on a pro-rata basis.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of
foreign subsidiaries are translated using the spot
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of cash
flows. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash
is separately presented as an adjustment item in
the statement of cash flows.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition and derecognition

The Group recognises a financial asset or a
financial liability when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet)
when:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset have expired; or

(2) the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset,
or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled, or expired. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised using
trade date accounting. Regular way purchases and
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The trade date is the date that the
Group committed to purchase or sell a financial
asset.
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Classification and measurement of financial
assets

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All affected related financial assets will be
reclassified only if the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at fair value on
initial recognition, but accounts receivable or
notes receivable arising from the sale of goods or
rendering of services that do not contain significant
financing components or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component
due within one year, are initially measured at the
transaction price.

For financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, relevant transaction costs are directly
recognised in profit or loss, and transaction costs
relating to other financial assets are included in the
initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Debt investments measured at amortised cost

The Group measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met: the
financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met: the financial asset
is held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling; the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income is recognised using the effective interest
method. The interest income, impairment losses
and foreign exchange revaluation are recognised in
profit or loss. The remaining fair value changes are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to profit or loss.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

The Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments which are not held for trading as
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Only the relevant
dividend income (excluding the dividend income
explicitly recovered as part of the investment
cost) is recognised in profit or loss. Subsequent
changes in the fair value are included in other
comprehensive income, and no impairment
allowance is made. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the accumulated gains or losses
previously included in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

The financial assets other than the above financial
assets measured at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Such financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are, on initial
recognition, classified into financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, or other financial
liabilities. For financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, relevant transaction costs are directly
recognised in profit or loss, and transaction costs
relating to other financial liabilities are included in
the initial recognition amounts.

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss consist of financial liabilities held for
trading (including derivative instruments that
are financial liabilities) and those designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivative instruments that are financial
liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair
value. All changes in fair value of such financial
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss. Financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently measured at fair value
and gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented
in other comprehensive income. If gains or losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income will lead
to or expand accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
the Group will include all the changes in fair value
(including the amount affected by changes in the
Group’s own credit risk) of such financial liabilities
in profit or loss.
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities mainly consist of notes
payable, accounts payable, Other payables,
borrowings and bonds payable. After initial
recognition, financial liabilities deducted transaction
costs are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Those with a maturity
of less than one year (including one year) are
disclosed as other current liabilities; those with
a maturity of more than one year but due within
one year (including one year) from the balance
sheet date are disclosed as current portion of
non-current liabilities; the rest are disclosed as
other non-current liabilities.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part
of it) when the underlying present obligation (or part
of it) is discharged. When the Group derecognises
a financial liability or a part of it, it recognises the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability (or part of the financial liability)
derecognised and the consideration paid (including
any non-cash assets transferred or new financial
liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of financial
instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument that is
traded in an active market is determined at the
quoted price in the active market. The fair value
of a financial instrument that is not traded in an
active market is determined by using a valuation
technique. During valuation, the Group adopts
the valuation technique that is applicable in the
current circumstances and contains sufficient
available data and other information supports,
chooses inputs with features of assets or liabilities
that are consistent with those market participants
considered in related transactions of assets or
liabilities, and gives priority to relevant observable
inputs. When relevant observable inputs are not
available or feasible, unobservable inputs are
adopted.

Impairment of financial assets

Based on the expected credit losses (“ECLs"),
the Group recognises an allowance for ECLs
for the financial assets measured at amortised
cost, debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets, and
financial guarantee contracts.

The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information related to historical events, current
condition and forecast of future economic position
which are available, and uses the risk of default
as the weight to calculate the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flow
receivable and the expected cash flow received
probability-weighted amount to confirm expected
credit losses.

For accounts receivable and contract assets
excluding significant financing components, the
Group applies the simplified approach to recognise
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs.

For accounts receivable and contract assets
including significant financing components and
lease receivable, the Group applies the simplified
approach to recognise a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs.

Except for financial assets which apply the
simplified approach as mentioned above, other
financial assets, and financial guarantee contracts,

the Group assesses whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition at
each balance sheet date. If the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
(stage 1), the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs by the Group
and the interest income is calculated according
to the carrying amount and the effective interest
rate; if the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but are not credit-impaired
(stage 2), the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs by the Group and
the interest income is calculated according to the
carrying amount and the effective interest rate;
if such financial assets are credit-impaired after
initial recognition (stage 3), the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs by the Group and the interest income is
calculated according to the amortised cost and the
effective interest rate. If the credit risk of financial
instruments is low at the balance sheet date,
the Group assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, and
measures at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

The Group assesses the expected credit loss
of financial instruments based on individual and
portfolio. Taking into account the credit risk
characteristics of different customers, the group
evaluates the expected credit loss of accounts
receivable and contract assets on the basis of
aging portfolio.

In case the ECL of individually assessed accounts
receivable and contract assets cannot be evaluated
with reasonable cost, the Group divides accounts
receivable and contract assets into certain
groupings based on credit risk characteristics, and
calculates the ECL for the groupings. Basis for
determining groupings is as follows:

Grouping 1 of
accounts receivable

due from government
authorities and central
state-owned enterprises

Grouping 2 of due from overseas
accounts receivable enterprises

Grouping 3 of due from other customers
accounts receivable

The Group, with consideration to historical credit
loss experience, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, prepares the
cross-reference between the ageing of accounts
receivable and the lifetime ECL rate, and calculates
the ECL of accounts receivable that are classified
into groupings.

Grouping 1 of contract
assets related to

Grouping 2 of contract
assets related to

Grouping 3 of contract
assets related to

Grouping 4 of contract  PPP projects which are
assets related to managed in the model
of financial assets

Grouping 5 of contract  primary land development
assets related to projects

Grouping 6 of contract
assets related to

engineering projects
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Based on the exposure at default and the lifetime
ECL rate, the Group calculates the ECL of contract
assets that are classified into groupings with
consideration to historical credit losses experience,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

For long-term receivables arising from sales of
goods or rendering of services in the ordinary
course of the activities, such as receivables for PPP
projects, receivables for BT projects, receivables
for primary land development, and receivables for
other infrastructure projects, the Group calculates
the ECL through default risk exposure and the
lifetime ECL rate, on the basis of historical credit
losses experience, the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Based
on the exposure at default and the 12-month/
lifetime ECL rate, the Group calculates the ECL
of other long-term receivables with consideration
of historical credit losses experience, the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

In case the ECL of other receivables individually
assessed cannot be evaluated with reasonable
cost, the Group divides other receivables
into certain groupings based on credit risk
characteristics, and calculates the ECL for the
groupings. Basis for determining groupings is as
follows:

Grouping 1 of other guarantees, deposits and
receivables related to reserves receivables

Grouping 2 of other advances receivable
receivables related to

Grouping 3 of other other receivables
receivables related to

The Group, on the basis of the exposure at default
and the 12-month/lifetime ECL rate, calculates the
ECL of other receivables that are classified into
groupings with consideration to historical credit
losses experience, the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group recognises the loss provision for
receivables and contract assets made or reversed
into profit or loss for the current period. For
debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group adjusts other
comprehensive income while the impairment loss
or gain is recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.

The Group’s judgment criteria for a significant
increase of credit risk, the definition of
credit-impaired assets, and the assumptions on
the measurement of expected credit losses are
disclosed in Note VIII, 3.

When the Group no longer reasonably expects to
be able to recover all or part of the contractual cash
flow of a financial asset, the Group directly writes
down the carrying amount of the financial asset.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right
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to offset the recognised amounts; and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts
that require a payment to be made by the issuer to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are measured,
on initial recognition, at fair value. For financial
guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, they are, after initial recognition, subsequently
measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of
provisions for ECLs at the balance sheet date,
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the guidance for revenue recognition.

Transfer of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset to the transferee. A financial
asset is not derecognised when the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset.

When the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the financial asset, it either (i) derecognises the
financial asset and recognises the assets and
liabilities created in the transfer when it has not
retained control of the asset; or (ii) continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement, in which case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the financial asset and the guarantee
amount. The guarantee amount is the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Inventories

The inventories include inventories of raw materials,
work in progress, finished goods, turnover
materials, properties under development and
completed properties for sale.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, laid
down cost, costs of conversion and other costs.

Cost is determined using the first-in first-out or
weighted average method when raw materials,
turnover materials, work in progress and finished
goods are delivered. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and systematically allocated production
overhead based on the normal production capacity.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

11.

Properties under development and completed
properties for sale mainly include costs for
acquiring the land use rights, expenditures of
basic facilities, expenditures of construction
and installation work, borrowing costs incurred
before the completion of development. Properties
under development will be carried forward to the
completed properties for sale according to the
actual cost after the completion of the project,
completed properties for sale are measured at
actual cost.

Turnover materials are amortised based upon
numbers of usage.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
inventories are written down below cost to net
realisable value and the write-down is recognised
in profit or loss if the cost is higher than the net
realisable value. When the circumstances that
previously caused the inventories to be written
down below cost no longer exist, in which case
the net realisable value of inventories becomes
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of
the write-down is reversed. The reversal is limited
to the amount of the original write-down, and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes.
For inventories with large quantity and low values,
provision for decline in value is made based on
categories of inventories, and other inventories are
written down item by category. Items of inventories
relating to the same product line that have the same
or similar end uses or purposes, are produced
and marketed in the same geographical area, and
cannot be practicably evaluated separately from
other items in that product line, are grouped and
written down on an aggregate basis.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments include equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.

A long-term equity investment is initially measured
at its initial investment cost on acquisition. For
a long-term equity investment acquired through
a business combination involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment is the acquirer’s share
of the carrying value of shareholder’s equity of the
party being absorbed at the combination date. For
the difference between the initial investment cost
and the book value of the merger consideration,
the capital reserve shall be adjusted (if it is not
enough to offset, the retained earnings shall be
offset); for other comprehensive income before the
merger date, the accounting treatment shall be
conducted on the same basis as the direct disposal
of relevant assets or liabilities by the investee, The
shareholder’s equity recognized due to changes
in other shareholders’ equity of the investee other
than net profit and loss, other comprehensive
income and profit distribution shall be transferred
to the current profit and loss when the investment
is disposed of; among them, the long-term equity
investment after disposal shall be carried forward
proportionally, and that converted into financial
instruments after disposal shall be carried forward
in full.For a long-term equity investment through
a business combination not involving entities
under common control, the initial investment

cost of the long-term equity investment is the
cost of combination (for a business combination
not involving entities under common control
achieved in stages that involves multiple exchange
transactions, the initial investment cost is carried
at the aggregate of the carrying amount of the
acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree and the new investment cost incurred on
the acquisition date), the cost of combination is the
aggregate of the fair values, at the acquisition date,
of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity securities issued by the acquirer; For
other comprehensive income held before the
acquisition date and recognized by the equity
method, the accounting treatment shall be carried
out on the same basis as the direct disposal.
relevant assets or liabilities by the investee, and the
shareholder’s equity recognized due to changes in
other shareholders’ equity of the investee other than
net profit and loss, other comprehensive income
and profit distribution, When the investment is
disposed, it is transferred to the current profit and
loss; among them, the long-term equity investment
after disposal is carried forward proportionally, and
the financial instrument converted after disposal is
carried forward in full; the accumulated fair value
change of the equity investment held before the
purchase date as a financial instrument included
in other comprehensive income is transferred
to retained earnings when accounting by cost
method. For a long-term equity investment acquired
otherwise than through a business combination, the
initial investment cost is determined as follows: for
a long-term equity investment acquired by cash,
the initial investment cost is the actual purchase
price paid and direct costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the long-term equity investment; for a
long-term equity;investment acquired by the issue
of equity securities, the initial investment cost is the
fair value of the securities issued;for a long-term
equity investment acquired through exchange of
non-monetary assets, the initial investment cost
is determined in accordance with Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises No. 7 — Exchange
of Non-monetary Assets; for a long-term equity
investment acquired through debt restructuring, the
initial investment cost is determined in accordance
with Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises
No. 12 — Debt Restructuring.

For a long-term equity investment where the
Company can exercise control over the investee,
the long-term investment is accounted for using the
cost method in the Company’s individual financial
statements. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity
investment is measured at its initial investment
cost. When additional investment is made or the
investment is recouped, the cost of long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. Cash dividends
or profit distributions declared by the investee are
recognised as investment income in profit or loss.

The equity method is adopted when the Group
has joint control, or exercises significant influence
over the investee. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control with other parties over those policies.
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Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date, no adjustment is made to the initial investment
cost. Where the initial investment cost is less
than the Group’s interest in the fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date, the difference is charged to profit or loss,
and the cost of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted accordingly.

Under the equity method, after it has acquired a
long-term equity investment, the Group recognises
its share of the investee’s profit or loss, as well as
its share of the investee’'s other comprehensive
income, as investment income or loss and other
comprehensive income, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the investment accordingly. The Group
recognises its share of the investee's profit or
loss after making appropriate adjustments to the
investee’s profit or loss based on the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable assets at the acquisition
date, using the Group’s accounting policies
and periods. Unrealised profits and losses from
transactions with its joint ventures and associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures
(except for assets that constitute a business)
(However, any loss arising from such transactions
which are attributable to an impairment loss shall
be recognised at its entirety). The carrying amount
of the investment is reduced based on the Group’s
share of any profit distributions or cash dividends
declared by the investee. The Group’s share of net
losses of the investee is recognised to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment together
with any long-term interests that in substance form
part of its net investment in the investee is reduced
to zero, except that the Group has the obligations
to assume further losses. The Group’s share of
the investee’s equity changes, other than those
arising from the investee’s profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or profit distribution, is
recognised in the Group’s equity, and the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment is
adjusted accordingly.

Upon disposal of a long-term equity investment,
the difference between the proceeds actually
received and the carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss. For a long-term equity investment
accounted for using the equity method, when the
Group discontinues using the equity method due
to disposal, all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are accounted for
on the same basis as would have been required if
the investee had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Equity previously recognised

Buildings
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resulting from the investee’s equity changes other
than profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and profit distribution is reclassified to profit or loss
in its entirety. When the Group continues to use the
equity method, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are accounted for
on the same basis as would have been required if
the investee had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities and reclassified to profit or loss
on a pro-rata basis. Equity previously recognised
resulting from the investee’s equity changes other
than profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution is reclassified to profit or loss on a
pro-rata basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
Investment properties include land use rights
leased out, land use rights held for transfer upon
capital appreciation, and buildings leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at cost.
If the economic benefits relating to an investment
property will probably flow in and the cost can
be reliably measured, subsequent costs incurred
for the property are included in the cost of the
investment property. Otherwise, subsequent costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group uses the cost model for the subsequent
measurement of its investment properties.Buildings
and land use rights are depreciated or amortised
according to their service life and estimated net
residual values rate.

Fixed assets

A fixed asset is recognised only when the economic
benefits associated with the asset will probably
flow into the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditures
incurred for a fixed asset that meets the recognition
criteria shall be included in the cost of the fixed
asset, and the carrying amount of the component
of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognised. Otherwise, such expenditures are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost
of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase
price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use.

In addition to the safety production expenses
extracted, depreciation of fixed assets is calculated
using the straight-line method. The useful lives,
estimated net residual value rates and annual
depreciation rates of each category of the fixed
assets are as follows:

Estimated Annual
Useful life net residual depreciation
value rate rate

8 to 35 years 0% to 5% 2.71% to 12.50%

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method

applied at least at each year end, and make adjustments if necessary.
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Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined
according to the actual expenditures incurred
for the construction, including all necessary
construction expenditures incurred during the
construction period, borrowing costs that shall be
capitalised before the construction is ready for its
intended use,and other relevant expenditures.

An item of construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets when the asset is ready for its intended
use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs
incurred by the Group in connection with the
borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs include
interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums
related to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings, and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised. The amounts of
other borrowing costs incurred are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time of acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences
only when all of the following conditions are
satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the asset have been
incurred;
(2) borrowing costs have been incurred; and

(3) activities that are necessary to acquire,
construct or produce the asset for its
intended use or sale have been undertaken.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced gets ready for its intended use or sale.
Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognised in profit or loss.

During the capitalisation period, the amount
of interest eligible for capitalisation for each
accounting period shall be determined as follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of interest eligible
for capitalisation is the actual interest
costs incurred on that borrowing for the
period less any bank interest earned from
depositing the borrowed funds before being
used on the asset or any investment income
on the temporary investment of those funds;
or

(2) where funds are borrowed generally for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a weighted
average interest rate on the general
borrowings to the weighted average of the
excess of the cumulative expenditures on
the asset over the expenditures on the asset
funded by the specific borrowings.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during periods in which the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset is suspended
abnormally by activities other than those necessary
to get the asset ready for its intended use or sale,
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when the suspension is for a continuous period
of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs incurred
during these periods are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss until the acquisition, construction or
production is resumed.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognised only
when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.
However, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination not involving entities under common
control with a fair value that can be measured
reliably are recognised separately as intangible
assets and initially measured at the fair value at the
date of acquisition.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined
according to the period over which it is expected
to generate economic benefits for the Group. An
intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the asset is expected to generate
economic benefits for the Group.

Land use rights that are purchased by the Group
are accounted for as intangible assets.Buildings,
such as plants that are developed and constructed
by the Group, and relevant land use rights are
accounted for as fixed assets and intangible assets,
respectively. Payments for the land and buildings
purchased are allocated between the land use
rights and the buildings; they are accounted for as
fixed assets if they cannot be reasonably allocated.

The Group is involved in a number of service
franchising arrangements. The Group carries
out infrastructure projects for the licensor in
accordance with the preconditions set by the
licensor in exchange for the right to operate the
relevant assets.Prescribed in the contract after
the completion of the infrastructure, the group is
engaged in business have rights to access the
service object for a certain period of time of charge,
charge amount is uncertain, this right does not
constitute an unconditional charge can determine
the amount of money or the rights of other
financial assets, while affirm income confirmation
of intangible assets.The Group will present
the franchise acquired under such franchise
arrangement as an intangible asset on its balance
sheet.Upon completion of the relevant infrastructure
project under the franchise arrangement, the
franchise shall be amortized on a straight-line basis
during the franchise period.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is
amortised using the straight-line method over its
useful life. For an intangible asset with a finite
useful life, the Group reviews the useful life and
amortisation method at least at each year end and
makes adjustment if necessary.

The Group classifies the expenditures on an
internal research and development project into
expenditure on the research phase and expenditure
on the development phase. Expenditure on the
research phase is recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. Expenditure on the development
phase is capitalised only when the Group can
demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale; (ii) the
intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits (among other
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things, the Group can demonstrate the existence
of a market for the output of the intangible asset
or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset);
(iv) the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the development
and the ability to use or sell the intangible
asset; and (v) the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during the development phase. Expenditure on the
development phase which does not meet these
above criteria is recognised in profit or loss when
incurred.

Impairment of assets

The Group determines the impairment of assets,
other than the impairment of inventories, contract
assets and contract cost assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, using the following
methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists that an
asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset and performs
impairment testing. Goodwill arising from a
business combination and an intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at
least at each year end, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets that have not been ready for their
intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis unless it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the individual asset, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the asset group to which
the asset belongs. Identification of an asset group
is based on whether major cash inflows generated
by the asset group are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset
group is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount by
the Group. The reduction in the carrying amount is
treated as an impairment loss and recognised in
profit or loss. A impairment allowance loss of the
asset is recognised accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying
amount of goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated from the acquisition date
on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups unless it is impossible to allocate to the
related asset groups, in which case it is allocated
to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each
of the related asset groups or sets of asset groups
is an asset group or a set of asset groups that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination and shall not be larger than a
reportable segment determined by the Group.

When testing an asset group (a set of asset
groups) to which goodwill has been allocated
for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group
(set of asset groups), excluding the amount of
goodwill allocated, for impairment, i.e., the Group
determines and compares the recoverable amount
with the related carrying amount and recognises
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests
the asset group (set of asset groups), including
goodwill, for impairment, the carrying amount of
the related asset group (set of asset groups) is
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compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying
amount of the asset group (set of asset groups)
is higher than its recoverable amount, the amount
of the impairment loss is firstly used to reduce the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the
asset group (set of asset groups), and then used to
reduce the carrying amount of other assets (other
than the goodwill) within the asset group (set of
asset groups), on a pro-rata basis of the carrying
amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognised,
it cannot be reversed in subsequent accounting
periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include the
expenditure for improvements to fixed assets held
under operating leases, and other expenditures that
have been incurred but should be recognised as
expenses over more than one year in the current
and subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid
expenses are amortised on the straight-line basis
over the expected beneficial period and are
presented at actual expenditure net of accumulated
amortisation.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits refer to all forms of consideration
or compensation other than share-based payments
given by the Group in exchange for services
rendered by employees or for termination of
employment. Employee benefits include short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits,
termination benefits and other long-term employee
benefits. Benefits given by the Group to an
employee’s spouse, children and dependents,
family members of deceased employees and other
beneficiaries are also employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

The short-term employee benefits actually occurred
are recognised as a liability in the accounting
period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the
profit or loss for the current period or the cost of
relevant assets.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution
plan)

The employees of the Group participate in a
pension scheme and unemployment insurance
managed by the local government, and an
enterprise pension fund, the corresponding
expenses shall be included in the cost of related
assets or profit or loss.

Post-employment benefits (defined benefit
plan)

The Group operates a defined benefit pension
plan which requires contributions to be made to
a separately administered fund. The benefits are
unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements arising from the defined benefit
pension plan, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to equity through
other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss
at the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
and the date that the Group recognises
restructuring-related costs or termination benefits.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Group recognises the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation under administrative
expenses, and finance expenses in the income
statement: service costs comprising current service
costs, past service costs, gains and losses on
settlements; net interest comprising interest income
on plan assets, interest costs on the defined benefit
obligation and interest on the effect of the asset
ceiling.

Termination benefits

The Group provides termination benefits to
employees and recognises an employee
benefits liability for termination benefits, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss, at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits resulting from an employment
termination plan or a curtailment proposal and when
the Group recognise costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Early retirement benefits

The Group offers early retirement benefits to
those employees who accept early retirement
arrangements. The early retirement benefits refer to
the salaries and social security contributions to be
paid to and for the employees who accept voluntary
retirement before the statutory retirement age, as
approved by management. The Group pays early
retirement benefits to those early retired employees
from the early retirement date until the normal
retirement date. The Group accounts for the early
retirement benefits in accordance with the treatment
for termination benefits, in which the salaries and
social security contributions to be paid to and for
the early retired employees from the off-duty date
to the normal retirement date are recognised as
liabilities with a corresponding charge to the profit
or loss for the current period. The differences
arising from the changes in the respective actuarial
assumptions of the early retirement benefits and the
adjustments of benefit standards are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they occur.

The termination benefits expected to be settled
within one year since the balance sheet date are
classified as current liabilities.

Provisions

An obligation related to a contingency shall be
recognised by the Group as a provision when all
of the following conditions are satisfied, except for
contingent considerations and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination not involving
entities under common control:

(1) the obligation is a present obligation of the
Group;
(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic

benefits from the Group will be required to
settle the obligation; and

(3) a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related
present obligation, taking into account factors

21.

pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money as a whole.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Where there is clear evidence that the carrying
amount of a provision does not reflect the current
best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to
the current best estimate.

Share-based payments

A share-based payment is classified as either
an equity-settled share-based payment or
a cash-settled share-based payment. An
equity-settled share-based payment is a transaction
in which the Group receives services and uses
shares or other equity instruments as consideration
for settlement.

An equity-settled share-based payment in
exchange for services received from employees is
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted to the employees. If such equity-settled
share-based payment could vest immediately,
related costs or expenses at an amount equal to
the fair value on the grant date are recognised, with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve; if such
equity-settled share-based payment could not vest
until the completion of services for a vesting period,
or until the achievement of a specified performance
condition, the Group at each balance sheet date
during the vesting period recognises the services
received for the current period as related costs and
expenses, with a corresponding increase in capital
reserve, at an amount equal to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date, based on the
best estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest, which is made on the basis of the
latest available information such as the changes in
the number of covered employees. The fair value of
the Share Options was determined by the Binomial
Options Pricing Model, as stated in Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve, over the period in which the
specified performance and service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based
award are modified, as a minimum an expense is
recognised as if the terms had not been modified.
In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled share-based award is
cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Group or the employee are not met. However, if
a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD

INTERIM REPORT 2020

22.

23.

Other equity instruments

Upon the maturity of the perpetual bonds issued
by the Group, the Group has the right to extend
the term indefinitely. For the coupon interest of the
perpetual bonds, the Group has the right to defer
payment. The Group has no contractual obligation
to pay cash or other financial assets, which are
classified as equity instruments.

The equity instruments such as non cumulative
preference shares issued by the Group shall meet
the following conditions at the same time: (1) it does
not include the contractual obligation to deliver
cash or other financial assets to other parties or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
other parties under potential adverse conditions; (2)
the equity instruments of the Group must be used or
can be used for settlement. If it is a non derivative
instrument, the equity instrument of the Group
shall be used for settlement, the relevant financial
instruments shall not include the contractual
obligation to deliver non fixed amount of the group’s
own equity instruments for settlement; in the case
of derivative instruments, the relevant financial
instruments can only be settled by exchanging a
fixed amount of cash or other financial assets with a
fixed amount of the Group’s own equity instruments.
Therefore, the Group will calculate them as other
equity instruments.

The dividend declaration and payment of the
Company’s preference shares shall be decided
by the board of directors of the Company in
accordance with the authorization of the general
meeting of shareholders. Prior to the ordinary
shareholders, the preference shareholders shall
distribute the dividends prior to the ordinary
shareholders, and the Company shall not distribute
profits to the shareholders of ordinary shares
until the agreed current dividend of preference
shares is fully distributed. The general meeting
of shareholders of the Company has the right to
decide to cancel the payment of part or all of the
current dividends of the preference shares, which
does not constitute a default of the Company. The
preference shares is a non cumulative dividend
type preference shares. The Company classifies the
preference shares as other equity instruments.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when the Group has fulfilled its
performance obligations in the contracts, that is,
when the customer obtains control of relevant
goods or services. Control of relevant goods or
services refers to the ability to direct the use of the
goods, or the provision of the services, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
goods or services.

Construction contracts

A construction contract between the Group and the
customer usually includes performance obligations
to construct buildings and infrastructure. Because
the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer can control as the asset is
created or enhanced, the revenue is recognised
over time only if the Group can reasonably
measure its progress towards the complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. The
Group uses the input method and determines
the progress towards the complete satisfaction
of the rendering of services on the basis of costs
incurred. If the progress towards the complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation cannot
be reasonably measured, but the Group expects
to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, the revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such

time that the Group can reasonably measure the
progress towards the complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

Revenue from sales of real estate

The Group’s revenue from real estate development
business is recognised when the control over
properties is transferred to the customer. According
to the terms under the sales contract and laws
and regulations applicable to the contract, the
control over properties can be transferred within
a certain period of time or at a certain point of
time. Where goods produced during the Group’s
performance of the contract are irreplaceable and
the Group is entitled to collect payments for the
part of the performance that has been completed
so far during the entire contract period, revenue is
recognised within a certain period of time based on
the progress of performance obligation fulfilment
during the contract period, and the progress of
performance obligation fulfiiment is determined
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for the fulfilled performance obligations to the
estimated total contract costs. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised when the customer obtains the
physical ownership of goods or the legal ownership
of completed properties and the Group obtains
the present right to receive payment and probably
recovers the contract consideration.

Revenue from design and survey services

The design and survey services provided by the
Group during the performance of contracts have
irreplaceable uses, and the Group has the right
to receive payments for the completed portions
of the projects during the entire contract period.
Therefore, such services are accounted for as
performance obligations to be fulfilled within
certain periods of time, and revenue is recognised
based on the performance schedule, unless the
performance of the contract cannot be reasonably
determined. The Group determines the performance
progress for the services rendered by using
the input method.Where the performance of the
contract cannot be reasonably determined, revenue
is recognised at the amount of costs incurred if it
is predicted that the costs can be compensated
till the performance progress can be reasonably
determined.

Contracts for the sale of goods

A contract for the sale of goods between the
Group and the customer usually only includes the
performance obligation to transfer the goods. The
revenue is recognised at transfer control point
in time based on the following indicators, which
include: a present right to payment for goods,
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership of goods, the transfer of legal title to
goods, the transfer of physical possession of
goods, the customer’s acceptance of goods.

Variable consideration

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
include arrangements of variable consideration.
The Group determines the best estimate of
variable consideration by using the expected
value method or the most likely amount method.
However, the transaction price including variable
consideration is only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

Significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component, the Group determines the transaction
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price based on an amount that reflects the price
that a customer would have paid for the goods
or services in cash at the time of obtaining the
control of the goods or services, and amortises
the difference between the transaction price and
the consideration promised in the contract under
the effective interest method within the contract
period using the discount rate that discounts the
nominal amount of the contract consideration to the
current selling price of the goods or services. The
Group does not consider the effects of a significant
financing component in the contract if it is expected
that the period between when the customer obtains
control of the goods or services and when the
customer pays for such goods or services will be
one year or less.

Warranties

The Group provides a warranty in connection with
the sale of a good or the construction of an asset
in accordance with the contract and the relevant
laws and regulations, etc. For an assurance-type
warranty that provides the customer the assurance
that the goods sold or the assets built complies with
agreed-upon specifications, the Group accounts for
the warranty in accordance with Notes [11.20. For
a service-type warranty that provides a customer
with a service in addition to the assurance that the
product complies with agreed-upon specifications,
the Group accounts for it as a separate
performance obligation. On the basis of the relative
proportion between the stand-alone selling price of
the good and the service-type warranty, a portion of
the transaction price is allocated to the service-type
warranty and revenue is recognised when a
customer obtained control of the good. When
assessing whether a service-type warranty provides
a customer with a separate service in addition
to the assurance that the good complies with
agreed-upon specifications, the Group considers
whether the warranty is required by law, the length
of the warranty coverage period and the nature of
the tasks that the Group promises to perform, etc.

Contract modifications

When a modification is incurred in the construction
contract between the Group and the customer:

(1) the Group accounts for a contract
modification as a separate contract if the
construction services are distinct and
price increases and the increased price
of the contract reflects the stand-alone
selling prices of the additional construction
services;

(2) the Group accounts for the contract
modification as if it were a termination of
the existing contract and by combining
the unsatisfied and modified portion of the
contract as a new contract, if the contract
modification does not meet the criteria in
(1) and the remaining construction services
are distinct from the construction services
transferred on the date of the contract
modification; or

(3) the Group accounts for the contract
modification as if it were a part of the
existing contract if the contract modification
does not meet the criterion in (1) and the
remaining construction services are not
distinct from the construction services
transferred at the date of the contract
modification. The effect on the recognised
revenue is recognised as an adjustment
to the revenue at the date of the contract
modification.

24,

Recognition of revenue from Build-Operate-Transfer
(“BOT")

For BOT construction in progress, revenue from
and costs for relevant construction services are
recognised. Revenue from construction services
is measured at the considerations received or
receivable, and contract assets or intangible assets
are recognised when the revenue is recognised,
with the significant financing components
in the contract arrangements accounted for
correspondingly.

Where the contract gives the Group the right to
unconditionally collect a certain amount of cash
and bank balances or other financial assets from
the contract awarder within a certain period after
the completion of the project, contract assets are
recognised when the revenue is recognised. When
the Group obtains the right to receive consideration
unconditionally, the contract assets will be
transferred to financial assets to be accounted for;

Where the contract gives the Group the right to
charge the service recipient an uncertain amount
of fees within a certain period of operation after
the completion of the project, since the right
does not constitute a right to unconditionally
collect certain amount of cash and bank balances
or other financial assets, intangible assets are
recognised when the revenue is recognised. When
an infrastructure project is completed, relevant
intangible assets are amortised on the straight-line
basis over the franchise period.

Revenue is recognised for the services provided in
the stage of operation, and the routine maintenance
or repair expenses incurred are recognised as
expenses in the current period.

Recognition of revenue from Build-Transfer
(‘BT

For construction services rendered by the Group,
related revenue and costs are recognised during
the stage of construction according to the
construction contract. Revenue from construction
services is measured at the consideration received
or receivable by the Group. The Group recognises
contract assets when recognising revenue, and
accounts for any significant financing component
in the contractual arrangement. The revenue is
transferred to financial assets when the Group
obtains the right to unconditionally collect
consideration and is deducted against long-term
receivables after the Group receives the payment
from the project owner.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

The Group presents contract assets or contract
liabilities depending on the relationship between
the satisfaction of its performance obligations and
the customer’s payment in the balance sheet. The
Group offsets the contract assets and contract
liabilities under the same contract and presents the
net amount.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group
has transferred to a customer, and that right is
conditioned on something other than the passage
of time.
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For details of how the Group measures and
accounts for the ECLs of a contract asset, refer to
Notes I11.9.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration or an amount
of consideration is due from the customer, such
as an amount of consideration that an entity has
received before the transfer of the promised goods
or services.

Contract cost assets

The Group’s contract cost assets include the costs
to obtain and fulfil a contract and are classified
as inventories, other current assets and other
non-current assets by liquidity.

The Group recognises as an asset the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the
Group expects to recover those costs, unless the
amortisation period of the asset is one year or less.

Other than the costs which are capitalised as
inventories, fixed assets and intangible assets, etc.,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer
are capitalised as an asset if all of the following
criteria are met:

(1) the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract, including direct
labour, direct materials, overheads (or
similar expenses), costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs
that are incurred only because an entity
entered into the contract;

(2) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future; and

(3) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The contract cost asset is amortised and charged
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which
the asset related is recognised.

The Group accrues provisions for impairment and
recognises impairment losses to the extent that the
carrying amount of a contract cost asset exceeds:

(1) the remaining amount of consideration that
the entity expects to receive in exchange
for the goods or services to which the asset
relates; less

(2) the costs that are expected to be incurred
to transfer those related goods or services.

The Group recognises in profit or loss a reversal
of the impairment loss previously recognised to
the extent that the difference between (1) and (2)
exceeds the carrying amount of the asset due to the
subsequent changes of the factors causing asset
impairment in previous periods, but the carrying
amount after the reversal does not exceed the
carrying amount of the asset at the reversal date if
no impairment loss is otherwise recognised.

26.

27.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when all
attaching conditions will be complied with and the
grants will be received. If a government grant is
in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is
measured at the amount received or receivable. If
a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair value; if
fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured
at a nominal amount.

According to the government documents, those
used for the purposes of purchase, construction
or other formations of long-term assets shall be
regarded as the government grants related to
assets; if the government documents are not clear,
the judgment shall be made on the basis of the
basic conditions that must be met to obtain the
grants. The government grants related to assets
shall be those based on the purchase, construction
or other formations of long-term assets, and the
others shall be regarded as the government grants
related to income.

The group adopts the total method to measure
government grants.

A government grant related to income is accounted
for as follows: (i) if the grant is a compensation
for related expenses or losses to be incurred in
subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as
deferred income, and released in profit or loss
over the periods in which the related costs are
recognised; or (ii) if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses or losses already incurred, it is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A government grant relating to an asset shall be
offset against the carrying amounts of relevant
assets, or recognised as deferred income and
amortised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
related asset by annual instalments in a systematic
and rational way (however, a government grant
measured at a nominal amount is recognised
directly in profit or loss). Where the assets are sold,
transferred, retired or damaged before the end of
their useful lives, the rest of the remaining deferred
income is released to profit or loss for the period in
which the relevant assets are disposed of.

Where the Group receives loans granted at a
below-market rate of interest from a lending bank
funded with financial interest subsidies, the initial
carrying amount of the borrowings is the actual
proceeds received, and the calculation of the
borrowing costs shall be based on the principal and
the below-market rate of interest.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised as income or expense in
profit or loss, or recognised directly in equity if it
arises from a business combination or relates to a
transaction or event which is recognised directly in
equity.

Current tax liabilities or assets arising from the
current and prior periods at the amount expected
to be paid by the Group or returned by the tax
authority calculated according to related tax laws.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
liability method, on all temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts,
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and temporary differences between the tax bases
and the carrying amounts of the items, which have
a tax base according to related tax laws but are not
recognised as assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

(1) when the taxable temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill,
or an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time
of transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(2) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax losses and any unused
tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised,
except:

(1) when the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

(2) in respect of the deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will be reversed in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised in the future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, in accordance
with the requirements of tax laws. The measurement
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
balance sheet date, to recover the assets or settle
the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available in future periods
to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the balance sheet date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

28.

29.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities, and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than
a finance lease.

As lessee of an operating lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised by a lessee on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, and either included in the cost
of the related asset or charged to profit or loss.
Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

As lessor of an operating lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, through
profit or loss. Contingent rents are charged to profit
or loss as incurred.

As lessee of a finance lease

For an asset that is held under a finance lease, at
the commencement of the lease term, the leased
asset is recognised at the lower of its fair value and
the present value of the minimum lease payments at
the inception of the lease, and the minimum lease
payment is recognised as the carrying amount of
the long-term payables; the difference is accounted
as unrecognised finance charge, which is amortised
using the effective interest method over each period
during the lease term. Contingent rents are charged
to profit or loss as incurred.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component separately
identifiable that either has been disposed of or is
classified as held for sale, and satisfies one of the
following conditions:

(1) it represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations;

(2) it is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; or

(3) it is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale.
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31.

32.

Profit distribution

The cash dividend is recognised as a liability upon
approval in the general meeting of shareholders.

Safety production expenses

Safety production expenses provided according
to the regulations are included in costs of related
products or profit or loss, and credited to the
special reserve. They are treated differently when
being utilised: (i) the special reserve are debted for
those expenditure with the expense nature; or (ii)
the cumulative expenditures are capitalised as a
fixed asset for those expenditure to be capitalised
when the working condition for the intended use is
reached, and at the same time, special reserve are
debted with the full depreciation of the fixed asset,
at the same amount.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt instruments and
equity investments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that
the orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group at the measurement date. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data and other information are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy
based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

33.

For assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation at each balance sheet
date.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements which have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating leases — the Group as lessor

The Group has entered into lease agreements on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined these leases to be operating leases,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the agreements, that it retains almost all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties.

Division of investment real estate and inventory

The Group constructed by the group may be used
for sale, rent earning and/or capital appreciation.
At the initial stage of construction, the Group
classifies the property into inventory or investment
real estate according to the holding purpose.
During the construction process, the property
used for sale after completion is classified as
inventory development cost and included in
current assets. After completion, the properties
used to earn rent and/or capital appreciation
are classified as investment properties under
construction and included in non-current assets.
After completion, the properties used for sale are
transferred to inventory development products,
while the properties used to earn rent and/or
capital appreciation are transferred to completed
investment real estate.

Division of investment real estate and fixed
assets

The Group determines whether the property it
holds meets the definition of investment real estate
and establishes relevant standards when making
judgment. The Group classifies the real estate
held for earning rent or capital appreciation, or
both (including buildings under construction or
development for future use for rental), The Group
will consider whether the cash flow generated by
the property is largely independent of other assets
held by the group. Some properties are used to
earn rent or capital appreciation, and the remaining
part is used to produce goods, provide services or
operation and management. If the part used to earn
rent or capital appreciation can be sold or leased
separately. If not, the property will be classified
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as investment real estate only if the part used
for producing goods, providing labor services or
operation and management is not significant. When
determining whether the importance of auxiliary
services is sufficient to make the property not meet
the recognition conditions of investment real estate,
the Group will make a separate judgment based on
individual property benchmark.

Determination method of construction contract
performance schedule

The Group determines the performance progress
of the construction contract according to the input
method. Specifically, the Group determines the
performance progress according to the proportion
of the accumulated actual construction cost in
the estimated total cost. The accumulated actual
cost includes the direct cost and indirect cost
incurred in the process of the Group transferring
goods to customers. The construction contract
price with the customer is determined based on
the construction cost. The proportion of the actual
construction cost to the estimated total cost can
truly reflect the performance progress of the
construction service. In view of the long duration
of the construction contract and the possibility of
spanning several accounting periods, the Group
will review and revise the budget with the progress
of the construction contract, and adjust the revenue
recognition amount accordingly.

Business models

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group’s business model
for managing financial assets. When determining
the business model, the Group considers the
methods to include evaluation and report financial
asset performance to key management, the risks
affecting the performance of financial assets and
the risk management, and the manner in which
the relevant management receives remuneration.
When assessing whether the objective is to collect
contractual cash flows, the Group needs to analyse
and judge the reason, timing, frequency and value
of the sale before the maturity date of the financial
assets.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics, and the
judgements on whether the contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, including when
assessing the modification of the time value of
money, the judgement on whether there is any
significant difference from the benchmark cash
flow and whether the fair value of the prepayment
features is insignificant for financial assets with
prepayment features, etc.

Revenue from sales of real estate

According to the accounting policies described
in Note Ill. 23, the Group’s revenue from real
estate development business is recognised when
the control over properties is transferred to the
customer. According to the terms under the sales
contract and laws and regulations applicable to
the contract, the control over properties can be
transferred within a certain period of time or at
a certain point of time. Where goods produced
during the Group’s performance of the contract are

irreplaceable and the Group is entitled to collect
payments for the part of the performance that has
been completed so far during the entire contract
period, revenue is recognised over a certain period
of time based on the progress of performance
obligation fulfilment during the contract period.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical ownership of goods
or the legal ownership of completed properties,
and the Group obtains the present right to receive
payment and probably recovers the contract
consideration.

Due to the restriction of real estate sales contract,
the Group’s properties generally have no alternative
use. However, whether the Group has the
enforcement right to collect the part that has been
completed so far and use the method of recognizing
income over a period of time depends on the
agreement of each contract term and the relevant
law applicable to the contract. In order to assess
whether the Group has obtained the enforcement
right on the part that has been performed, the
Group reviews its contract terms, relevant local
laws, and takes into account the opinions of local
regulatory authorities when necessary, and needs
to make a lot of judgments.

When the Group signs a sales contract with a
properly buyer, according to the requirements
of some banks, if the buyer needs to obtain a
mortgage loan from the bank to pay the house
money, the Group will enter into a tripartite
mortgage guarantee loan agreement with the buyer
and the bank. The Group will provide phased
joint liability guarantee for mortgage loans issued
by banks to the properly buyer. The phased
joint liability guarantee will be released after the
properly buyer has completed the house ownership
certificate and completed the real estate mortgage
registration procedures. The Group only needs to
provide guarantee to the bank for the outstanding
mortgage loan of the buyer within the guarantee
period. The bank will only claim against the Group
if the buyer defaults and fails to repay the mortgage
loan.

According to the Group’s historical experience
in selling similar developed products, the Group
believes that during the period of phased joint
liability guarantee, the ratio of the Group’s
guarantee liability to the bank due to the buyer’s
failure to repay the mortgage loan is very low, and
the Group can claim the advance payment paid by
the buyer for undertaking the guarantee of phased
joint liability. In the case of non-repayment by the
buyer, the Group can avoid loss by giving priority
to the relevant property according to the relevant
purchase contract. Therefore, the Group believes
that the financial guarantee has no significant
impact on the recognition of sales revenue of
development products.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments such as non-cumulative
preference shares and perpetual bonds issued by
the Group do not need to be settled by the Group’s
own equity instruments, excluding the contractual
obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets
to other parties, or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with other parties under potential
adverse conditions. Therefore, the Group calculates
them as other equity instruments.
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future
accounting periods, are described below.

Impairment of financial instruments and contract
assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to
assess the impairment of financial instruments and
contract assets. The Group is required to perform
significant judgement and estimation and take into
account all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking information. When making
such judgements and estimates, the Group infers
the expected changes in the debtor’'s credit risk
based on historical repayment data combined with
economic policies, macroeconomic indicators,
industry risks and other factors. The different
estimates may impact the impairment assessment,
and the impairment allowance may also not be
representative of the actual impairment loss in the
future.

Impairment of non-current assets other than
financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any
indications of impairment for all non-current
assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indication exists. Other
non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indications
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and the present value of the future
cash flows expected to be derived from it. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the assets. When the
calculations of the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived from an asset or asset
group are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or
asset group and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Construction and service contracts

Recognition of revenue and expenses from
construction and service contracts requires
management to make relevant estimates. If losses
are expected to occur in construction and service
contracts, such losses should be recognized as
current costs. The management of the Group
estimates the possible losses based on the
construction and service contract budget. Due
to the characteristics of housing construction,
infrastructure construction, and survey and design
businesses, the contract signing date and project
completion date often fall into different accounting
periods. As the contract progresses, the Group
continues to review and revise the total contract
budget revenue and contract budget total cost.

In accordance with the terms of the contract,
the Group continuously monitors the payment

progress of the owners and regularly evaluates
the creditworthiness of the owners. If there are
circumstances that indicate that the business is
likely to breach the contract in the payment of all or
part of the contract price, or the business is unable
to perform the related obligations of the contract
terms, the Group will reassess the impact of the
matter on the consolidated statements and may
modify the expected loss Amount. This modification
will be reflected in the current financial statements
that the Group reassessed and needs to modify the
expected loss of the contract.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on the expected cash flows discounted at
current rates applicable for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about expected future
cash flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates,
and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is required to pay land appreciation tax
in accordance with tax laws on the value-added
portion of property sales. The provision for land
appreciation tax is the best estimate made by
the management based on the understanding
of relevant tax laws and regulations. The actual
land appreciation tax liability must be determined
by the tax authority when the land appreciation
tax is settled. The Group has not yet determined
its land appreciation tax settlement and taxation
plans for certain real estate development projects
with tax authorities. The final land appreciation tax
calculation result may be different from the amount
initially recorded, and any difference will affect
the land appreciation tax expenditure and related
provision amount during the period when the
difference is realized.

Confirmation and allocation of development
costs of real estate under construction

The cost of real estate construction is recorded
as inventory during the construction period of
the project, and will be carried forward to the
income statement after real estate sales revenue
is confirmed. Before the final settlement of project
costs and other related real estate development
costs, such costs need to be estimated by the
management of the Group based on budgeted
costs and development progress. The Group’s
real estate development is generally carried out
in stages, and the cost directly related to the
development of a certain period is recorded as the
cost of that period. The common costs of different
stages are allocated to each stage according to the
saleable area. If the final settlement of the project
cost and the related cost allocation are different
from the initial estimate, the increase or decrease of
the project cost and other costs will affect the profit

and loss in the future years.
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34.

Inventory impairment

The Group’s inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The net realizable value of
inventory refers to the estimated selling price of the inventory minus the estimated cost, estimated selling expenses
and relevant taxes and fees at the time of completion. The management’s calculation of the net realizable value
of inventories involves the estimation of estimated selling prices, estimated costs to be incurred by the time of
completion, estimated selling expenses and relevant taxes. Changes in these estimates will affect the book value
of inventories and the profit and loss of future changes.

Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The Group recognized the supplementary allowances and benefits paid to certain retired and early retirement
employees as a liability. The amount of these welfare expenses and liabilities is determined using actuarial
valuations conducted by independent professional actuaries. Independent professional actuaries evaluate the
actuarial status of the Group’s retirement plan every year. These actuarial valuations involve assumptions made
on discount rates, retirement benefit inflation rates and other factors. In view of its long-term nature, the above
estimates are uncertain.

Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets

After considering the residual value of the fixed assets, the Group accrues depreciation within the estimated
useful life. The Group regularly reviews the estimated useful life and residual value of related assets to determine
the amount of depreciation expenses that will be included in each reporting period. The useful life and residual
value of assets are determined by the Group based on the past experience of similar assets and combined with
expected technological changes. If the previous estimate changes significantly, the depreciation expense will be
adjusted in the future period.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Changes in accounting policies
Related party disclosure scope

According to Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 13, from January 1, 2020, the following parties
that were not regarded as related parties previously are regarded as related parties: Joint ventures and their
subsidiaries or associates and their subsidiaries of other member units of the Company’s corporate group
(including parent companies and subsidiaries) subsidiaries of joint ventures and subsidiaries of associates. This
accounting policy change affected the judgment of related parties and the disclosure of related party transactions,
and the comparative data was not adjusted retrospectively in accordance with the convergence regulations.

Taxation
Main taxes and rates

Taxable income is calculated at the corresponding tax rate as output tax,
and the value-added tax is calculated on the basis of the difference after

Value-added tax (“VAT”") - deducting the input tax allowed to be deducted in the current period. The
applicable tax rates of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020
include 13%, 9%, 6%, 5% and 3%.

According to the “Regulations on Issues Related to the Pilot Reform of
Business Tax to Value-Added Tax” issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation in 2016, the Group calculates tax
payable at 3% and 5% of taxable income for old projects(refer to projects
initially built before 1 April 2016) in the construction industry based
on simple tax calculation methods and in the real estate development
industry, respectively.

City maintenance and
construction tax

The Group’s corporate income tax in Mainland China is calculated
and paid at 25% of the taxable income (except for the tax incentives

Corporate income tax - described in Note 1V,2). The corporate income tax in Hong Kong, China is

(*CIT) calculated and paid at 16.5% of the taxable income. For other overseas
regions, the taxable income shall be 0-35% of the taxable income.
Education surcharge - Calculated and paid at 3% of the actual turnover tax paid.

If the Group transfers land use rights and the property rights of buildings
Land appreciation tax - or other attachments on the ground for a fee, the land appreciation tax is
calculated and paid at a four-tier progressive tax rate of 30%-60%.

Real estate tax is levied at 1.2% of the original value of the property or
12% of the rental income.
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Preferential tax treatments
The corporate income tax preferences enjoyed by the Group are as follows:
Preferential tax treatment for key high and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by the state

According to the income tax law and other relevant regulations, the Group’s subsidiaries recognized as key high
and new technological enterprises encouraged and supported by the state are as follows:

Certificate of High and

Company name New Technological BiEE0T
. tax rate

Enterprises

First Construction Co., Ltd of China Construction Third Engineering Division GR201842000496

China Construction and Installation Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “China

Construction and Installation Engineering Co., Ltd.”) GR201732000477 16%
Chma StateConstructlon Electronlc EnglneerlngCo Ltd ....................................................... GR201911 00521 315%
* China State Construction Northeast Architectural Design Institute Co., Ltid. GR201721000344  15%
* China Municipal Engineering Northwest Design and Research institute Co., Ltid GR201862000089  15%
. Chma State Constructlon Port Engmeermg group Co Ltd ....................................................... GR2017371 00005 RS 15%
. Chma S t a te Co nstruct| on Engm eermg Ind u stry Te chnology Rese arch Instltute ........................................................................

Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Beijing China Construction Baili Engineering GR201811001379 15%

Technology Development Co., Ltd")

Ch|na West Construct|on HunanCo Ltd ............................................................................... GR20194300049415% .
. Ch|na Construct|onCommod|ty Concrete Co Ltd ................................................................... GR201842000632 RS 15% .
 First Construction Co., Ltd of China Construction Eighth Engineering Division GR201737001690  15%
* Wuxi Tianyu Civil Defense Architecture Design and Research institute Co., Ltd GR201732002129  15%
T o e b o e
HongKong Hualeeslgn Consultants(Shenzhen) Co Ltd ..................................................... GR20174420182415% .
Shenzhen HaHongConstructlon Technology CoLtd ............................................................. GR20184420158115% .
Anhu| Ha||ong Construct|on Industry Co Ltd .......................................................................... GR20183400112515% .
 Southwest China Architecture Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd GR201751000732  15%
Chma Construcnon o Sh|pp|ngBureau G roup Co Ltd (formerly L GR201831 00363115% .

as “China Construction Port Construction Co., Ltd.”)
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Certificate of High and

Company name New Technological UL
f tax rate

Enterprises
China Construction Sixth Bureau Construction Development Co., Ltd. GR201812000759 15%
China Construction Second Bureau Installation Engineering Co., Ltd GR201811000600 15%
China Construction Second Bureau First Construction Engineering Co., Ltd GR201811005369 15%
The Third Construction Engineering Company LTD Of China Construction GR201811004750 159

Second Engineering Bureau

ChmalConsltrucnon Xinjiang Construction Engmeermg Group First Construction GR201965000169 159%
Engineering Co., Ltd

ChlnalConsltructlon Xinjiang Construction Engineering Group Fifth Construction GR201965000091 159
Engineering Co., Ltd

China State Construction Technology Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “China o
State Construction Technology Co., Ltd.") GR201711006859 15%
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Certificate of High and

Company name New Technological ﬁ:ic:;\;g
Enterprises

China Construction West Construction New Material Technology Co., Ltd. GR201951000934 15%
* China Construction Xinjiang Construction Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. GR201865000092  15%
* China Construction First Bureau Group Decoration Engineering Co., Ltid GR201711001151  15%
* China Construction Zhongyuan Architectural Design Institute Co., Ltd. GR201941001453  15%
* China Construction Fourth Bureau Third Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. GR201852000186  15%
Chie oo o Eng meermg CoLtd ..................................................................... crooiossonnnnt e
GuangdongZhongpanNewBqumgComponents Co e crooisssoniare e

Preferential tax policy related with Western Development Strategies and Xinjiang region

Preferential Policy  Effective
(Note) tax rate

2011] No. 58

Company Name

Chongging China Construction Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Cai Shui

Chongging Branch of China Southwest Architecture Design and
Research Institute Co., Ltd.

Cai Shui [2011] No.
Cai Shui [2011] No.
Cai Shui [2011] No.

China West Construction Group Co. Ltd (“West Construction”) and Part of
Subsidiaries of West Construction

Haidong City Underground Comprehensive Pipe Gallery Construction Operation
Management Co., Ltd.

Note: According to Circular on Issues Concerning Tax Policies for In-depth Implementation of Western Development
Strategies (Cai Shui [2011] No. 58), the qualified enterprises are entitled 15% preferential income tax rate.
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V.

1.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Cash and bank balances

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Cash on hands 187,211

Other cash and bank balances represents deposits for bank acceptance notes, guarantee deposits and deposits
for migrant workers’ wages, etc.

As at 30 June 2020, the amount of fixed deposit with maturity of more than 3 months in the Group’s bank deposits
is RMB2,594,509 thousand (31 December 2019: RMB1,738,949 thousand).

Restricted cash and bank balances mainly represents reserves with Central Bank, deposits for bank acceptance
notes, guarantee deposits, pre-sale supervision fund and mortgage deposits. As at 30 June 2020, the restricted
cash and bank balances is RMB17,054,370 thousand (31 December 2019: RMB18,974,662 thousand).

As at 30 June 2020, the offshore deposits of the Group amounted to RMB51,130,474 thousand (31 December 2019:
RMB39,150,856 thousand).The amount deposited abroad and restricted in remittance recovery is RMB402,073
thousand (31 December 2019: RMB369,416 thousand).

Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and one year depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.

Financial assets held for trading

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Debt investments 244,787 862,307
Equity investments 36,326 39,765
281,113 902,072

Note 1: The fair value of an investment in debt instrument held for trading is mainly determined based on the
trading price published by the financial institution in which it trades on the last trading day of the current period.

Note 2: The fair value of an investment in equity instrument held for trading is determined based on the closing
price of the last trading day of the current period of the stock exchange in which the instrument trades.

Notes receivable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Commercial acceptance bills 31,308,645 26,918,443

The pledged notes receivable are as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Commercial acceptance bills 7,467,596 689,065

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the notes receivable that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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(1

(2

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Notes receivable (continued)

Commercial acceptance bills which had not matured but had been endorsed to other parties are as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Derecognised Recognised Derecognised Recognised
Commercial acceptance bills - 14,686,814 - 8,216,967

Regardless of whether there is a significant financing component or not, the impairment provision of the Group’s
notes receivables are measured based on the lifetime ECL. After evaluation, the Group believes that the
commercial acceptance notes held do not have significant credit risk, and the ECL amount is insignificant.

Accounts receivable

The aging of accounts receivable is analysed as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Within 1 year 132,985,776 128,907,499

Provision for impairment
The movements in impairment allowance for accounts receivable are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance Provision Reversal Write-off ~ Other movements Closing balance
23,804,177 7,070,827 (5,094,854) (40,099) (47,641) 25,692,410
2019
Balance at Changes in Balance at
the end of accounting the beginning Other Closing
prior year policies of the year Provision Reversal Write-off movements balance

20,453,337 3,323,905 23,777,242 5,010,216 (4,340,373) (714,592) 71,684 23,804,177
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4. Accounts receivable (continued)

(2) Provision for impairment (continued)

Accounts receivable and impairment allowance are disclosed by category:

30 June 2020

Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance

Withdrawal

Amount Ratio (%) Amount ratio (%)

Impairment of individually accrued 46,413,825 23.47 12,001,220 25.86

Impairment of collectively accrued 151,310,846 76.53 13,691,190 9.05
by credit risk portfolio

197,724,671 100.00 25,692,410 12.99

31 December 2019

Gross carrying amount Impairment allowance

Withdrawal

Amount Ratio (%) Amount ratio (%)

Impairment of individually accrued 48,548,506 27.31 12,480,028 25.71

Impairment of collectively acorued 129,217,546 72.69 11,324,149 8.76
by credit risk portfolio

177,766,052 100.00 23,804,177 13.39

As at 30 June 2020, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Expected credit

Carrying amount Impairment allowance loss ratio (%) Reasons

Company1 2,939,804 844,098 28.71% Recovery possibility
el mpany2 ......................................... 1’314,400 ....................... 1’314’400 .................. 100005 R coverypossmty
el mpanyS ............................................ 886,051 .............................. 4,430 ...................... 050 R coverypossmlllty
el mpany4 ............................................ 480,613 .......................... 103,563 .................... o150 R coveryposS|b|I|ty
el mpany5 ............................................ 410,118 .......................... 250,172 .................... s100 R coverypossmlllty
e 40,382,839 ....................... 9,484,557 .................... sado R coverypossmlllty
........................................................... 46,413,82512,001,220

As at 31 December 2019, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Expected credit
Carrying amount Impairment allowance loss ratio (%) Reasons

Company1 2,004,490 440,988 22.00% Recovery possibility
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4. Accounts receivable (continued)

(2) Impairment allowance (continued)

The accounts receivable with impairment allowance collectively accrued by credit risk portfolio are as follows:

Portfolio 1

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 26,114,803 c 522,296 21,319,859 2.00%
5.00%
15.00%
30.00%
45.00%
100.00%
Portfolio 2
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 3,424,497 6.00% 205,470 6,548,628 6.00% 392,918
1-2 years 1,008,116 12.00% 120,974 376,293 12.00% 45,155
2-3 years 150,630 25.00% 37,657 3,476 25.00% 869
3-4 years 19,010 45.00% 8,555 32,565 45.00% 14,654
4-5 years 3,294 70.00% 2,306 5,146 70.00% 3,602
Over 5 years 96,523 100.00% 96,523 100,765 100.00% 100,765
4,702,070 471,485 7,066,873 557,963
Portfolio 3
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Estimated Estimated
gross carrying Expected Lifetime gross carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss

Within 1 year 77,445,149 c 3,485,032 69,068,852 4.50% 3,108,098
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4. Accounts receivable (continued)

(2) Impairment allowance (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, provision for impairment amounted to RMB7,070,827 thousand (2019:
RMB5,010,216 thousand), reversal or collection of impairment amounted to RMB5,094,854 thousand (2019:
RMB4,340,373 thousand). The major amounts reversal or collection are as follows:

Basis and rationality for Amount of

Reason for determining the provision reversal/ Way of
reversal/collection for impairment collection  collection

Company 1 Accounts receivaple of Individually accrued 86,392 Cash
project collected

Company 2 Acgounts receivaple of Individually accrued 72,281 Cash
project collected

Company 3 Acqounts receivable of Individually accrued 58,686 Cash
project collected

Company 4 Accpunts receivable of Collectively accrued 56,463 Cash
project collected

Company 5 Acqounts receivable of Collectively accrued 54,219 Cash
project collected

Others Aoc_ounts receivable of InleldgaIIy and 4766813 Cash
project collected collectively accrued

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, actual written-off amount of accounts receivable is RMB40,099 thousand
(2019: RMB714,592 thousand), all of which were accounts receivable of projects, sales and design fees due from
third parties.

(3) As at 30 June 2020, accounts receivable from the five largest customers are as follows:
Amount of Percentage of
impairment total accounts
Amount allowance receivable
Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 6,852,430 2,187,260 3.47%

As at 31 December 2019, accounts receivable from the five largest customers are as follows:

Amount of Percentage of

impairment total accounts
Amount allowance receivable
Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 5,694,178 2,107,983 3.20%
(4) The analysis of accounts receivable derecognised due to the transfer of financial assets are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the amount of accounts receivable derecognized by the Group due to
the transfer of financial assets was RMB17,514,238 thousand (2019: RMB52,727,683 thousand), and the related
expenses were RMB853,615 thousand (2019: RMB2,330,684 thousand).

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, accounts receivable that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (continued)

Accounts receivable financing

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Bank acceptance bills 4,432,962 3,674,166

The Group discounts and endorses some bank acceptance bills according to the needs of daily capital
management. Therefore, bank acceptance bills are classified as financial assets measured at fair value and their
changes included in other comprehensive income.

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, accounts receivable financing that have been endorsed or discounted
on the balance sheet date but not overdue are as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Derecognised Recognised Derecognised Recognised
Bank acceptance bills 1,518,796 581,864 796,241 503,737

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group measured impairment allowance based on the expected
credit loss of the entire duration. The bank acceptance bills held by the assessment was not subject to significant
credit risk, and the amount of expected credit loss was not significant.

Prepayments

The aging analysis of prepayments is as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Carrying Percentage of Carrying Percentage of

amount total balance amount total balance

Within 1 year 43,245,907 75.96 47,496,343 86.23
12years ............................................................ ; 1,905,01820915939701 ...................... e
23years548,644096854178 ........................ e
Over3years1,236,341217794326 ........................ Car
56,935,9101000055084548 .................... ooe”

As at 30 June 2020, prepayments aged more than 1 year amounted to RMB13,690,003 thousand (31 December
2019: RMB7,588,205 thousand), mainly including advances to subcontractors and prepayments for land use, since
the project is not completed, or land use permit has not been obtained.

As at 30 June 2020, the five largest prepayments to suppliers are as follows:

Percentage of
Amount total balance

Total amount of the five largest prepayments to suppliers 13,772,259 24.19%

As at 31 December 2019, the five largest prepayments to suppliers are as follows:

Percentage of
Amount total balance

Total amount of the five largest prepayments to suppliers 12,455,794 22.61%

Other receivables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Other receivables 53,789,276 53,186,521
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables

The aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Within 1 year 37,953,411 40,742,035

Natures of other receivables are as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December2019
Deposits and petty cash receivable 21,215,546 25,925,286

Changes in impairment allowance recognised for the 12-month ECLs and lifetime ECLs on other receivables are as
follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected credit losses ~ Credit-impaired financial assets
(Lifetime expected) credit losses
Opening balance of the period 1,653,840 5,427,482 7,081,322
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
7. Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

2019
Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected credit losses Credit-impaired financial assets
(Lifetime expected) credit losses
Opening balance of the year 2,937,708 3,879,988 6,817,696

The gross carrying amount of other receivables contributed to changes in the impairment allowance are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected credit losses Credit-impaired financial assets
(Lifetime expected) credit losses
Opening balance of the period 47,855,701 12,412,142 60,267,843

Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
12-month expected credit losses  Credit-impaired financial assets
(Lifetime expected) credit losses

Opening balance of the year 52,586,079 10,302,881 62,888,960
B et R (1680865)1680865 ....................... o
....................................................................................................... 6 879

701
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

The amount of impairment allowance for the six months ended 30 June 2020 is RMB1,494,300 thousand (2019:
RMB1,305,421 thousand), reversal or collection of impairment amounted to RMB1,135,083 thousand (2019:
RMB891,574 thousand). The major amounts reversal or collection is as follows:

Reason for Basis and rationality for determining Amount of Way of
reversal/collection the provision for impairment reversal/collection  collection
Company 1 Receivable collected Individually accrued 149,579 Cash

For the six month s ended 30 June 2020, the written-off of other receivables amounted to RMB47,890 thousand
(2019: RMB135,135 thousand), which are mainly due to the third party.

As at 30 June 2020, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

% of Impairment
Amount total balance Nature Aging allowance Amount
Company 1 2,018,146 3.30 Pre-paid fee  Within 1 year -

As at 31 December 2019, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

% of Impairment

Amount total balance Nature Aging allowance amount

Company 1 1,000,000 1.66 Cash deposit 11to 2 years 40,000
Company S 904000 ....................... e Cashdepos|t 44444444 " |th|n1year .......................... 5080
Company o 662700 ....................... o Cashdepos|t 44444444 W|th|n1year .......................... iaes
Company4 ........................... 627858 ....................... cos Cashdepos|t 44444444 W|thm1year1884
Company S 620000 ....................... s Cashdepos|t 44444444 " |th|n1year .......................... 500
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision Net value amount provision Net value

Properties under development 514,767,301 (3,526,165) 511,241,136 489,478,279 (3,580,736) 485,897,543

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the inventories that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.

The details of properties under development are as follows:

Date of Estimated Estimated 30 June 31 December
Project Name commencement completion time  total investment 2020 2019

Beixin’an Shantytowns Renovation Project July 2014 August 2020 37,500,000 12,273,534 14,571,619
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories (continued)

The details of properties under development are as follows (continued):

Date of Estimated Estimated total 30 June 31 December
Project Name commencement completion time investment 2020 2019
Beijing Lichun Lake Villa July 2018 December 2020 8,098,912 4,304,902 4,085,761

4,822, 3,942,5

ecember

China Overseas Tung Chung 2017NJY-11
Land Project
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories (continued)

The details of properties under development are as follows (continued):

Date of Estimated Estimated total 30 June 31 December
Project Name commencement completion time investment 2020 2019
Jimo Wangchunxincheng March 2016 October 2021 5,668,255 2,361,567 1,900,533

ecember 3,301, ,164,1
e T e 32496702189259
September2020 .............. 23004272274330
e ST P T | u|y2020 .............. 28922422075059
e ST S 26699102065696

Beijing Shunyi District Houshayu Town
No. 19 Block Shared property house

478

The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Date of Estimated Estimated total 30 June 31 December

Project Name commencement  completion time investment 2020 2019

Shanghai Hongqi Village Project June 2020 = 5,721,917 2,915,636 2,806,281
ShanghalJ\ufengllPhase|PrOJeCtMarch2019 .............. 2,101,602 .................... 4’403 ..................... S 2,106,005 |
JlangsuRunjlangfuPrOJect ............................... Dooart e 1,747’317 .......................... - 47,251 1,700,066
R Zhong R ngcheng Prolect ................ e 706,901 .............. 4,665,548 ......... 3,732,498 1,639,951 |
Kunmnghongha\Yunzhu ............................... Do 2,146,222 17,597 ............ 599,444 1,564,375 |
R Zhongpan o ngqmghu . olect ....................... oo o 7,651 .............. 2’192,045 o ’254,951 1,554’745 |
ChengduZhonghalYunIushula ................................. e 200 98,145 .............. 3’037,207 1,599,819 1’535’533 |

West Coast Gufang Residential Land Real June 2020 1,221,773 641,576 429364  1433,985

Estate Development Project

Jilin
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Inventories (continued)

The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows (continued):

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 (continued)

Date of Estimated Estimated 30 June 31 December
Project Name commencement completion time total investment 2020 2019
Tianjin Gongyuancheng Project June 2020 788,922 752,575 614,278 927,219
CTEZ]‘;OQE'\ZZCSZES%TC%: Tndustr‘\al Base) ez A S U - el
- Nancha ng Zhon gha | Ya ngguang Rose G ar d en ............ Junezo 19 ................. 891,1 84 ................. 243’3 61 ............ 22 0,474 ............ 914’07 1 o
Zheng zhou Z hongha\ylyuan .............................. Decemberzo 19 ................. 884,6 11 ................. 109’222 ............ 16 1,015 ............ 832,81 8 ]
Lot1241No1Yu|uRoadHangzhou ...................... June2019 ................. 779,28453,71910,028 ............ 822,975
Zhongha| Hu|zh| Bulld\ng ........................................ June2020 .......................... S 8 62,347 48,381 ............ 813,966 ]
Ts mgdatho nghauLammg ProJ ecl ........................... June20 20 .................... 2’4 16 .............. 1’599’0 62 ............ 79 8,7 03 ............ 802,775 ]
Guiyang Dayingpo Zhongjian Huafu April 2017 801,041 - 7,017 794,024

Project ADEF District
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8. Inventories (continued)

The details of completed properties held for sale are as follows (continued):

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 (continued)

Date of Estimated Estimated 30 June 31 December
Project Name commencement  completion time  total investment 2020 2019
Guangzhou Zhonghai Jinyuhuating June 2018 637,426 - 217,435 419,991

Beijing Beixin'an Shantytowns Transformation

Project June 2020 263,798 4,342,741 4,265,682 340,857
Changshazmng“ an Furo ngl |ayuan Project ............. Augustzo 17 ................. 373,3 53 .......................... = 3 3,835 ............ 339’473 J
Chongqmg Zhong“an Yuhecny(Phase |) ........... Decemberzmg ................. 335’417 .......................... S 3 ’962 ............ 325,455 J
Ye“ Stand ard‘zed Wor kshopp roject .......................... Junezo 19 ................. 31 0’0 43 .................... 3’5 55 ..................... R 31 3,51 3 J
Yammz‘yu Mansmn ........................................ Decemberzma ................. 342’900 .......................... = 36’252 ............ 305,543 J
ChangchunUmversa|Wor\d ............................. Decemberzmg ................. 300,243 50’341 44’301 ............ 305,233 J
x|anZhongha‘ Y Ue“Shan ProjemB .................... Decemberzmg ................. 232’952 ................. 31 3,474 ............ 246,339 ............ 304’587 J
omers ........................................................................................... 2 3,693,395 ............. 3 5,827,951 ........ 4 1,342’312 ........ 19,184’534 J
. TO ta| .............................................................................................. 6 7’414,1 30 ............. 8 1 ,439,7 76 ........ 7 7,19 5,963 ........ 71,705,993 o

Movements in the carrying amount of inventories are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

1 January 2020 Additions Deductions 30 June 2020
Properties under development 489,478,279 114,949,023 (89,660,001) 514,767,301
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V.

8.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Inventories (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Properties under development

Movements in the impairment provision of inventories are as follows:

Changes in

31 December accounting 1 January 31 December
2018 policies 2019 Additions Deductions 2019
438,262,888 - 438,262,888 248,348,016  (197,132,625) 489,478,279

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

(693,181,407

Decrease during the period

1 January 30 June
2020 Provision  Reversal Write off Other 2020
Properties under development 3,580,736 - - (2,279) (52,292) 3,526,165
Comple tedpropernesheld o O 585,909 .................... R ( 169,139) .................. S 5 3,508 .......... 500 , s7s
e s 0,933 .................... S S S S % , 633
F|n|shedgoods ............................................... 2’022 .................... R ( 126) .................. S S ; ,896
T e ws S S S S cos
e 4,200 ,108 .................... R ( 169,265) .......... (2,279) ......... (3 1,216) ...... 4,059 , 60
For the year ended 31 December 2019
Changes in ) )
31 December  accounting 1 January Increase during the year Decrease during the year 31 December
2018 policies 2019 Accrual Other  Reversal Write off Others 2019
Properties under development 4,666,392 - 4666392 928975  (941,883)  (911,487)  (173,501) 12,240 3,580,736
Completedpropemes e 654816 ....... 148336 ....... 941883 ...... (358049) ...... (801074)(3) .......... 585909
e TR R
e 33 T (242) ....................
Flmshedgoods .................................................................... 1039_ ....................
G 8612— ....................
B T : 36429611995 ....................

Impairment provision of inventories is as follows:

Properties under development

Criterion of net realizable value

Expected selling price less estimated
costs to be incurred at completion,
the estimated selling expenses and
the relevant taxes and fees

Reasons of reversal and write off during
the period/year

Net realizable value increased or sales realized
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

9. Contract assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Receivables from construction projects 193,850,733 152,335,478

Less: Contract assets disclosed within current portion of
non-current assets (Note V,10)

Less: Contract assets disclosed within the other non-current
assets (Note V, 23)

Movements in impairment allowance of contract assets are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance of the period Provision Reversal Other changes Closing balance of the period
2,980,333 486,882 (167,488) (34,687) 3,265,040

2019
Closing balance Changes in  Opening balance Closing balance
of prior year ~ accounting policies of the year Provision Reversal ~ Other changes of the year
- 2,042,926 2,042,926 1,407,818 (350,747) (119,664) 2,980,333

Whether the contract assets have significant financing components or not, the provisions for impairment is
measured according to the expected credit loss of the entire duration.

30 June 2020

Carrying amount Impairment allowance

Withdrawal

Amount Ratio (%) Amount ratio (%)

Impairment of individually accrued 32,717,452 16.61 2,271,329 6.94
Impairment of collectively accrued 164,308,686 83.39 993,711 0.60

by credit risk portfolio
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V.

9.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Contract assets (continued):

31 December 2019

Carrying amount Impairment allowance

Withdrawal

Amount Ratio (%) Amount ratio (%)

Impairment of individually accrued 21,006,351 13.64 2,086,758 9.93

Impairment of collectively acorued 132,949,308 86.36 893,575 067
by credit risk portfolio

Total 153,955,659 100.00 2,980,333 1.94

As at 30 June 2020, impairment allowance of contract assets individually accrued is as follows:

ECLs rate for the

Carrying amount Impairment allowance entire duration (%) Reasons

Company 1 368,326 368,326 100.00 ECLs
Company2279,588 .............................. 6,084 ................................ T
Company3204,609 ............................ 14,804 ................................ e
Company4 ................................................. ; 05,649 .......................... 105,649 ............................ Y
Company599,279 ............................ 99’279 ............................ T
Other331,660,001 ....................... 1,677,187 ................................ B
Total32,717,452 ....................... 2,271’329 .....................................................................

As at 31 December 2019, impairment allowance of contract assets individually accrued is as follows:

ECLs rate for the
Carrying amount Impairment allowance entire duration (%) Reasons

Company 1 498,430 149,526

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the contract assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

10. Current portion of non-current assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Current portion of long-term receivables (Note V, 13) 35,309,322 25,035,289

34,438,607

11. Other current assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Input VAT to be credited 47,590,939 37,309,124

12. Debt investments

30 June 2020

Carrying Impairment
amount allowance Net amount
Loans receivable from related parties (Note X, 6) 18,453,759 (12,683) 18,441,076

17 4
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V.

12.

13.

14.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Debt investments (continued)

31 December 2019

Carrying Impairment
amount allowance Net amount
Loans receivable from related parties (Note X, 6) 20,882,550 (11,322) 20,871,228

Less: Debt investments of non-current assets due within
one year (Note V, 10)

Long-term receivables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Project quality warranty 2,705,500 2,717,374

As at June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group pledged long-term receivables to banks for borrowings are
presented in detail in Note V, 66.

Long-term equity investments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Joint ventures 37,675,515 34,648,316

Associates



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
120 CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

(a) Joint ventures

Movement during the period

Investment Other Impairment

Opening Increase/  profits/(losses)  comprehensive Closing  allowance at

Balance of  (Decrease) under equity income  Declaration of ~ Others balance of the end of

the period ~ investment method adjustment  cash dividends ~ (Notet) the period the period

Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment 2302726 180,000 29) 23 _ - 482,930 _
..... e 0. L, e e e
.. UITIC Baolida Real Estate (Fosfan) Co, L. - W (0849 Tt el e

China Construction win win win No. 5 (Huizhou) %3712 1210000 _ _ _ - 18T _
..... st e et Center (1P e
.. Zunyi Nenhuan Expressway Development Co.Ld. |~ 112,736 100000 O T T SR8 .
.. Neniing Yanglze River Second Bridge Co. Lid - V085S w9 (109) m.no MmaAas ]

Shenzhen CSCEC Win-win No. 8

Infrastructure Investment Center (LP) iz B ‘ '?9’650 B R = b -

Shanghai Lingbo Haihui City Construction _ _ _ _ _' |
..... odDeeprent o, bt e e e
China Southern Airlines Construction
mdlesbprenCold o S A A .
Liupanshui Urban Pipe Gallery Construction _ _ _ _ _ _
..... and Development Investment Co, Ltd - 795597795597
Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment _ _ _ _
..... aageneniCo,id
.. Beiling Nenyue Real Estate Development Co. Ld. T893 Poceoncnsn B9 Tt T4 |
Anhui Bengwu Expressway Investment _ _ _ _
..... VevgereniCo S0 T A e
.. Buangdong Guotong Logistcs Ciy Co, Ltd = 708100 @) (M) o n Beee2
.. Cnina Overseas port (Laizhou) Co. Lid | 610240 . 2802 (M) - G000 61958 o)
Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipeline _ _ _ _ _
..... Corsulond vesnent oLy, SBI® om0 W e e e
.. Xian Dingsheng Dongyue Real Estate Co. Ltd A S 88T TToTo skl o)
.. Znengzhou CSCEC Shenzhen Rall Transit Co, Lid - 5080 BAMG0 s TToTo es
Shaotong CSCEC Construction
. esnent 8 Devlprent ol e e e .
CSCEC Chengdu Rail Transit Investment
....and Consruoion Co, L we o S SR i
Urumai Zhongcheng Silk Road Sports _ _ _ _ _ _
..... agereniCo, g T e
China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit _ _ _ _ _
..... esentDevlprentCo,Lg. MO B e e e
CSCEC (Tangshang Caofeidian) _ _ _ _
..... engneeing & CorsuctonCo, Lo, AT e IR
China Overseas Grand Oceans Haifu
. (el Estat Developrent Co, L, ww o e mes e s .
CSCEC Haijia (Foshan) Investment _ _ _ _
..... g osuetiono,g - W mTees
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Zhicheng Comprehensive 125305 _ _ _ _ _ 195305 _

Pipe Gallery Construction Management Co., Ltd

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the conversion of subsidiaries into joint ventures, the changes in the
investee’s other equity movement other than other comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange
rate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)
For the six months ended 30 June 2020 (continued)

Associates

Movement during the period

[nvestment QOther |mpairment
Opening Increase/ profits/(losses) ~ comprehensive Closing allowance at
balance of ~ (Decrease) ~ under equity income  Declarationof ~ Others  balance of the end of
the period  investment method adjustment  cash dividends ~ (Notel)  the period the period
China Overseas Hongyang Group Co, Ld 7489769 N QIR (2869 155369 793213 -
(“Overseas Hongyang’)
Anhui Guoyuan Trust Co., Ltd 2,799,221 - 71,669 36,022 - - 2912912 -
Xuzhou Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd 790,000 1,710,000 - - - - 2,500,000 -
Jiging High Speed Railway Co., Ltd 2,082,659 360,100 (36,729) - - - 2,406,030 -
C%%C i\TJ(\jao Expressway Investment Development 1302,988 315725 (63,340) _ _ - 1555473 _
EverbmghtSecuntlesCoLtd ................................ 1,460,733-- .................. S S 21,630 ..... 1,482,363-
Fast Shift Investments Limited 1,155,792 - 333,289 - (260,130) 23,997 1,252,948 -
(CCB Shares No. 9 Urbanization Investment Private Fund 1,168,461 - 41,678 - - - 1,210,139 -
Jinmao Investment (Changsha) Co., Ltd 942,442 - 129,951 - (23,954) - 1,048,439 -
Shandong Qilu Ningliang Expressway Co., Ltd 1,033,900 - - - - - 1,033,900 -
Anhui Guoyuan Investment Co., Ltd 965,609 - 6,833 (285) = 27 972,394 =
Shanghai Jiasheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd 931,354 - 24,196 - - - 955,550 -
Yunnan Huali Expressway Investment and 790,000 _ _ _ _ _ 790,000 _
Development Co, Ltd
Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd 931,775 - 1,653 - (150,960) - 782,468 -
CSClEC Share No. 35 Urbanization Investment B 71,320 _ B _ _ 71,320 _
private fund
Chongaing Jinke Zhaoji Real Estate Development 586,430 _ _ _ _ _ 586,430 _
Co., Ltd
Liupanshui Dongda Highway Investment _ _ _ _ _
and Development Co., Ltd e R gt
Shanxi International Power Group Real Estate 194,659 _ _ _ _ _ 194,659 _

Development Co., Ltd

Co. Lid 336,334 53 336,387
L|Lg:otzdhongﬂanDongchengcunureDeve|opmem ........... 3 10!825- ............ 19,690 .................. - ................. - - ....... 330,515-
i ngangExpressway Deve\opmem CoLtd .............. ) 01,115 ....... 157,370 ........... (40317) .................. S S 328,568-
e 1 2’361, w 995,347 ............ 30, w (22,207) .......... : 295,700) . (512,533) g 2’608’263 ............. -
B 40,562,541 ...... 4,261,362 ......... 1’341’775 ........... : 223,410) .......... ( 957,117) (311,300) 44,559,451 .............. .
B 75’210,957 ..... 5,695,510 ......... 3’090,860 ........... : 252,715) ........ (1,634,575) (775,170)82’334,966 ......... 2%056

Note 1: Other changes are mainly caused by the volatility of foreign exchange rate.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
2019

(a) Joint ventures

Movement during the year

Investment Other Impairment

Opening Increase/  incomel(losses)  comprehensive Closing allowance at

balance of ~ (Decrease) under equity income  Distribution of ~ Others ~ balance of  the end of

the year  in investment method adjustment dividends  (Notel) the year the year

Lang Light International Co., Ltd. 2,240,278 - (21812) - - - 2,218,466 -
Nanjing Second Yangtze River Bridge Co., Ltd. 1,126,067 - 147,415 (443) (169,471) - 1,103,558 -
Speedy Champ Investments Limited 1,246,253 - 3,953 - - - 1,250,206 -
China Overseas Port (Laizhou) Co., Ltd 618,087 - 62,685 (5,123) (65,409) - 610,240 -
Guiheng Investment Co., Ltd. 1,607,600 - 612,204 - - - 2219804 -
Shggdo&g China Overseas Huachuang Real Estate 191697 } (2.9%) } ) ) 188701 )

China Qverseas Southern Airlines

Construction & Development Co., Ltd. 821,441 B (.43 B ) LA )
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment 2302506 B 1% B ) o376 }
Management Co., Ltd.
China Overseas Grand Oceans Haifu (Hefei) Real 14560 ) 16,664 34,962 ) ) 196,186 )
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipeline
Construction & Investment Co. Lid. 508,230 19800 6 B ) - 08 )
Chongaing Railway Line No. 9 . . ) ) ) )
Construction & Operation Co. Ltd. 1,600,751 (1.600,75)
CSCEC (Tangshang Caofeidian) ) ) ) )
Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. 0548 42.264 16,649 463,46
Xuzhou Line No. 3 Rail Transit Investment
Development Co, Lid 109,784 1,000 (40) - - - 110,744 -
Changsha CSCEC Future Future Science
and Technology City Investment Co. Ltd. 104,197 ) el ) (2.167) - 10 )
Dazhou Dahuan Construction Management Co. Ltd 292,517 - 154 - - - 292,671 -
Beijing Nanyue Real Estate Development Co. Lid. 731,999 - (3,066) - - - 728,933 -
Shenzhen CSCEC Win-win No. 8 Infrastructure 1,000,000 . 79.083 ) (79.063) 1000000 B
Investment Center (LP)
Zunyi Nanhuan Expressway Development Co. Ltd. 1,016,450 ) 116,286 ) ) L B
(Note 2)
Shaotong CSCEC Construction
Investment & Development Co. Ltd. ST ) (6:386) ) ) T )
CSCEC Chengdq Rail Transportation Investment 375477 ) 12454 ) } ] 500,023 B
and Construction Co., Ltd.
Shanghai Lingbo Haihui City Construction
and Development Co,, Litd. B 90,360 ) ) ) - %030 B
Others 10,661,722 2,547,518 467,460 3,610 (163,556) 696,371 14,203,125 1,358
Joint ventures sub-total 31,569,123 1,970,191 1,783,311 33,006 (1,403,686) 696,371 34,648,316 293,820

Note1: Other is mainly caused by the conversion of subsidiaries to joint ventures, the changes in the investee’s
other equity movement other than other comprehensive income and the volatility of foreign exchange rate.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
2019 (continued)

(b) Associates

Movement during the year

Investment Other Impairment

Opening Increase/ income/(losses)  comprehensive Closing allowance at

Balance of ~ (Decrease) under equity income  Distribution of Balance the end of

the year  in investment method adjustment dividends ~ Others  of the year the year

Trust House Pte. Ltd. 9,067 - 2 - - 304 9,369 -
Beglongﬁgma Construction Zhongchao Concrete 14299 ) (4164 ) B B 10135 B

DuYun Galactic Real Estate Development Co.,

Henan China Construction Municipal Construction
Development Co., Ltd.

China Overseas Grand Oceans Group Ltd.
("Overseas Oceans’)

Xuzhou Metro Line One Investment Development

Co, Lid. (Note ) 196,000 594,000 - - - - 790,000 _

Co. Ltd. '

Shenzhen & Shantou Special Cooperation Area Harbour
New City Investment & Construction Co. Ltd

Liuzhou CSCEC Dongcheng Culture Development
Co., Ltd.

Guizhou Jianxin Water Environment Industry Co. Ltd.

CSCEC Jianxin Shared No. 9 Private-Equity Fund

for Urbanization
Shangd 0 -
Chongaing Jinke Zhaoji Real Estate Development 542145 ) 14,285 ) ) ) 586,430 )
Co. Ltd.
Urumchi New Chuyuan Construction Co. Ltd. 400,260 - (57) - - - 400,203 -
Shanghai Jiasheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd 887,499 - 43,855 - - - 931,354 -
Yunnan Huali Expressway Investment and . . B ) ) )
Development Co. Ltd. (Note 2) 730,000 730,000
Others 10,226,973 4,015,814 94,201 (175,742) (575,985) 147,815 13,733,106 236
Associates sub-total 34,718,932 5,841,986 2,890,471 (337,366)  (2733946) 182,564 40,562,641 236
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Long-term equity investments (continued)
The movements in impairment allowance of long-term equity investments are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Opening balance Movement during Closing balance
of the period the period of the period
CITIC Baolida Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd. 292,462 - 292,462
Others 1,594 - 1,594
Total 294,056 - 294,056
2019
Opening balance Movement during Closing balance
of the year the year of the year
CITIC Baolida Real Estate (Foshan) Co., Ltd. 292,462 - 292,462
Others 1,594 - 1,594
Total 294,056 - 294,056
15. Investments in other equity instruments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Equity investments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Dividend income of the period

Changes
in fair value Equity
accumulated instruments
into other derecognized in Equity
comprehensive the current instruments
income Fair value period still held
Listed equity investments 157,474 1,398,970 - 53,785
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

15. Investments in other equity instruments (continued)

2019
Changes Dividend income of the year

in fair value Equity

accumulated instruments
into other derecognized in Equity
comprehensive the current instruments
income Fair value period still held
Listed equity investments 372,708 1,659,862 - 240,330
Unlisted equity investments 1,060,066 6,409,181 - 30,320
Total 1,432,774 8,069,043 - 270,650

16. Investment properties

Subsequent measurement under the cost model:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Investment
properties
Buildings Land use rights in progress Total
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V.

16.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

2019

Investment
properties in
Buildings Land use rights progress Total

Investment properties are leased out to third parties under an operating lease.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

16.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group changed the use of houses and buildings with a carrying
amount of RMB2,915 thousand (A cost of: RMB12,596 thousand) for self use and transferred them into fixed assets
at the date of change of use; for the year of 2019, the Group changed the houses and buildings with a carrying
amount of RMB82,667 thousand (A cost of: RMB118,608 thousand) for self use and transferred them into fixed
assets at the date of change of use.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group changed the investment properties with a carrying amount of
RMB32,912 thousand (A cost of: RMB32,912 thousand) to inventory; for the year of 2019, the Group changed the
investment properties with a carrying amount of RMB1,078,525 thousand (A cost of: RMB1,080,087 thousand) to
inventory.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group changed the inventory with a carrying amount of RMB1,332,668
thousand (A cost of: RMB1,332,668 thousand) to lease, and transfers the inventory into investment properties
at the date of change of use; for the year of 2019, the Group changed the inventory with a carrying amount
of RMB3,881,747 thousand (A cost of: RMB3,881,747 thousand) to lease, and transferred the inventory into
investment properties at the date of change of use.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Group has no fixed assets changed into investment properties; for
the year of 2019, the Group changed the fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB383,002 thousand (A cost of:
RMB396,160 thousand) to lease, and transferred from fixed assets to investment properties at the date of change
of use.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, no construction in progress of the Group is accounted for as
investment properties; for the year of 2019, the Group’s construction in progress project with a carrying amount
of RMB891,908 thousand (A cost of: RMB891,908 thousand) was completed and used for leasing, which was
changed to investment properties.

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the investment properties that were pledged by the Group to banks
for borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

17. Fixed assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Office

equipment,

temporary

Machinery and Motor  facilities and
Buildings equipment vehicles others Total

Cost

© Opening balance of the period 28,359,820 17,923,910 3,259,952 16,023,119 65,566,801
e e 5 15,156519,005 ........... ; 78,601 .......... 1,248,012 .......... 2,260,774
Trmzfteerf/‘”fg construction in progress 410,339 182,536 97 258,102 851,074
e R 5 26,154945,657 ............ 60,367 ............. 923,927 .......... 2,456,105
...... Dlsposalsorretlrements(205,462)(241,894)(137,785)(788,278)(1,373,419)
...... Otherdecrease(173,523)(180,214)(18,394)(1,962,388)(2,334,519)
. Closmgbalanceoftheperlod ........................ 29,232,484 ........... 19’149’000 ........ 3,342,838 ........ 15’702,494 ........ 67,426,816
Accumulateddeprematlon ....................................................................................................................................................
""" Opening balance of the period ~ (4,878,782)  (9,840,821) (2,184,862)  (10,818,006) (27,722,471)
""" Depreciation acorued during the period ~ (459,132)  (663,847)  (183,379)  (1,936,261)  (3,242,619)
...... Otheraddltlons(51,715)(95,660)(57,810)(142,124)(347,309)
. D|sposalsorret|rements ...................................... 39’324 ................ ] 65,730 ........... ; 11,611 ............. 664,701 ............. 981,366
e R 21,376 ................ ; 21,94117,869 ............. 444’357 ............. 605,543
""" Closing balance of the period ~ (5,328,929)  (10,312,657) (2,296,571)  (11,787,333)  (29,725,490)
. Impa e e
...... Opemngbalanceofthepemod(213,151)(39,819)(28,508)(8,356)(289,834)

...... e
(Note V. 24) (2,745) (553) (163) (3,461)
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
17. Fixed assets (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

2019
Office
equipment,
temporary
Machinery and Motor  facilities and
Buildings equipment vehicles others Total

Transfers from construction in progress
(Note V, 18)

Depreciation provided during the year
(Note V, 24)
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17.

18.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Fixed assets (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)
Fixed assets held under a finance lease are as follows:

30 June 2020

Accumulated Impairment
Cost depreciation allowance Net book value
Machinery and equipment 755,205 (145,738) - 609,467
31 December 2019
Accumulated Impairment
Cost depreciation allowance Net book value
Machinery and equipment 717,777 (136,910) - 580,867
Motor vehicles 46,973 (32,989) (5,371) 8,613
Total 764,750 (169,899) (5,371) 589,480

As at 30 June 2020, the fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB140,796 thousand,and a cost of RMB222,651
thousand are leased out under operating leases (31 December 2019: a carrying amount of RMB241,269 thousand
and a cost of RMB411,214 thousand).

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the fixed assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.

Construction in progress

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying  Impairment Net book Carrying  Impairment Net book
amount allowance value amount allowance value
Construction in progress 11,116,189 (252,521) 10,863,668 10,338,334 (252,521) 10,085,813

The movements of significant projects of construction in progress are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening Transfer to Other Closing Proportion of
Budgeted  balance of fixed assets  Transferred ~ Balance of investment to
amount  the period  Additions ~ (Note V, 17) out  the period Source of funds  budget (%)

Beijing Advanced Business Park Office Building of _ _ s
China Constuction Thid Engineerng Bureau Co,, Lid 2,152,390 1,515,607 178,887 1,694,494 Self-funding and loan 79
Shanghai Zhongjianyuelan Mountain Project 1,473,684 792,545 59,966 - - 852,511 Self-funding 58
Constrcton o Ziangjang Sun Bidge i 3009157 805722 11,53 - - 817075  Self-funding and loan 2

Pudong New Area

CSCEC JinXiuTianDi Construction Projects 1,290,670 650,106 93,815 - - 743,921 Self-funding and loan 58
SongJiang Building Construction Project. 1,395,072 559,191 124,281 - - 683,472 Self-funding 49
Wanning Jinxin Grand Hyatt 1,313,996 610,566 - - - 610,566 Self-funding 46
Liutai Building of China Construction Sixth 62208 420767 _ _ _ 420767 Self-funding 67

Engineering Division Corp. Ltd
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18.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Construction in progress (continued)

The movements of significant projects of construction in progress are as follows (continued):

2019
Opening Transfer to Other Closing Proportion of
Budgeted balance fixed assets  Transferred balance investment to
amount  of the year ~ Additions ~ (Note V, 17) out  of the year Source of funds budget (%)

Beijing Advanced Business Park Office
Building of China Construction Third 2,281,672 1256976 258,631 - - 1515607  Self-funding and loan 66
Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd

Construction of Zhangjiang Sun Bridge
in Pudong New Area

Shanghai Zhongjianyuelan Mountain
Project

Liutai Building of China Construction

S Engioting Dvisn Corp. i 632208 420767 . . - e Selffunding 67
Soggj'ei';gY“”Zh“She”La” Construction—— asno00 3186 42654 - - 344140 Selffunding and loan %
e Com B -
Others NA 5071987 4231920  (3075364) (1805.886) 4422666 Self-unding and loan N/A

Total 8544308 667525  (3,075364) (1.805,8%6) 10,338,334

The movements of significant projects of construction in progress are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020:

Accumulated Including: ~ Capitalisation rate
amount of interest  Interest capitalised  during the period
Progress capitalised  during the period (%)
Beijing Advanced Business Park Office Building of o

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd e 154711 R il
Construction of Zhangjiang Sun Bridge in pudong new area 26% 1,445 1,021 4.28
CSCEC JinXiuTianDi construction projects 58% 104,563 32,748 4.28
SongdJiang Building construction project 96% 3,585 - 4.75
Others N/A 45,146 15,469 N/A

Total 309,450 80,088

2019

Accumulated Including: Capitalisation rate
amount of interest Interest capitalised during the year
Progress capitalised during the year (%)
Beijing Advanced Business Park Office Building of 66°% 103861 61,533 578

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Co., Ltd

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the construction in progress that were pledged by the Group to banks
for borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18. Construction in progress (continued)

Impairment allowance of construction in progress:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance of the period Increase during the period Closing Balance of the period Reasons
252,521 - 252,521 than-lt-:: ?:c(:)lir;,:al:‘leei:mhi?uhﬂ

2019
Opening balance of the year Increase during the year Closing Balance of the year Reasons

250,945 1576 252 521 The book value is higher
than the recoverable amount.

19. Intangible assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Land use rights Franchise rights Software Others Total
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

19. Intangible assets (continued)

2019

Land use rights  Franchise rights Software Others Total

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the intangible assets that were pledged by the Group to banks for
borrowings are presented in details in Note V, 66.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

20. Goodwill

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance Increase during Other  Closing balance

The invested entity of the period the period movements of the period
China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd.

(“China Overseas Land & Investment”) 1,498,889 - 30,486 1,529,375
China State Construction Development Holdings

Limited (formerly “Far East Global Group Ltd".) Sibese L 2alel
Plaza Construction LLP 105,551 - 1,563 107,114
Financiere Groupe Betom - 59,210 - 59,210
China Construction Sixth Engineering D|V|s!on Water 42,797 B _ 42,797

Conservancy and Hydropower Construction Group
CSCEC Zhong Huan Engineering Co., Ltd. 40,103 = = 40,103
Yueyang Hecheng Construction Investment 27,027 - - 27,027
China State Construction Built Port Group 15,583 - - 15,583
Jimsar County Tianyu Huaxin Cement 14,601 3 a 14,601

Development Co., Ltd.

Opening balance Increase during Other  Closing balance
The invested entity of the year the year movements of the year
China Overseas Land & Investment 1,480,259 - 18,630 1,498,889
China State Construction Development 504,878 B 6,354 511,032

Holdings Limited

China Construction Sixth Engineering Division Water

Conservancy and Hydropower Construction Group N 42,797 - 42,797
CSCEC Zhong Huan Engineering Co., Ltd. 40,103 - - 40,103
Yueyang Hecheng Construction Investment 27,027 - - 27,027
China State Construction Built Port Group 15,583 - - 15,583
Jimsar County Tianyu Huaxin Cement Development 14 601 B B 14 601

Co., Ltd.
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20.

21.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Changes in impairment provisions of goodwill are as below:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance
of the period

Closing balance

Other movements of the period

Jimsar County Tianyu Huaxin Cement

Development Co., Ltd. LR B e
B e S s pee—— T
e e e oy e
B s s e
e oo o Sy
2019

Opening balance
of the year

Closing balance
of the year

Jimsar County Tianyu Huaxin Cement
Development Co., Ltd.

Other movements are mainly due to changes in exchange rates.

The measurement basis and main assumptions for the recoverable amounts of the above asset groups are as
follows:

The recoverable amount is determined on the higher term between the fair value of the asset group, net of disposal
costs, and the present value of the expected future cash flows of the asset.

For the asset group or portfolio of China Overseas Land & Investment and China State Construction Development,
the fair value less disposal expenses were higher than the book value, and there was no impairment of the relevant
goodwill.

Long-term prepaid expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening Closing

balance Other balance

of the period  Increase Amortisation  decrease  of the period

Expenditure on improvement of leased fixed assets 417,141 49,851 (45,676) (3,808) 417,508
66,650 17,238
452,009 98,457

00 165,546

Opening Closing

balance Other balance

of the year  Increase Amortisation decrease of the year

Expenditure on improvement of leased fixed assets 385,186 221,092 (177,359) (11,778) 417,141
Office rent 68,963 21,754 (21,728) (2,339) 66,650
Others 282,043 317,240 (139,124) (8,150) 452,009
Total 736,192 560,086 (338,211) (22,267) 935,800
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22.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Deductible Deductible
temporary temporary
differences Deferred differences Deferred
and losses tax assets and losses tax assets

Deferred tax assets

Elimination of intra-group

unrealized profit 6,193,806 1,472,291 4,803,177 1,128,760
Acoruedexpenses24,332,1836,119,692236306825790401
Accrued||ab|||t|es1,876,099343,119 ............... 1 955638370269
e Deduct|b|e|osses .......................................... 1 7,140,4424,225,688 ............. 149308263746808
- D|5counted|ong_termrece|vab|es ..................... 1 30,19821,43329449064635
I O thers1,377,083320,296843397 .................. 189379
Tota|83,082,605 ............. 1 8,579,67475674704 ............. 16854470

Deferred tax assets and liabilities without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances.

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation of fixed assets 373,032 84,147 381,667 86,633
Fair value adjustment of business
combinations involving enterprises 16,209,571 4,050,223 11,861,961 3,025,403
not under common control
Changes in fair value of 1,176,488 248,075 1,915,474 403,898
financial assets
Gain from special restructuring of 1,179,437 294,859 1,179,437 294,859
subsidiaries (Note 1)
Withholding tax for dividends 4,273,974 213,699 3,530,376 176,519

(Note 2)

Note 1: According to Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Enterprise
Income Tax Treatment of Enterprise Reorganization (Cai Shui [2009] No. 59), deferred tax liabilities are recognised
by the Company and other related subsidiaries for the difference between tax base and accounting base of equity
investment arising from reorganization of West Construction.

Note 2: According to the arrangement between Mainland China and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region over
income taxes to avoid double taxation and tax evasion, signed between Mainland China and Hong Kong, withholding
tax for dividends are provided by domestic subsidiaries, domestic associates and domestic joint ventures of the
subsidiaries of China Overseas Land & Investment and China State Construction International Holdings Limited
(“China State Construction International”) for profit estimated to be distributed to the subsidiaries of China Overseas
Land & Investment and China State Construction International at the tax rate of 5%.
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22,

23.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities (continued)

Preferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities that are presented at the net amount after offsetting.

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Offsetting Net amount Offsetting Net amount
amount after offsetting amount after offsetting
Deferred tax assets 1,457,465 17,122,209 1,725,342 15,129,128
Deferredtaxhabmtles1,457,4656,280,663 ............... ] 7253424655710

Deductible temporary differences and deductible tax losses for which deferred tax assets are not recognized are
listed as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Deductible temporary differences 15,916,524 16,104,017
Deductible tax losses 19,374,453 19,046,329
Total 35,290,977 35,150,346

Deductible tax losses that are not recognised as deferred tax assets will expire in the following years:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
2020 916,677 1,137,200

Other non-current assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Contract asset (Note 9) 144,410,985 146,917,573

As at 30 June 2020, the impairment allowance of the above contract assets is RMB1,578,640 thousand (31
December 2019: RMB1,987,046 thousand).



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
138 CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

24. Impairment allowance of assets

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Decrease

Opening ) . Closing
balance Provision during the period balance
of the for the Transfer/ Other of the
period period Reversal Write-off movement period

Provision for impairment of 53 g04 177 7,070,827  (5,094,854) (40,099) (47,641) 25,692,410
accounts receivable

Impairment allowance of
other receivables

Impairment allowance of
other current assets

Impairment allowance of
current portion of non- 846,270 797,775 (64,505) (394) 162,430 1,741,576
current assets

Impairment allowance of
other non-current assets

Impairment allowance of

debt investments 40,282 1,220 (10,276) - 103 31,329

Impairment allowance of 916,396 937,032  (106,446) - (72,513) 1,674,469
long-term receivables

Impairment allowance of 2,980,333 486,882  (167,488) - (34,687) 3,265,040
contract assets

Impairment provision for 4,200,108 - (169,265) (2,279) 31,216 4,059,780
write-down of inventories

Impairment allowance
of long-term equity 294,056 - - - - 294,056
investments

'mfpa'rmem allowance of 289,834 3,461 - (4,345) (2,010) 286,940
ixed assets

Impalrment'allolvvance of 252,521 _ _ _ _ 252,521
construction in progress

Imlpa|rment aIIowanc«_a of _ 836 _ _ (836) _
investment properties

Imlpalrmlent allowance of 2,286,896 _ _ _ (120) 2,286,776
intangible assets

Impairment allowance of 39,073 _ _ _ 230 39,303

goodwill
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24,

25.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Impairment allowance of assets (continued)

2019

Impairment allowance of
accounts receivable

Impairment allowance of
other receivables

Impairment allowance of
other current assets

Impairment allowance of current
portion of non-current assets

Impairment allowance of
other non-current assets

Impairment allowance of
debt investments

Impairment allowance of
long-term receivables

Impairment allowance of
available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment allowance of
contract assets

Impairment provision for
write-down of inventories

Impairment allowance of
long-term equity investments

Impairment allowance of
construction in progress

Impairment allowance of
investment properties

Impairment allowance of
intangible assets

Short-term borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

The annual interest rate for the above borrowings varied from 0.28% to 10.00% (31 December 2019: 0.25% to

10.00%).

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had a short-term loan principal of RMB257,425,000 thousand pledged by the letter

Closing
balance at
the end of

the year

20,453,337

Changes in
accounting
policies

3,323,905

Opening
balance of
the year

23,777,242

of credit (31 December 2019: RMB113,232,000 thousand).

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group has mortgaged or pledged various assets to banks as

Provision for
the year

5,010,216

security for borrowings that are presented in details in Note V,66.

Decrease

during the year
Transfer/
Reversal Write-off
(4,340,373) (714,592)
(891,574) (135,135)
(31,536) (4,251)
(63,636) (61)

(6,206) -
(37,285) -
(350,747) -
(1271,330)  (986,003)
- (1,953)
(7.291690) (1,843,456

30 June 2020
59,886,932

Closing

Other  balance of
movement the year
71,684 23,804,177
(15,086) 7,081,322
45,216 1,483,067
14,408 846,270
32,129 1,995,266
- 637,280

(603) 40,282
29,388 916,396
(119,664) 2,980,333
11,995 4,200,108

- 294,056

1,034 289,834

- 252,521
(1,027) -

31 December 2019
26,133,385
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26.

27.

28.

29.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Notes payable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Commercial acceptance bills 2,713,550 1,198,862

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are usually paid within the agreed period.

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Payables for projects and for real estate development 257,398,062 260,159,968

As at 30 June 2020, accounts payable over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB153,652,401 thousand (31
December 2019: RMB104,131,676 thousand) are mainly payables for projects, which are unsettled due to the fact
that project have not completed or settled.

Advances from customers

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Others 607,749 449,953

As at 30 June 2020, advances from customers over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB17,165 thousand (31
December 2019: RMB4,873 thousand), are mainly for advance rent receipts.

Contract liabilities

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Amount due to customers for contract work 61,076,984 61,909,554
AdvancesforprOJeCtS ............................................................................................... 50,229,835 ................... 44520387
Presalesdeposlts ................................................................................................... 178,238,485 ................. 171677198
Others .......................................................................................................................... 3,353,831 ..................... 3682445
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

29. Contract liabilities (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of pre-sales deposits are as follows:

Estimated
completion/ Pre-sale
30 June 31 December completion percentage
Project name 2020 2019 date (Note) (%) (Note)
Project TianZuan 7,645,216 6,642,900 December 2020 70

Beixinan Shanty Town Repair Housing
Placement Project

Huinan Minle Project Phase 1,
Pudong, Shanghai

Tsingdao Jiaodong International Airport
Staff Quarter Project Ground B 1,747,196 1,740,925 December 2020 100
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V.

29.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Contract liabilities (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the details of pre-sales deposits are as follows (continued):

Estimated
completion/ Pre-sale
30 June 31 December completion percentage
Project name 2020 2019 date (Note) (%) (Note)
No. 7 Institute of China Construction 1,464,929 1,084,058 June 2021 86

Areas B and C of China Construction
Jinxiu Tiandi

Shanghai Pudong New District Caolu Town

District-level Affordable Housing 1,092,664 1,092,664 August 2020 100
Project Phase |
SongjlangYunzhushenIan1,062,403 ............... 673575December2020 ................... 100
TSQ{%?:& éng:l|n§2hzlﬁi::2?§;g;) 1,053,939 838,870  December 2020 70
Zhongjlandmxmshoufu1,043,797 ............... 670107 ................. June2021 ..................... 12
ChongqmgZhongjlanYuhecheng(PhaseI)1,033,558 ............... 840857December2020 ..................... 65
Harmehonghalheyuan1,014,021 ............... 771747December2020 ..................... 71
. Ot he r S ......................................................................... 60,991,529 .......... 7395980 6 ............................................................
. Total ........................................................................... 1 78,238,485 ........ 17 16771 9 8 ............................................................

Note: Most of the above projects are phased development projects. The estimated completion time is the last phase
of completion, and the pre-sale ratio is the proportion of the contracted area of the housing area that meets the
sales conditions at the end of each year/period.
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V.

30.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Employee benefits payable

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening
balance of
the period

Short-term employee benefits payable 7,474,848
Defined contribution plans payable
(Defined contribution plans) LRI
Termination benefits payable (Note V, 38) 23,640
Total 7,757,862
2019

Opening
balance of

the year
8,158,253

Short-term employee benefits payable are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening
balance of
the period

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies 6,192,039
Staff welfare 19,766
Social security 122,542
Including: Medical insurance 105,044
Work injury insurance 8,261

Maternity insurance 9,237
Supplementary commercial insurance 9,336
Housing funds 109,601
Uneizrsjcr:;ginngocstists and employee 1,000,494
Other short-term benefits 21,070
Total 7,474,848

Increase
during
the period

34,984,155

Increase
during
the year

67,587,891

Increase
during
the period

29,290,993

Decrease
during
the period

(36,652,021)

Decrease
during
the year

(68,271,296)

Decrease
during
the period

(31,121,122)

Closing
balance of
the period

5,806,982

Closing
balance of
the year

7,474,848

Closing
balance of
the period

4,361,910
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

30. Employee benefits payable (continued)

Short-term employee benefits payable are as follows (continued):

2019
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the year the year the year the year
Salaries,bonuses,allowances and subsidies 7,039,856 54,860,189 (55,708,006) 6,192,039
i welae e 4392885 4444444444 (4449270) ................ . 9766
Somalsecunty ..................................................................... oaes 2703451 4444444444 (2668775) .............. . 22542
LT Includmgl\/Ied|caI|nsurance .......................................... e 2321832 4444444444 (2290614) .............. . 05044
20 Workmjurylnsurance ....................................... 6866192765 ............. (191370)8261
BT Matermtymsuranoe7174188854 ............. (186791)9237
Supplementarycommermalmsurance ................................. 2766112850 ............. (106280)9336
Housmgfunds106036 ........... 3519418 4444444444 (3515853)109601
Union running costs and employee 829,263 1,707,891 (1,536,660) 1,000,494
education costs
e Shoma 291207 ............. (286452)21070
L 8158253 ......... 67587891 44444444 (68271296) .......... 7474848
Defined contribution plans payable are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period
Basic pension insurance 181,653 1,283,479 (1,322,673) 142,459

Opening Increase Decrease Closing

balance of during during balance of

the year the year the year the year

Basic pension insurance 169,913 4,769,231 (4,757,491) 181,653
Contribution to pension fund 47,510 752,711 (740,341) 59,880
Unemployment insurance 18,821 185,126 (186,106) 17,841

Total 236,244 5,707,068 (5,683,938

N
(o))
©:°
w
~
N
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V.

31.

32.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Taxes and surcharges payable

31 December 2019
27,237,277

30 June 2020
28,474,718

Land appreciation tax

Other payables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Dividends payable 4,084,750 1,155,457

114 641

Dividends payable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 3,112,436 285,457
Preference shares/perpetual bond dividends payable 972,314 870,000
Total 4,084,750 1,155,457

Other payables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Guarantees payable 27,599,856 33,180,212
PrOJectfmancmgpayabIe ......................................................................................... 33,995,471 ................... 25061553
o p03|t spayable ........................................................................................................ 5,849,708 ..................... 7368956
Payablesfor e 24,402,359 ................... 1841 1755
Paymentdue VAo ObJeCt ..................................................... 2,467,764 ..................... 2503978
e 19,928,132 ................... 26348730
e 114’243,290 ................. 112875184

As at 30 June 2020, other payables over 1 year with a carrying amount of RMB31,549,977 thousand (31 December
2019: RMB26,353,176 thousand) are mainly guarantees payable and project financing payable, which were
unsettled due to the incompleteness of projects.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

33. Current portion of non-current liabilities

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Current portion of long-term borrowings (Note V, 35) 47,869,613 41,595,291

34. Other current liabilities

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
VAT output to be transferred 65,383,111 62,290,430

Note 1: The information of short-term financing bonds is listed as follows:

Interest
payable in Annual
Opening In current current Closing interest
balance period period balance rate (%)

The first phase of ultra-short-term
financing bonds of China Construction - 1,999,514 - 1,999,514 2.60
Seventh Bureau in 2020

Theflrstphaseofultrashortterm ..................................................................................................................................
financing bonds of China Construction - 500,000 - 500,000 2.00

Eighth Bureau in 2020



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD  INTERIM REPORT 2020

V.

35.

36.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Long-term borrowings

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Unsecured borrowings 224,268,654 199,982,715

As at 30 June 2020, the annual interest rate of long-term borrowings (including current portion of long-term
borrowings) varied from 1.20% to 7.00% (31 December 2019: 1.20% to 9.50%).

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had RMB5,575,900 thousand long-term loan principal mortgaged by the project
franchise (31 December 2019: RMB5,426,333 thousand).

At 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group has mortgaged or pledged various assets to banks as security
for borrowings that are presented in detail in Note V, 66.

Bonds payable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Corporate bonds 32,767,884 34,007,172
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V.

37.

38.

(a)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term payables

Long-term payables

30 June 2020
24,276,096

31 December 2019
26,917,481

Project quality warranty payable

Long-term employee benefits payable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Net defined benefit liability (a) 1,954,927 1,984,467
Long-term termination benefits (b) 96,802 103,662
2,051,729 2,088,129

Less: Termination benefits expected to
be paid within one year (Note V, 30) (L) (23,640)
Total 2,027,549 2,064,489

Net defined benefit liability

The Company pays supplementary retirement benefits for its employees who retired on or before 31 March 2007
in addition to the contribution made to statutory insurance schemes. Such supplementary retirement benefits
are defined benefit plans. The present value of the defined benefit plan obligation is calculated annually by the
external independent actuary Towers Watson Consulting Company based on the interest rate of the national debt
similar to the obligation period and currency, using the expected cumulative benefit unit method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Discount rate 3.00% 3.25%

Annuql growth rate of living expenses for the 4.50% 4.50%
family dependents of deceased employees

Annual growth rate of average medical expenses 8.00% 8.00%

Annual growth rate of supplementary welfare for 0.00% 0.00%

retired employees

Mortality rate

Move three years
backward annuity
life chart of
China’s Life
Insurance
Industry of
man/women
(Year 2010-2013)

Move three years
backward annuity
life chart of
China’s Life
Insurance
Industry of
man/women
(Year 2010-2013)
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38.

(a)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

Net defined benefit liability (continued)
The quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions used is as follows:

30 June 2020

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

defined defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

% obligations % obligations

Discount rate 0.25 (37,930) 0.25 39,430
31 December 2019

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in (decrease) in

defined defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

% obligations % obligations

Discount rate 0.25 (38,050) 0.25 39,540

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the balance sheet date. The
sensitivity analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant. The
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

For the

six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Past service cost - 73,297
Net interest 30,210 61,140
Net cost of post-employment benefits 30,210 134,437
Recognised in administrative expenses - 73,297
Recognised in finance expenses 30,210 61,140
Total 30,210 134,437

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

For the

six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Opening balance 1,984,467 2,035,172
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

38. Long-term employee benefits payable (continued)

(b) Long-term termination benefits

Some of the Group’s employees early retired. At the balance sheet date, the main actuarial assumptions used to

determine the Group’s early retirement benefits payable are as follows:

Discount rate

Annual growth rate of living expenses for the
family dependents of deceased employees

Mortality rate

30 June 2020

Move three years
backward annuity
life chart of
China’s Life
Insurance
Industry of
man/women
(Year 2010-2013)

31 December 2019

Move three years
backward annuity
life chart of
China’s Life
Insurance
Industry of
man/women
(Year 2010-2013)

Early retirement benefits recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
General and administrative expenses 4,220 12,407
Finance expenses 1,010 2,110
39. Provisions
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance of during during balance of
the period the period the period the period
Pending litigations 2,684,015 113,516 (10,053) 2,787,478

arranties
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

40. Deferred income

30 June 2020
461,689

31 December 2019

Government grant

As at 30 June 2020, government grants related to liabilities were as follows:

Amount
Amount  recognised
recognised in non- Other
Opening Increase in other operating changes Closing Related to
balance during income income during  balance assets/
of the the  during the  during the the of the  Related to
period period period period period period income

Government compensation for
workshop constructloq of 118,314 19,851 (171) _ - 137,994 Related to
Guangdong construction assets
base Co., Ltd.

Government compensation for Related to
demolition of Tangshan Fengrun 82,432 - - (2,512) - 79,920 assets
District Linyin Road West Side land

Government compensation for Related to
demolition of Guiyang Dayingpo 75,001 - - (1,185) - 73,816

. ) assets
Renovation Project

Compensation for Tianjin Steel 33,224 3 3 (379) a 32,845 Related to

Structure Land assets
Related to

Others 131,528 53,881 (36,705) (484) (11,106) 137,114 assets and

income

Total 440,499 73,732 (36,876) (4,560) (11,106) 461,689

As at 31 December 2019, government grants related to liabilities were as follows:
Amount
Amount  recognised
recognised in non- Other
Opening Increase in other operating changes Closing  Related to
balance during income income during  balance assets/
of the the  during the  during the the of the  Related to
year year year year year year income

Government compensation for
workshop construcnoq of 33.660 84,654 B B _ 118314 Related to
Guangdong construction assets
base Co., Ltd.

Government compensation for Related 1o
demolition of Tangshan Fengrun 87,480 - - (5,048) - 82,432 assets
District Linyin Road West Side land

Government compensation for Related to
demolition of Guiyang Dayingpo 77,371 - - (2,370) - 75,001

. . assets
Renovation Project

Compensation for Tianjin Steel 33.982 B B (758) B 33.204 Related to

Structure Land assets
Related to

Others 154,852 78,715 (49,791) (17,859) (34,389) 131,628 assets and

income

Total 387,345 163,369 (49,791) (26,035) (34,389) 440,499
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V.

11,

42.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other non-current liabilities

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Exchangeable bonds in 2016 (Note 1) 4,598,295 4,695,968
Prepaldmvestment ofconvemblebondsm2015(Note2) ....................................... 1,649,524 ..................... 1625455
VAToutputtobetransferred ...................................................................................... 1,167,973 ..................... 1415728
ContractI|ab|l|t|esoveroneyear ................................................................................... 555,804 ........................ 583797
e 7,971,596 ..................... 8320948
Note 1: The Group’s subsidiary China Overseas Finance Investment (Cayman) V Limited (here in after “the issuer”)

Note 2:

publicly issued exchangeable bonds of USD1.5 billion on Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 6 January 2016.
The bonds are guaranteed by China Overseas Holdings Limited, and maturity date is 5 January 2023.
Related clauses are as follows:

(1) The bondholder is entitled to apply for redemption of bonds at 111.54% of par value on 5 January
2020;

(2) In cases of the change of guarantor, or delisting or restricted trading of China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd. on Hong Kong Stock Exchange, bond holders have the right to require the issuer
to redeem the bonds readily;

(3) Bond holders have the right to apply for redemption on maturity date at 121.07% of par value;

(4) During the exchange period from 15 February 2016 to 8 work days before maturity date, bond
holders have the right to exchange the bonds for ordinary shares of China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd., the par value of which is HKD0.10, at the price of HKD41.50 per share;

(5) At any time from 5 January 2020 to 7 work days before maturity date, if the stock price of China
Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. during 15 trading days is continuously higher than 130% of early
redemption price set in the agreement divided by exchange rate, the issuer has the right to carry
out exchange in the full (not partial) amount, and should release notice in no more than 3 days
after the matter occurs.

Exchangeable bonds in 2016 were recognised as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
in the first place and disclosed in other non-current liabilities. Since the issuer and bondholders reached
an agreement in December 2019 to partially redeem in 2020, the redemption amount is equivalent to
RMB6,939,864 thousand which disclosed in other non-current liabilities (Note V, 33), of which non-current
portion due with one year was fully redeemed on 5 January, 2020.

Related information regarding prepaid investment of convertible bonds in 2015:

As at 30 June 2020 Strategic Capital, LLC, a subsidiary of the Group, received a prepaid investment of
USD300 million from Riton Holdings Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guoxin International
Investment Co., Ltd.under the convertible bond framework agreement entered into by both parties.

Paid-in capital

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Gpening durmg\{(ﬁg]zgtriod Glosing
balance of balance of
the period Others the period

Shares not subjected to trading restriction 41,141,075 112,528 41,253,603
' Shares subjected to trading resriction (123,086) 711,469
e (10,558)41,965,072
2019

. Movement q
ba%r:wirgnogf VIR A FEE balgézzmo%
the year Others the year

Shares not subjected to trading restriction 41,624,385 (483,310) 41,141,075
Sharessubjectedtotradmgrestncnon360789473766 .................. . 34555
Tota|41985174 .................... (9544)41975630
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V.

43.

(a)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other equity instruments

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening balance of the period Increase during the period Decrease during the period Closing balance of the period
amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value
Preference Share 150,000,000 14,975,410 - - 150,000,000 14,975,410 - -

Opening balance of the year Increase during the year Decrease during the year Closing balance of the year
amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value amount  net book value
Preference Share 150,000,000 14,975,410 - - - - 150,000,000 14,975,410
Perpetua\Bond— ........... 7996770— ..................... R 1996770— ........... 6000000
B ) 2 972 Gy 1 996 Ly ) 0 975“ .

Preference Share

The Company acquired approval on its non-public issue preference shares (Guozi Chanquan ([2014] No. 436)
from the SASAC and permission about its non-public issue preference shares (Zhengjian Approval [2014] No.
1419) from China Securities Regulatory Commission on 10 June 2014 and 25 December 2014, respectively, which
approved that the Company to non-publicly issue preference shares to qualified investors, with total shares no
more than 300,000,000 and initial issued shares no less than 150,000,000, at the issue price of RMB100 per share.
During the period of 5 years commencing from the first value date of each tranche, the Company is entitled to
redeem and cancel all or part of the preference shares of such tranche at the dividend payment date of such
shares each year. The holders have no redemption right to sell them back to the Company. Unless the mandatory
interest payment events whose occurrence can be decided by the Company itself incurred, the Company’s
meeting of shareholders is empowered to decide to cancel all or part of dividends of preference shares, which
will not constitute a default by the Company, and the dividends of preference shares issued at the time will not
be accumulated. The Company received an actual amount of RMB14,975,410 thousand after deducting related
transaction expenses from the total amount collected by initial issuance of 150,000,000 preference shares on 2
March 2015, and classified such amount as other equity instruments.

The dividends of preference shares the Company decided to pay will be paid annually. Dividend payment date
is the day of 1 year commencing from the payment deadline for the issuance of preference shares, while the
dividend payment date for the initially issued preference shares is 2 March. If such date is a legal holiday or
non-working day, it will be postponed to the next working day, and dividends payable will not bear interest during
the postponement. Preference shares issued at the time are at fixed dividend rate attached with one-time rate
raise arrangement. Nominal dividend rate of the initially issued preference shares is determined to be and kept
at 5.80% for the 1st to 5th dividend accrual years through enquiry method. From the 6th dividend accrual year, if
the Company does not exercise all of the rights of redemption, dividend rate per share will be 2 percentage points
higher than that of thelst to 5th dividend accrual years, and will remain the same after the adjustment in the 6th
dividend accrual year.

The aforementioned mandatory interest payment events comprise one of circumstances below occurring within
12 months before dividend payment date: (1) Distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders (including cash,
shares, the combination of cash and shares and other legitimate patterns); (2) Capital withdrawal by shareholders
(except for the redemption and cancellation of shares incurred by equity incentive plan, or the redemption and
cancellation of ordinary shares by issuance of preference shares).

Pursuant to the resolution on the redemption of 150,000,000 unlisted preference shares of China Construction Co.,
Ltd., which were approved at the first extraordinary general meeting of the Company in 2020 dated 19 February
2020, the Company redeemed all preference shares held by all the preference shareholders of the Company on 2
March 2020. After this redemption, the number of preference shares of the Company is zero.

As at 30 June 2020, the Company had no outstanding preference shares (31 December 2019: RMB14,975,410
thousand).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other equity instruments (continued)

Perpetual Bond

(M

On 4 September 2014, the Company issued second medium-term note, of which the value date was 5
September 2014, and it can be redeemed by the Company in 2019 and thereafter. The total issuance
amount was RMB2,000,000 thousand, and the actual amount received was RMB1,996,770 thousand after
deduction of related transaction expenses such as underwriting fees. According to the clauses of the
medium-term note (the “Clauses”), the term of the medium-term note will be indefinite unless the Company
redeemed the note under the Clauses. At the fifth and each interest payment date thereafter, the Company
will be entitled to redeem the medium-term note at par value plus interest payable (including all deferred
interest and accrued interest) (the “Right of redemption”). The holders of the medium-term note have no
redemption right to sell it back to the Company. At each interest payment date, the Company can at its
own discretion choose to postpone payment of the interest for current-period as well as interest deferred
in accordance with the Clauses to the next interest payment date unless the mandatory interest payment
events whose occurrence can be decided by the Company itself incurred. The Company classified the
actual amount received as other equity instruments.

The nominal interest rate of the medium-term notes will be fixed in the first 5 years with annual interest rate
of 6.2%. The annual interest rate will be reset to the current benchmark interest rate plus initial interest-rate
spread (i.e. the variance between nominal interest rate and benchmark interest rate at the issue date) and
200 basis points every 5 years from the sixth interest-bearing year, if the Company did not exercise the
Right of redemption.

The aforementioned mandatory interest payment events comprise one of circumstances below occurring
within 12 months before dividend payment date:(1) Distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders; (2)
Capital withdrawal by shareholders (except for the redemption and cancellation of shares incurred by
incentive plan, or the redemption and cancellation of ordinary shares by issuance of preference shares).

On 5 September 2019, the fifth interest payment date of the perpetual bond, in accordance with the terms
of the issuance terms, the Company exercised the Right of redemption at the face value plus interest
payable and fully redeemed the bonds held by the holders.

On 6 March 2018, the Company signed a perpetual bond contract, of which the value date was 7 March
2018 with China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. and the bond can be redeemed by the Company on 6 September
2018 and thereafter. The amount of the bond was RMB6 billion and the actual amount received was RMB6
billion. According to the clauses of the contract, unless an event triggered by an accelerated repayment
mechanism that can be decided by the Company or by the redemption rights occurs, the perpetual debt
will survive for a long period of time, or unless a compulsory interest payment event occurs that can be
decided by the Company. The Company may defer the current interest and all interest that has been
deferred on each interest payment day at its own discretion. Payment is made on the next interest payment
day and is not subject to any number of deferred interest payments. The Company credits the perpetual
debt to other equity instruments.

The nominal interest rate of the medium-term notes will be fixed in the first 2 years with annual interest rate
of 6.5%. The annual interest rate will be reset to the current benchmark interest rate plus initial interest-rate
spread (i.e. the variance between nominal interest rate and benchmark interest rate at the issue date) and
200 basis points every 2 years from the third interest-bearing year, if the Company did not exercise the
Right of redemption. The final rested interest rate will not exceed 10%.

The accelerated repayment mechanism mentioned previously include: (a) One of the following situations
occurs before the deferred payment of investment income and its fruits is completed (1) Distribution of
dividends to ordinary shareholders. (2) Capital withdrawal by shareholders (except for the redemption and
cancellation of shares incurred by incentive plan, or the redemption and cancellation of ordinary shares by
issuance of preference shares). (b) Events of breach of contract for perpetual bond.
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Other equity instruments (continued)

Perpetual Bond (continued)

(2) [wingg) The aforementioned mandatory interest payment events comprise one of circumstances below occurring

within 12 months before dividend payment date: (1) Distribution of dividends to ordinary shareholders;
(2) Capital withdrawal by shareholders (except for the redemption and cancellation of shares incurred by
incentive plan, or the redemption and cancellation of ordinary shares by issuance of preference shares).

On 6 March, 2020, which is the expiry date of the investment period after the second interest payment date
of the perpetual bond, the Company exercised the Right of redemption at the face value and the interest
payable in accordance with the terms of the issuance, and fully redeemed bonds held by the holders.

During the period from 1 April 2020 to 2 April 2020, the Company issued the 2020 first-phase medium-term
notes of which the value date was 3 April 2020, and it can be redeemed by the Company on 3 April 2023
and there after. The total issuance amount was RMB4,000,000 thousand, and the actual amount received
was RMB4,000,000 thousand. The value date of issuance from April 9 to April 10, 2020 is April 13, 2020,
and it can be issued on April 13, 2023 The second-phase medium-term notes can be redeemed on April
3, 2023 and beyond and thereafter has a total issuance of RMBS3 billion, and the actual receipt of RMB3
billion. The value date of the company’s issuance from April 16 to April 17, 2020 is April 20, 2020, the
2020 third-phase medium-term notes, which can be redeemed on and after April 20, 2023, have a total
issuance of RMB3 billion, and actually received RMB3 billion. According to the issuance terms of the batch
of medium-term notes, the batch of medium-term notes will last for a long time before being redeemed by
the Company. On the third and every subsequent interest payment date of the batch of medium-term notes,
the company has the right to redeem the batch of medium-term notes (hereinafter referred to as Right of
“redemption”) at face value plus interest payable (including all deferred interest and its yield). Investors of
this batch of medium-term notes have no right to sell back. Unless there is a compulsory interest payment
event that can be determined by the company to control whether it occurs, on each interest payment date
of the batch of medium-term notes, the company can choose to include the current interest and all interest
and its fruits that have been deferred in accordance with the terms. Interest is deferred to the next interest
payment date, and is not subject to any restrictions on the number of deferred interest payments. The
company accounts for the amount actually received after deducting the relevant transaction costs from the
total issuance as other equity instruments.

The coupon rate of this batch of medium-term notes remained unchanged for the first three interest-bearing
years. The annual interest rate of the first phase of medium-term notes in 2020 is 3.29%, and the annual
interest rate of the second phase of medium-term notes in 2020 is 3.10%. The annual interest rate of the
third-phase medium-term notes is 3.09%. If the Company does not exercise the Right of redemption, the
annual interest rate will be reset every 3 years based on the current benchmark interest rate plus the initial
spread plus 300 basis points from the fourth interest calculation year. Among them, the initial spread is the
difference between the coupon rate and the initial benchmark interest rate.

The aforementioned compulsory interest payment event refers to one of the following circumstance
occurring within 12 months before the interest payment date: (1) Dividend distribution to ordinary
shareholders (except for the profit paid by a wholly state-owned enterprise); (2) Reduction of registered
capital. The issuer promises that there is no hidden compulsory dividend.

As of 30 June 2020, the carrying amount of the perpetual bonds issued by the Company was
RMB10,000,000 thousand (31 December 2019: RMB6,000,000 thousand).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Capital reserve

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening

balance of the

period

Capital premium 10,377,619

Others 1,649,991

Total 12,027,610
2019

Opening

balance of the

year

Capital premium 10,184,032

Others 1,078,257

Total 11,262,289

Note: Increase in share premium is mainly due to the second batch of second-phase restricted stocks unlocked on
29 December, 2019 (as described in Note XI), and the impact on changes in the shareholding ratio of subsidiaries.
The changes in other capital reserve were mainly due to the share option expenses recognized, and changes in the
equity of the investee accounted for under the equity method other than the changes recorded in comprehensive

income and profit distribution.

Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent in the consolidated

balance sheet:

Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan

Other comprehensive income of the investee accounted
for under the equity method which will be reclassified
to profit or loss subsequently

Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency
financial statements

Other comprehensive income of the investee accounted
for under the equity method which will be reclassified
to profit or loss subsequently

Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency
financial statements

Increase during
the period
(Note)

Increase during
the year
(Note)

237,955

1 January
2020

(199,879)

1 January
2019

(172,189)

Decrease
during the
period

Decrease
during the
year

(44,368)

Increase/
decrease

(37,920)

Increase/
decrease

(27,690)

Closing
balance of the
period

10,377,619

Closing
balance of the
year

10,377,619

30 June
2020

(237,799)

31 December
2019

(199,879)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Other comprehensive income (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Less:
Reclassification
of other
comprehensive Attributable to Attributable to
income to Less: owners of non-controlling
Before tax profit or loss Income tax the parent interests
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains or losses of a defined benefit plan (37,920) = = (37,920) =
Change in the fair value of other equity investments (134,141) (357,188) 247,313 (244,016) =
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income of the investee accounted for under the
equity method which will be reclassified to proft or loss i B B i) s
Change in the fair value of other debt investments (11,280) - - (7,914) (3,366)
Exchange d\fferenceg on I@nslahon of 14,840 _ _ (18,570) 3410
foreign currency financial statements
Total (421,217) (357,188) 247313 (353,868) (177,224)
2019
Less:
Reclassification
of other
comprehensive Attributable to Attributable to
income to Less: owners of  non-controlling
Before tax profit or loss Income tax the parent interests

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Qther comprehensive income of the investee accounted for under the

equity method which will be reclassified to profit or loss (304,360) ) ) (189.202) (116,168)
Change in the fair value of other debt investments 13810 8,298 - 11,483 10,625
Exchange d\fference§ on t.ranslatlon of (275.265) . ) (275,265) B

foreign currency financial statements

Total 938,118 6,063 (338,042) 580,780 25,349
Special reserve
For the six months ended 30 June 2020
Opening Decrease Closing
balance of the Increase during during the balance of the
period the period period period
Safety production funds 88,474 9,855,226 (9,822,582) 121,118
2019
Opening Decrease Closing
balance of the Increase during during the balance of the
year the year year year
Safety production funds 77,329 23,237,877 (23,226,732) 88,474
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Surplus reserve

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Decrease Closing

Opening Increase during during the balance of the

balance the period period period

Statutory surplus reserve 7,716,149 - - 7,716,149

2019

Changes in

Balance at accounting Opening Increase Closing

the end of policies balance during the balance

prior year (Note 1) of the year year of the year

Statutory surplus reserve 6,003,665 72,060 6,075,725 1,640,424 7,716,149

Note 1: As at 1 January 2019, due to the first implementation of the New Financial Instruments Standard, the
adjustment of the surplus reserve was RMB72,060 thousand.

According to the provisions of the Company Law and the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company
appropriates 10% of the net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. Where the accumulated amount of the surplus
reserve reaches 50% or more of the Company'’s registered capital, further appropriation is not required.

When approved, the statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for accumulated losses or converted to the
paid-in capital.

Retained earnings

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year before adjustment 197,541,411 165,628,207

681

Retained earnings at the beginning of the period/year after
adjustment
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Retained earning (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

As at 1 January 2019, due to the first implementation of the New Financial Instruments Standard, the
undistributed profit at the beginning of 2019 was increased by RMB516,681 thousand.

In accordance with the requirements of the Administrative Measures for the Provision of Reserves of
Financial Enterprises (Cai Jin [2012] No. 20), financial institutions (including financial companies) shall
provide general risk reserve for assets bearing risks and losses at the balance sheet date. The general
reserve shall be appropriated from net profit as profit distribution with an appropriation ratio not lower
than 1.5% of risk assets at end of year. If it's difficult for financial institutions to appropriate 1.5% general
reserve at one time, it can also be made in years but principally not more than 5 years. The general risk
reserve of China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. (“Finance Company”) in 2019 was RMB618,176
thousand, of which the amount attributable to shareholders of the parent company was RMB494,541
thousand. It was fully withdrawn on 31 December 2019. No general risk provisions were made for the six
months ended 30 June 2020.

According to the resolution at the General Meeting of Shareholders dated 25 May 2020, the Company
proposed a cash dividend of RMBO0.185 (before tax) per share to the shareholders on 24 June 2020,
multiplied by the number which resulted in the total amount of RMB7.764 billion (2019: RMB7.053 billion)
of shares of 41.97 billion before the implementation of the profit distribution plan.

As stated in Note V, 43, according to the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders on May 25,
2020, the Company’s payment of 2019 cash dividends to ordinary shareholders was one of the mandatory
interest payment events stipulated in the perpetual bond clauses of the 2020 three-phase medium-term
notes (total RMB10 billion), which required the Company to pay the dividends on the most recent perpetual
bond interest date (the first phase of the 2020 mid-term notes is 3 April 2021, the second phase of
medium-term notes is 13 April 2021, and the third phase of 2020 mid-term notes is 20 April 2021). In
addition, on 6 March 2020, the Company exercised the redemption right at the face value with the interest
payable in accordance with the terms of the issuance, and fully redeemed the perpetual bonds issued
on 6 March 2018 with the amount of RMB6 billion. Therefore, the Company accrued a total dividend of
RMB402,574 thousand on perpetual bonds during the six-month period ended 30 June 2020. In 2019, a
dividend of RMB870 million was accrued for preference shares and RMB432,795 thousand for perpetual
bonds.

Revenue and cost of sales

For the six months ended For the six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
revenue cost revenue cost
Revenue from main operations 727,003,982 647,401,468 683,466,752 614,454,158
Revenue from other operations 1,183,785 977,705 1,952,563 1,546,634
Total 728,187,767 648,379,173 685,419,315 616,000,792
Revenue is as follows:
For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Revenue from contracts with customers 727,604,829 684,744,896

Please refer to Note XIV, 1 for details of analysis of the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by industry and region.
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Revenue and cost of sales (continued)

Revenue is as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Building
construction
engineering

464,365,337

Revenue from main operations

For the six months ended 30 June 2019

Building
construction
engineering

Revenue from main operations 434,305,076
Revenue recognized at a point of time -
Revenue recognized over time 434,305,076

Revenue from other operations -

Total 434,305,076

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Infrastructure Real estate
construction ~ development Prospecting
and and and
investment investment design Others Total
144,408,601 108,624,505 3,935,982 5,669,557 727,003,982

Infrastructure Real estate

construction ~ development Prospecting

and and and
investment investment design Others Total
140,454,690 97,703,703 5,040,661 5,961,722 683,466,752
- 86,313,420 - 2,352,327 88,665,747
140,454,690 11,390,283 5,040,661 3,609,395 594,801,005
- - - 1,952,563 1,952,563
140,454,690 97,703,703 5,040,661 7,914,285 685,419,315

As at 30 June 2020, part of the Group’s project contracting business is still in the process of operation, and the
transaction price allocated to the unfulfilled or partially unfulfilled performance obligations is related to the progress
of the corresponding contract, and will be recognized as revenue according to the progress of performance in the

future performance period.

Taxes and surcharges

Land appreciation tax

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020

For the
six months ended
30 June 2019

Selling and distribution expenses

Advertising and communication fees

3,254,081 5,442,444
820,187 696,008
356,231 413,450

23,577 58,953
1,140,146 1,049,081
5,594,222 7,659,936

For the For the

six months ended
30 June 2020

six months ended
30 June 2019

895,837 845,571
561,627 453,936
530,739 472,443
135,944 92,884
2,124,147 1,864,834
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52. General and administrative expenses

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Employee benefits 9,780,657 9,031,716

Office and travelling expenses 774,613 1,035,964

Lease expenses 912,013 797,380

Depreciation and amortisation 649,206 537,016

Service fees of specialist agency 309,728 327,456

Others 1,155,753 1,080,915

Total 13,581,970 12,810,447
53. Research and development expenses

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Materials, fuels and power of consumption 5,974,886 1,714,635

Employee benefits ,786,209

54. Finance expenses

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Interest expenses 11,654,092 10,226,259

The Group capitalizes the borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or production of assets

that meet the capitalization conditions. The capitalized amount of borrowing costs for the six months ended
30 June 2020 was RMB5,304,018,000(for the six months ended 30 June 2019: RMB4,867,487,000), of
which RMB4,807,908,000 was included Inventory, RMB271,768,000 was included in long-term receivables,
RMB80,088,000 was included in construction in progress, and RMB144,254,000 was included in intangible assets
(for the six months ended 30 June 2019: RMB4,738,176,000 was in inventory, RMB101,260,000 was included
in long-term receivables, RMB13,180,000 was included in construction in progress, and RMB14,871,000 was
included in intangible assets).
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55. Investment income

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Long-term equity investment income under the equity method 3,090,860 2,627,317

Investment loss from _d|sposal of financial assets (853,615) (1,189,369)
measured at amortized cost

Investment income from disposal of long-term equity investments - 10,624

Gains on fair value remeasurement of the equity of _ 248,249

the acquiree held before the acquisition

other de

Investment income from disposal of financial assets

measured at fair value through profit and loss - 46,396
Others 723,105 567,302
Total 3,527,067 2,636,752

The Group has no major restrictions on the repatriation of investment income.

56. Gains/(Losses) from changes in fair value

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Financial assets held for trading

57. Credit impairment losses

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

(Impairment loss)/Reversal of impairment loss of (1,975,973) 207 276

accounts receivable

Impairment loss of other receivables (359,217) (704,792

—
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58. Asset impairment loss reversal

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Reversal of impairment loss from write-down of inventories 169,265 1,222,413

Impairment loss of other assets (4,297) (16,771)

Total 164,968 1,205,642
59. Non-operating income

Non-recurring

For the For the profit or loss for the

six months ended six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020

Government grants not related to 55,236 12,014 55 236

the ordinary course of business

Details of government grants:

For the For the
six months ended six months ended Related to
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 income/assets

Shuimogou District Badaowan sub-mining
area shanty town reconstruction and 24,560 - related to income
demolition compensation

Compensation collected on Deping Road
(Youyi Avenue-Tuanjian Avenue)

Compensation for land acquisition in
Fengrun District, Tangshan City

related to income

and assets
Total 55,236 12,014
60. Non-operating expenses
Non-recurring
For the For the profit or loss for the
six months ended six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019 30 June 2020

Penalty cost

148,439
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Expenses by nature

The supplemental information for the total amount of cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses, general and
administrative expenses, and research and development expenses which categorised by nature is as follows.

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 73,305,817 62,645,602

Income tax expenses

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Current tax 10,982,181 11,337,725
Deferred tax (142,104) (1,529,707)
10,840,077 9,808,018

The reconciliation between income tax expenses and profit before income taxes is as follows:

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Profit before income tax 43,774,877 41,954,380

Utilization of deductible losses for which no deferred
tax assets was recognized in prior years

Taxable temporary differences for which no deferred
tax assets was recognised in current period/year

Deductible temporary differences resulting from
rehearsal or recognition of previously unrecognized (258,065) (366,897)
deferred tax assets in current period/year

Taxable temporary differences for which no deferred
tax liability was recognized in current period/year
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Earnings per share

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
RMB/share RMB/share
L Basic earnings per Share
0.47 0.45

The basic earnings per share is calculated based on the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company and the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares during the year.

The numerator of the diluted earnings per share is determined based on the current net profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company after adjusting the following factors: (1) the interest of the diluted potential
ordinary shares that have been recognized as expenses in the current period; (2) the income or expenses of
dilution potential ordinary that will be generated when the shares are converted; and (3) the income tax impact
related to the above adjustments.

The denominator of the diluted earnings per share is equal to the sum of the following two items: (1) the weighted
average number of issued ordinary shares of the parent company in the basic earnings per share; and (2) the
increase of the weighted average number of ordinary shares, assuming the conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

When calculating the weighted average of the number of ordinary shares increased by the conversion of diluted
potential ordinary shares into issued ordinary shares, the diluted potential ordinary shares issued in the previous
period are assumed to be converted at the beginning of the current period; the current diluted potential ordinary
shares issued,assuming the conversion on the issue date.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Revenue

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(in units of 1000 shares) (Note 3)

Note 1: In accordance with the relevant clauses and regulations of preference shares and perpetual bonds as
stated in Note V, 43, in calculating the basic earnings per share, the dividends of other equity instruments
included in the net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company is deducted. The accrued
dividends of perpetual bonds with a value date of 7 March 2018 amounted to RMB82 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, The accrued dividends of perpetual bonds with a value date of 3 April 2020
amounted to RMB132 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020, The accrued dividends of perpetual
bonds with a value date of 13 April 2020 amounted to RMB93 million for the six months ended 30 June
2020, The accrued dividends of perpetual bonds with a value date of 20 April 2020 amounted to RMB96
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020, The above was RMB403 million in total (for the six-month
period ended 30 June 2019: RMB1,303 billion).

Note 2: As stated in Note XI, the Company has completed the granting of restricted shares to the incentive targets
in accordance with the second batch incentive plans on 29 December 2016, and the granting of the third
batch of restricted shares to the third batch incentive targets in accordance with the third batch incentive
plan on 26 December 2018. In accordance with the relevant stipulations in Explanation of Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 7 issued by the Ministry of Finance in 2015, the Company
deducted net profits attributable to restricted shares, which are expected to be unlocked in the future from
net profits attributable to shareholders of the Company in calculating the basic earnings per share. The net
profits attributable to restricted shares which are expected to be unlocked in the future was about RMB130
million and RMB380 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the six months ended 30 June
2019 respectively.

Note 3: As stated in Note Xl, in accordance with the regulations of the third batch incentive plans and the second
batch incentive plan, whether the unlocked shares granted could be listed and circulated depended on
whether the restricted shares met the unlocking conditions at the unlocking date. Therefore, the impacted
amount of the restricted shares not yet meeting the unlocking conditions and those invalid restricted
shares were deducted from weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares in calculating the
basic earnings per share.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

63. Earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows:

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 18,933,486 18,344,457

Company used for calculating diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used for
calculating diluted earnings per share (in units of 1000 shares)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the restricted shares outstanding and the share options issued by the
Company’s subsidiary China Overseas Holdings Limited have no dilutive effects in calculating the earnings per
share. However, the convertible bond issued by the Company’s subsidiary China Overseas Holdings Limited has
dilutive effects on consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company.

64. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Cash received relating to other operating activities

Repayment of fixed deposits which would mature after
three months
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

64. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Cash received relating to other financing activities
T |nancmg ........................................................................................ 10’954’550 ..................... 965440 g
e 10’954’550 ..................... 9654409
Cashpaymentsrelatlngtootherflnancmgact|V|t|es ........................................................................................................
B epaymentofloans ............................................................................................... 26,108,161 ..................... 7806420
B L easefeeforﬂxedassetsheldunderflnanceleases ................................................ 77,563 ........................ 149842
Total ............................................................................................................................ 26,185,724 ..................... 7956262
65. Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement
(1) Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement
Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Net profit 32,934,800 32,146,362

Profit from disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

ivities
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(2)

66.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement (continued)

Supplementary information to the consolidate cash flow statement (continued)

Changes in cash and cash equivalents

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Closing balance of cash 254,586,396 253,924,597
Less: Opening balance of cash 271,727,808 298,810,194

nts

Assets with restricted ownership

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Cash and bank balances 17,054,370 18,974,662 Note 1

Note 2:

Cash and bank balances with restricted ownership or use rights mainly include central bank reserves, bank
acceptance bill deposits, guarantee deposits, real estate pre-sale supervision funds, mortgage deposits
and etc. As of 30 June 2020, the balance of restricted cash and bank balances was RMB17,054,370
thousand (31 December 2019: RMB18,974,662 thousand).

At 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group pledged or mortgaged notes receivable, accounts
receivable, inventories, contract assets, investment properties, fixed assets, construction in progress,
intangible assets and long-term receivables to banks for borrowings.
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

67. The foreign currency monetary items

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in foreign Exchange Amount
currency rate in RMB currency rate in RMB

Cash and bank balances

Current portion of
non-current assets
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

67. The foreign currency monetary items (continued)

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in foreign Exchange Amount
currency rate in RMB currency rate in RMB

Long-term receivables

Current portion of
non-current liabilities
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V. Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

67. The foreign currency monetary items (continued)

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Amount Amount
in foreign Exchange Amount in foreign Exchange Amount
currency rate in RMB currency rate in RMB

Long-term borrowings

VI. Changes of consolidation scope

1. The entities which were not significant to the Group were included in the consolidation scope through
business combination not under common control for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

2. There was no entity newly included in the consolidation scope through business combination under
common control for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

3. The entities which were excluded from the consolidated scope due to disposal of subsidiaries for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 were not significant to the Group.
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1.

Interests in other entities

Interests in subsidiaries

Significant subsidiaries obtained through incorporation:

The subsidiaries acquired through establishing or investment

China Construction Engineering Design Group
Corporation Limited

China Construction Fangcheng Investment & Development

Group Co., Ltd.

The subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

not involving under common control

China Construction Port and Shipping Bureau Group Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as “China Construction Port Construction

Co, Ltd.")

The subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

involving entities under common control

Note: The Group holds 47.89% of shares of Far East Global Group Ltd. The board of directors has the rights to
determine the relevant activities of Far East Global Group Ltd. The Group holds 74.06% of voting rights of Far East

Main operation
Location

Guangzhou,
Guangdong

Place of
registration

Guangzhou,
(Guangdong

The British Virgin
[slands

Shenzhen,
Guangdong

Nature of business

Real Estate Investment and
Development

Construction and Installation

Engineering Prospecting
and Design

Infrastructure Construction

Real Estate Development
and Investment

Real Estate Development
and Investment

Real Estate Development
and Operation

Global Group Ltd. according to the proportion of the board of directors.

Shareholding Percentage

Registered (Note)
capital Direct Indirect
RMB31.03 billion 100.00 -
HKD10.96 billion - 55.99

RMB5.10 billion 100.00 -
RMB6.018 billion 100.00 -
RMB4.28 billion 100.00 -
RMBG billion 100.00 -
RMB9.50 billion 100.00 -
RMBO.51 billion 100.00 -
RMB1 billion 50.00 50.00

RMB1.33 billion 70.00 -

Usp1 - 55.99
RMB10.49 billion - 95.99
RMB3.50 billion 85.00 -

RMB2.65 billion 100.00 -
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VIl. Interests in other entities (continued)

1. Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Significant subsidiaries involving non-controlling interest:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Dividend
Shareholding of attributable to the
Non-controlling Non-controlling non-controlling Non-controlling
Interest Interest shareholders Interest
China Overseas Land & Investment Co., Ltd. 44.01% 7,775,277 2,481,643 102,194,846
China State Construction International 35.34% 1,096,472 433,863 19,130,812
Holdings, Ltd.
West Construction Co., Ltd. 42.21% 110,847 40,240 2,754,213
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. 20.00% 58,686 - 1,621,190
31 December 2019
Dividend
Shareholding of attributable to the
Non-controlling Non-controlling non-controlling Non-controlling
Interest Interest shareholders Interest
China Overseas Land & Investment Co., Ltd. 44.01% 14,586,993 4,050,349 99,086,044
China State Construction International 35349% 1,890,599 649.210 18,853,750
Holdings, Ltd.
West Construction Co., Ltd. 42.21% 278,903 33,143 3,020,243
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. 20.00% 91,456 - 1,603,021

The summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries is set out below. The amounts disclosed are before
inter-company eliminations:
China State

Construction
Finance Co., Ltd.

China State
Construction West
International Construction

China Overseas
Land & Investment
Co., Ltd.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020
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VIL.

Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

Significant subsidiaries involving non-controlling interest (continued):

The summarised financial information of the above subsidiaries is set out below. The amounts disclosed are before
inter-company eliminations (continued):

China State
China Overseas Construction China West China State
Land & Investment International Construction Construction
Co., Ltd. Holdings Ltd. Co., Ltd. Finance Co., Ltd.

Perpetual bonds and debt-to-equity swaps of subsidiaries are as follows:

As of 30 June 2020, the balance of perpetual bonds and renewable loans issued by Company’s subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “subsidiary perpetual bonds”) amounted to RMB51,755,872 thousand.
The perpetual bonds of these subsidiaries exist for a long time, and the subsidiaries of the Company can decide
whether to redeem and repay them. Unless there is a compulsory interest payment event that can be determined
and controlled to occur by the Company’s subsidiary, on each interest payment date, the Company’s subsidiaries
can choose to postpone the current interest and all deferred interest to the next interest payment date and is not
subject to any restrictions on the number of deferred interest payments. The Group accounted for these perpetual
bonds as non-controlling shareholders’ equity.

In December 2019, some of the Company’s subsidiaries entered into capital increase agreements and shareholder
agreements with a number of third-party investors. In accordance with the Capital Increase Agreement and the
Shareholder Agreement (collectively referred to as the “Agreement”), third-party investors increase their capital
in cash to the subsidiaries of such subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the underlying company”), and upon
completion of the capital increase, the shareholding of the Company’s subsidiaries in the underlying company
decreases, but there is no loss of control over the underlying company. The agreement stipulates that the profit
distribution of the underlying company shall be determined by the shareholders’ meeting, that the exit method
of the third-party investor shall be agreed with the controlling shareholder of the target company, and that the
controlling shareholder of the target company shall have the right to acquire or designate other parties to acquire
the shares of the target company held by the third party investor after the expiration of a certain period (“investment
period”) from the date of payment of the investment price. In the event of a specific situation or the expiry of
the investment period of the underlying company, a third-party investor may make a request to the subsidiary of
the Company to acquire the shares of the underlying company held by the Company’s subsidiaries, and if the
subsidiary of the Company does not choose to acquire such shares, the annual expected dividend ratio will up to
until the agreed upper limit of the dividend ratio. However, if the shareholders of the underlying company will not
pay dividends it do not constitute a breach of contract; A third party investor can transfer all or part of its equity
interest in the underlying company to any third part or increase the voting rights of third-party investors in the
shareholders’ meeting or board of directors of the underlying company in order to achieve the joint control of the
underlying company with the Company’s subsidiaries. The above-mentioned arrangement does not constitute a
contractual obligation of the Company or its subsidiaries to deliver cash or other financial assets to other parties
or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with other parties under potential adverse conditions, and
the Company shall therefore account for such capital increases as the equity of the underlying company. As of 31
December, 2019, third-party investors increased their capital in the underlying company totalling RMB15,600,000
thousand. These transactions resulted in an increase of RMB15,606,801 thousand in non-controlling shareholders’
equity in the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019.

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, third-party investors paid in capital of RMB3,300,000 thousand in total to
the underlying company. These transactions resulted in an increase in non-controlling shareholders’ equity in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements of RMB3,391,783 thousand as at 30 June 2020.
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VIl. Interests in other entities (continued)

2. Interests in joint ventures and associates

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures and associates that are individually material to the Group is
as follows:

Percentage of Shares (%)

Main operation  Place of Nature of Registered Accounting
location registration business capital Direct Indirect treatment
Associates
China Overseas Oceans Group o0 ong Kon ﬁwizlstEr?:r:?and 5,579,100 - 38.32 Equiy
Co., Ltd. (“Overseas Oceans”) g fong g fong T ' method
Development

The summarised financial information in respect of Overseas Oceans adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements is as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Current assets 143,771,542 128,355,460

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Revenue 16,109,339 11,090,617
Income tax expenses 2,291,114 1,936,781
Net profit 2,081,390 1,636,898
Other comprehensive income (272,694) (158,962)
Total comprehensive income 1,808,696 1,477,936
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VIL.

Interests in other entities (continued)

Interests in joint ventures and associates (continued)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures and associates that are not individually material to the
Group is as follows:

For the For the
six months ended six months ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Joint ventures

Note 1: Both the net profit and other comprehensive income have included the impact of the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities at the time the investment is obtained and the adjustment of the unified accounting

policy.
Consolidated special purpose vehicle

As at 30 June 2020, the investment scale of the main consolidated structured entities was set up by the Group’s
subsidiary China State Construction Fund Management Ltd. amounted to RMB13,633,963 thousand, and the
Group’s subscribed amount was RMB3,331,093 thousand. As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s paid-in amount was
RMB2,976,461 thousand and paid-in amount by other parties was RMB8,526,325 thousand. The Group classified
other parties’ paid-in amount as non-controlling interests. The Group has no obligation and intention to provide
financial supporting to these structured entities.

Unconsolidated special purpose vehicle

As at 30 June 2020, the investment scale of the non-consolidated structured entities invested by China State
Construction Fund Management Ltd. amounted to RMB34,158,594 thousand, and the Group’s subscribed amount
was RMB7,722,135 thousand and the subscribed amount by other parties was RMB26,436,459 thousand. The
Group has no control power over these special purpose vehicles, thus the Group did not consolidate them. As
at 30 June 2020, the Group's paid-in amount was RMB5,655,495 thousand and classified as long-term equity
investments. The maximum risk exposure of the Group is the paid-in amount as at the balance sheet date. The
Group has no obligation and intention to provide financial supporting to these structured entities.
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VIII.

Financial instruments and related risks

Financial instruments by category

Carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows:
30 June 2020

Financial assets

Financial Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value assets at fair value through other
through profit or loss amortised cost comprehensive income
Required by Required by
the standard Designated the standard Designated Total
Cash and bank balances - - 274,235,275 - - 274,235,275

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at

fair value through Financial liabilities
profit or loss at amortised cost
Required by
the standard Total

Short-term loans - 69,694,777 69,694,777
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Financial instrument and risk (continued)

Financial instruments by category (continued)

Carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments at the balance sheet date are as follows (continued):

31 December 2019

Financial assets

Financial
Financial assets at fair value assets at
through profit or loss amortised cost
Required by
the standard Designated
Cash and bank balances - - 292,441,419

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Required by

the standard

Short-term loans -

Financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Required by
the standard Designated

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

28,498,331

Total
292,441,419

Total
28,498,331
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VIII.

Financial instrument and risk
(continued)

Transfer of financial assets

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As at 30 June 2020, the book value of bank
acceptance and commercial acceptance bills
approved and discounted by the Group was
RMB15,268,678 thousand (31 December, 2019:
RMB8,720,704 thousand). In the View of the
Group, the Group retains almost all of its risks
and remuneration, including the risk of default
associated with it, and therefore continues to fully
recognize it and the settled accounts payable or
short-term borrowings associated with it. After
endorsement or discount, the Group no longer
reserves the right to use it, including the right to
sell, transfer or pledge it to other third parties. As
of 30 June 2020, the Group’s book value of its
settled accounts payable or short-term borrowings
received RMB15,268,678 thousand (31 December
2019: RMB8,720,704 thousand).

Transferred financial assets that are
derecognised in their entirety in which
continuing involvement exists

As of 30 June 2020, the book value of the Group’s
endorsed and discounted but not yet due bank
acceptance bill was RMB1,518,796 thousand (31
December 2019: RMB796,241 thousand). On 30
June 2020, its maturity date is 1 to 12 months.
According to the relevant provisions of the
“Negotiable Instruments Law”, if the acceptance
bank refuses to pay, its holder has the right to
claim against the Group (“continued involvement”).
The Group believes that the Group has transferred
almost all of these bank acceptance bill risks
and rewards, therefore, the book value of its and
related settled accounts payable is derecognized.
The maximum loss and undiscounted cash flow of
continued involvement and repurchase is equal
to its book value. The Group believes that the
continued involvement in fair value is not significant.

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2020,
the Group did not recognize gains or losses on the
transfer date. There was no income or expenses
recognised in the current period and accumulatively
due to the Group’s continued involvement in the
derecognized financial asset.

Financial instrument risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: mainly including credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including interest rate risk,
currency risk and equity instrument price risk).
The Group’s financial instrument mainly includes
cash and bank balances,equity investments,debt
investments,loans,bills receivable and accounts
receivable, receivables financing,bills payable
and accounts payable etc. The risks related to the
financial instruments, and the risk management
strategies adopted by the Group to reduce these
risks are as follows.

The Board of Directors is responsible for planning
and establishing the Group’s risk management
structure, formulating the Group’s risk management
policies and related guidelines, and supervising the
implementation of risk management measures. The
Group has formulated risk management policies to
identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group.
These risk management policies specify specific
risks, covering market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk management,etc. The Group regularly assesses
changes in the market environment and the Group
's operating activities to decide whether to update
the risk management policies and systems. The risk
management of the Group is carried out by the Risk
Management Committee in accordance with the
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Risk Management Committee identifies, evaluates
and avoids related risks through close cooperation
with other business departments of the Group. The
internal audit department of the Group conducts
regular audits on risk management controls and
procedures, and reports the audit results to the
audit committee of the Group.

The Group diversifies the risk of financial
instruments through appropriate diversified
investment and business portfolios, and formulates
corresponding risk management policies to reduce
the risk of concentration in any single industry,
specific region or specific counterparty.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy customers.It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis to ensure that the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that
are not denominated in the functional currency of
the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the
Department of Credit Control in the Group.

Other financial assets of the Group include notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables,
debt investments, other debt investments,
other equity instrument investments, and other
non-current financial assets. The credit risk of
these financial assets stems from the default of the
counterparty. The maximum risk exposure is equal
to the book value of these instruments.

The maximum credit risk exposure that the Group
faces on each balance sheet date is the total
amount collected from customers minus the amount
of impairment provisions.

The Group also faces credit risks due to the
provision of financial guarantees, as disclosed in
Note XllI, 3 for details.

Since the Group only conducts transactions with
recognized and reputable third parties, there is no
need for collateral. Credit risk is centralized and
managed according to customers/counterparties,
geographic regions and industries. Because the
Group’s accounts receivable customer base is
relatively wide, Therefore, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk within the Group.
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VIIL.

Financial instrument and risk
(continued)

Financial instrument risks (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Judgment criteria for the significant increase of
credit risk

The Group evaluates on each balance sheet
date whether the credit risk of relevant financial
instruments has increased significantly since the
initial recognition. When determining whether the
credit risk has increased significantly since the
initial recognition, the Group considers whether
it is necessary to pay unnecessary additional
costs or efforts can be made to obtain reasonable
and based information, including qualitative and
quantitative analysis based on the historical data
of the Group, external credit risk ratings, and
forward-looking information. Based on a single
financial instrument or a combination of financial
instruments with similar credit risk characteristics,
the Group determines the change in the risk of
default during the expected life of the financial
instrument by comparing the risk of default on the
balance sheet date of the financial instrument with
the risk of default on the initial recognition date.

When one or more of the following quantitative
and qualitative standards are triggered, the Group
believes that the credit risk of financial instruments
has increased significantly:

(1) The quantitative standard is mainly that
the probability of default in the remaining
duration of the reporting day has increased
by more than a certain percentage
compared with the initial confirmation;

(2) The qualitative standards are mainly the
major adverse changes in the debtor’s
business or financial situation, and the list of
early warning customers, etc.

Definition of credit-impaired assets

In order to determine whether credit impairment
has occurred, the standard used by the Group is
consistent with the internal credit risk management
objectives for relevant financial instruments, while
considering quantitative and qualitative indicators.
When the Group assesses whether a debtor has
credit impairment, the main consideration are the
following factors:

(1) The issuer or debtor has major financial
difficulties;

(2) The debtor breached the contract, such as
defaulting or overdue payment of interest or
principal;

(3) The creditor, out of economic or contractual

considerations related to the debtor’s
financial difficulties, gives the debtor a
concession that the debtor would not make
under any other circumstances;

(4) The debtor is likely to go bankrupt or
undergo other financial restructuring;

(5) The issuer or debtor’'s financial difficulties
caused the disappearance of the active
market for the financial asset;

(6) A financial asset is purchased or originated at
a significant discount, and the discount reflects
the fact that credit losses have occurred.

The credit impairment of financial assets may be
caused by a combination of multiple events, and may
not be caused by a separately identifiable event.

Expected credit loss measurement parameters

Based on whether the credit risk has increased
significantly and whether the financial asset has
been credit-impaired, the Group measures the
impairment allowance of different assets based
on the 12-month ECL or the lifetime ECL. The key
parameters for expected credit loss measurement
include the probability of default, loss given default
and default risk exposure. The Group establishes
the model of probability of default, loss given
default and default risk exposure based on statistics
of historical data (such as the counterparty’s rating,
guarantee method and type of pledges, repayment
method, etc.) default loss rate.

The relevant definitions are as follows:

(1) The probability of default refers to the
possibility that the debtor will not be able
to satisfy its repayment obligations in the
next 12 months or throughout the remaining
lifetime. The probability of default of the
Group is adjusted against the results
of the credit loss model as well as the
forward-looking information, to reflect the
probability of default of the debtor in the
current macroeconomic environment.

(2) The loss given default is the Group’s
expectation on the extent of loss of default
risk exposure. According to the type of
counterparties, the way and priority of
recourse, and the different collateral, the
default loss rate is also different. The default
loss rate is the percentage of the loss
of exposure at the time of default, which
is calculated on the basis of the next 12
months or the whole duration; and

(3) The default risk exposure is the amount
payable to the Group at the time of default
over the next 12 months or the whole
duration.

The assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk and the calculation of expected credit losses
involve forward-looking information. Through
historical data analysis, the Group has identified
key economic indicators that affect the credit risks
and expected credit losses of various business
types. The impact of these economic indicators on
the probability of default and the loss rate of default
varies with different business types.

The exposure to credit risk

As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the risk
exposure information of notes receivable, accounts
receivable, receivables financing, other receivables,
contract assets, debt investment and long-term
receivables refer to Notes V, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 12 and
13.

Liquidity risk

The Group uses circular liquidity planning tools to
manage the risk of funding shortfalls. The facility
takes into account both the maturity date of its

financial instruments and the expected cash flows
from the Group’s operations.

The objective of the Group is to maintain a
balance between sustainability and flexibility in
financing through the use of a variety of financing
instruments. As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December
2019, the Group’s financial liabilities were mainly
due within one year.
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Financial instrument and risk (continued)
Financial instrument risks (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

30 June 2020

Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5years Over 5 years Total
Short-term borrowings 70,804,995 - - - 70,804,995

31 December 2019

Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2to5years Over5 years Total
Short-term borrowings 29,076,353 - - - 29,076,353

Note: The above-mentioned long-term borrowings, bonds payable, long-term payables and other non-current
liabilities all include the parts due within one year.
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Financial instrument and risk (continued)
Financial instrument risks (continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing borrowings including borrowings, bonds payable.
Financial liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial liabilities
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group manages interest costs by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debt.As at 30
June 2020, the Group’s interest bearing borrowings with fixed rates amounted to RMB247,187,856 thousand
(81 December 2019: RMB217,468,888 thousand), and floating rates interest bearing borrowings amounted to
RMB298,465,173 thousand (31 December 2019: RMB245,642,137 thousand).

The Group’s finance department at its headquarters continuously monitors the interest rate position of the Group.
Increases in interest rates will increase the cost of new borrowings and the interest expenses with respect to the
Group’s outstanding floating rate borrowings, which could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position. The management of the Group makes decisions with reference to the latest market conditions. The Group
may enter into interest rate swap agreements to mitigate its exposure to interest rate risk. For the six-month ended
30 June 2020 and 2019 the Group did not enter into any significant interest rate swap agreements.

As at 30 June 2020, if the borrowing interest rate calculated at floating interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s net profit would have been decreased/increased
by approximately RMB536 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB982 million).

Currency risk

The Group’s major operational activities are carried out in Mainland China and a majority of the transactions is
denominated in RMB.The Group’s confirmed foreign currency assets and liabilities and future foreign currency
transactions (foreign currency assets and liabilities and foreign currency transactions are mainly denominated
in US dollars and HK dollars) are subject to foreign exchange risks.The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters is responsible for monitoring the foreign currency transactions and the scale of foreign currency
assets and liabilities to minimize foreign exchange risks;. The Group may consider entering into forward exchange
contracts or currency swap contracts to mitigate the foreign exchange risk. During the six-month ended 30
June 2020 and 2019, the Group did not enter into any significant forward exchange contracts or currency swap
contracts.

As at 30 June 2020, for Group’s all kinds of foreign currency financial assets and foreign currency financial
liabilities, if RMB appreciation or devaluation against foreign currency were 10%, other factors remain unchanged,
the Group would increase or decrease by approximately RMB9.992 billion (31 December, 2019: approximately
RMB9.665 billion).

Equity instrument price risk

The Group’s equity instrument price risk mainly arise from various types of equity instrument investments, and
there is a risk of changes in equity instrument prices.

As at 30 June 2020, if the expected price of various types of equity instrument investments of the Group increased
or decreased by 10% and other factors remained unchanged, the Group’s net profit would increase or decrease
by approximately RMB5,405 thousand yuan (31 December 2019: approximately RMB5,841 thousand), other
comprehensive income would increase or decrease by approximately RMB686,708 thousand (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB902,152 thousand).
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VIII.

Financial instruments and related risks (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support business development and maximize
shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk profile of related assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to owners, return capital to owners or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to external mandatory
capital requirements. No changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital were made during
the six-month ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s total capital is the stockholders’ equity shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses the
gearing ratio to monitor its capital.

The debt to assets ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019 was as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Total liabilities 1,652,192,456 1,632,616,609
Total assets 2,175,448,096 2,034,451,929
Debt to assets ratio 75.95% 75.33%

Disclosure of fair value

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

30 June 2020

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Recurring fair value measurements
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IX. Disclosure of fair value (continued)

1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

31 December 2019

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Recurring fair value measurements

2. Assets and liabilities for which fair values are disclosed

30 June 2020

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Bonds payable - - 100,007,272 100,007,272

31 December 2019

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

Bonds payable - - 102,571,419 102,571,419
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Disclosure of fair value (continued)
Valuation of fair value

Fair value of financial instruments

The illustration below is the disclosure on comparison between the fair value and the carrying amount for each
class of financial assets and financial liabilities other than financial instruments where the difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value is insignificant:

Carrying amounts Fair values
30 June 2020 31 December 2019 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Bonds payable 99,363,562 99,596,597 100,007,272 102,571,419

Management has assessed that the fair value of cash and bank balances, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
other receivables, short-term loans, notes payable, accounts payable and other payables. Given the short term
maturities, the fair value approximate to the carrying value.

The Group’s finance department headed by the the person in charge of the accounting institution is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The person
in charge of the accounting institution reports directly to the the person in charge of accounting work and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses the movements in the value of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the the person in charge of accounting work.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value.

Long-term receivables, long-term borrowings, debt investments, bonds payable, etc., adopt the future cash flow
discount method to determine the fair value, and use the market yield of other financial instruments with similar
contractual terms, credit risks and remaining maturity as the discount rate. As of 30 June 2020 and 31 December,
2019, the fair value of long-term receivables, long-term borrowings and debt investments approximated to the
carrying amount. The default risk of long-term borrowings was evaluated as insignificant.

The fair value of listed equity instrument investment is determined at the market price. For investment in unlisted
equity instruments, valuation models such as discounted cash flow models and market-comparable company
models are used to estimate fair value, and the assumptions used are not supported by observable market prices
or interest rates. The Group believes that the fair value and its changes estimated by valuation techniques are
reasonable and are the most appropriate value on the balance sheet date.

Unobservable inputs

The valuation models used are mainly discounted cash flow models and market-comparable company models, etc.
The input value of valuation techniques mainly include future cash flows, price-to-book ratio and price-earnings
ratio of companies of the same category, etc.
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IX. Disclosure of fair value (continued)

5. Reconciliation of fair value measurements

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements within Level 3 is as follows:

For the six-month ended 30 June 2020:

: Changes in
Total gains or losses

; : unrealised
during the period gains or losses
Included in included in
Opening other Closing  profit or loss for
balance of the Included in ~ comprehensive balance of the assets held at
period profit or loss income Purchases Sales period end of year
Financial assets held for
trading
Debt investments 5,705 996 - - (6,701) - -
Accounts receivable financing 3,674,166 - - 2,859,456 (2,100,660) 4,432,962 -
Other non-current financial
assets
Investment in stock 35,510 - - - - 35,510 -
Investment in fund 15,000 - - - (15,000) - -
Other investment in
equity instrument
nvestment in unlsted 6,400,181 35,588 (133,781) 69,843  (1,695506) 4,649,737 -
equity instrument
Total 10,139,562 36,584 (133,781) 2,929,299 (3,817,867) 9,118,209 -

: Changes in
Total gains or losses

° unrealised
during the year gains or losses
Included in included in
Opening other Closing  profit or loss for
balance of the Included in  comprehensive balance of the assets held at
year profit or loss income Purchases Sales year end of year
Financial assets held for
trading
Debt investments 393,676 16,813 - 548,216 (927,798) 5,705 -
Accounts receivable financing 3,427,192 - - 3,672,874 (3,425,900) 3,674,166 -
Other non-current financial
assets
Investment in stock 268,932 (233,422) - - - 35,510 (233,422)
Investment in fund - - - 15,000 - 15,000 -

Other investment in
equity instrument

Investment in unlisted
equity instrument 5,460,759 30,320 533,676 643,658 (228,912) 6,409,181 -
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IX. Disclosure of fair value (continued)

5. Reconciliation of fair value measurements (continued)
For recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, gains and losses
included in profit or loss that relate to financial assets and non-financial assets are as follows:

For the six-month ended 30 June 2020
Profit or loss

Profit or loss related to

related to non-financial

financial assets assets

Total realised gains included in profit or loss 36,584 -

Changes in unrealised losses included in profit or loss for _ _

assets held at end of period

2019

Profit or loss

Profit or loss related to

related to non-financial

financial assets assets

Total realised losses included in profit or loss (186,289) -

Changes in unrealised losses included in profit or loss for (233,422) B

assets held at end of year

6. Fair value level conversion

During the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the year of 2019, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities.

X. Related party relationships and transactions

1. Parent
Proportion of Proportion of
ownership voting power
Registered Nature of Registered interest in the in the
address business capital Company (%) Company (%)
CSCEC Beijing Investment 10 billion 56.31 56.31
holding

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council.

2. Subsidiaries

The company’s important subsidiaries refer to Note VII, 1.
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Joint ventures and associates

Except the general information and other related information of joint ventures and associates set out in Note VIl 2,
the situation of joint ventures and associated enterprises that have transactions with the group is listed as follows:

Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)

Joint Ventures —

Real estate investment and

development business o 00
Real estate mvestlment and \o 6000
development business
Shandong China Overseas Huachuang Real Estate Shandong, China Shandong, China Real estate mvest.ment and \o 60.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) development business
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management Guizhou, China Guizhau, China Infrgstructure construction \o 6000
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
SPEEDY CHAMP INVESTMENTS LIMITED HongKong,China  Hong Kong, China. 12 estale invesimentand 500
development business
China Constructwon (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering Hebel China Hebel China Infrgstructure construction \o %000
Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Huizhou Zhongjian municipal fifth Road Investment . ‘ Infrastructure construction
Co. Lid. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China bUsiness No 10.00
Changsha CSCEC urban investment pipe gallery construction Hunan, China Hunan, China Infrgstructure construction No 66.00
investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and Development Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrgstructure construction \o 8000
Investment Co., Ltd. Company (Note 1) business
Xuzhou Line 3 Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Lnj;?sér:scture consirction No 4444
. CSCECDacheng Cons o Co ‘. L Beumg Chma ........... Beumg Chma ........... Housmgcon L i
Dongguan Jiafang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China Feal esele niesiment and No 3250

development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction

Zunyi South Ring Expressway Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guizhou, China Guizhou, China business No 60.00

Zhaotong China Construction Investment Development Yumnan China Yuman, China Infrgstructure construction No 5100
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) husiness

FAST RIGHT INVESTMENTS LIMITED Hangzhou, China  Hong Kong, China. 2 esiale invesimentand 50,00

development business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)

Joint Ventures (continued) —

Real estate investment and

KINGTRON ENTERPRISES LIMITED Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China . No 50.00
development business

Xiamen Yongjing Bay Real Estate Co., Lid. Fujian, China Fujian, China fea esale mvestlment and No 20.00
development business

TOP REGENT HOLDINGS LIMITED HongKong, China Hong Kong, China E‘J:;;’:?“re consiructon No 300

Tianjin HDA Real Etate Development Co, Lid Tianjin, China Tianjin, China Real estae invesmentand 2500
development business

Tienjin Warjiang Real Estte Co, Lid Tienjin, China Tienjin, China Realestate ivesimentand 340
development business

Guangzhou SuiHai Real Estate Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China feal estte mvest'ment and No 25.00
development business

Dalian CSCEC sponge City Construction Development Liaoning, China Lizoning, China Infrgstructure construction \o 1900

Co,, Ltd. business
China Construction Road and Bridge Group Hebei China Hebei China Infrastructure construction \o 5100
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Tianjin Chuangda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Tianjin, China Tianjin, China feal estae mvest.ment and No 51.00
development business

Tienjin Shunji Real Etate Co., Lid. (Note 1) Tianjin, China Tienjin, China Rea esale vesimentand 1250
development business

Sanya Bihai Jincheng Business Management Hainan, China Hainan, China Real estate investment and No 1700

Co., Ltd. (Note 1) development business

Real estate investment and

China Resources (Taiyuan) Land Co., Ltd. Shanxi, China Shanxi, China . No 50.00
development business
Anhui Bengwu Expressway Investment Management Anhu, China Anhui, China Infrqstruoture construction No 7000
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Shenzhen Shenshan special cooperation zone Zhongpu . ‘ Infrastructure construction
Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China - Guangdong, China business o 8400

Real estate investment and

Shenzhen Chuang Liang Cci Capital Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China development business No 34.00
Changsha Zhongjian International Development Hunan, China Hunan, China Infrgstructure construction \o 65.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business

Qingdao Fangchuan Real Estate Co., Lid. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China rea esale mvest.mem and No 18.00
development business

Qingdao Fanghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China fea esale mvsstmem and No 18.00
development business

Qingdao Fangchen Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China e etale mvestment and No 18.00
development business

Infrastructure construction
business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)

Main place of
business

Joint Ventures (continued) —

Guizhou leirong Expressway Investment Management

Co. Ld. (Note 1) Guizhou, China
Cangzhou Bohai New Area China Construction Port Hebel China
Construction Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
Luminous Dream Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China
Marble Edge Limited (Note 1) Hong Kong, China
China Construction International (Xiangyang) Construction Hubel China

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

China Shipping Hongyang Haifu (Hefei) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Dongguan Zhonghai Century City Education Technology
Development Co., Ltd.

Qingdao Songmao Property Co, Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China
Rizhao Zhongjian Transportation Service Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China
China Construction Zhengda Technology Co., Ltd. Beijing China

CSCEC Chengdu rail transit investment and
Construction Co., Ltd.

China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

Place of
registration

Nature of business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
husiness

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Infrastructure construction
husiness

Infrastructure construction
business

Real estate investment and
development business

Real estate investment and
development business

Infrastructure construction
business

Strategic to

group
activities

Shareholding
ratio (%)
(Note 4)
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)

Joint Ventures (continued) —

Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park Hebel China Hebel China Infrastructure construction \o 3000
Construction Development Co., Ltd. business
Znengzhou CSCEC Shenzhen Rai Tansit Co. Lid. (Note 1) Henan, China Henan, China ';J’jj;:‘:t“re consiucton No 61.00
. Fuﬂan Zhongpan Yuanhong L Fum Chma ........... Fu‘an Chma ........... e NO ........................ 95 00 .
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Jan, jan, business
Chengdu changtou Dongjin Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Ej?jg@:we consiucton No 1.00
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Zhicheng comprehensive pipe gallery Henan. China Henan. China Other business No 7990

construction management Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Real estate investment and
development business

Quanzhou Taiwan Business Investment Zone China Infrastructure consiruction
Construction Fifth Bureau Haiwan Avenue Fujian, China Fujian, China No 50.00

Investment Co., Ltd business

Fuzhou Strait culture and Art Center construction and Fujan, China Fujan, China Real estate mvest.ment and \o 5000
Development Co., Ltd. development business

CSCEC development and construction (Foshan) : ‘ Infrastructure construction
Co, Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China business No 80.00

Infrastructure construction

Putian Haijia Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Fujian, China Fujian, China ‘ No 60.00
business
I Chongging city, Chongging ctty, Real estate investment and
Chongaing gingneng Yuehe Real Estate Co., Ltd. China China development business No 49.00
Shishi Gongfu transportation construction and Fujian, China Fujan, China Infrqstructure construction \o 8000
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
VICTOR CHOICE INVESTMENTS LIMITED (Note 1 Jangsu, China~ Hong Kong, China L”J:nsgs”s““re consiructon No 51.00
. Jlangmen Peng”aﬂ g “anque Rea\ Estate ........................................... R o Rea\ es t atem vestmem and ............................................
Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China development business o 00
Qufu Nishan cultural tourism real estate Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China Lnjrs?nsérsuscture consiruction No 60.00
. Ur - q‘ ZhongchengSHKRoadSport sManagemem S e e L
Co, L. (Note 1) Xinjiang, China Xinjiang, China business No 65.34
Chongaing Rail Line 9 construction and Operation ‘ ‘ . . Infrastructure construction
Co, Ld, (Note 3 Chongging, China Chongging, China business No 58.93
Xiamen Junyi Properties Co., Lid Fujian, China Fujian, China e etale mvestlment and No 50.00
development business
CSCEC Xi'an utility tunnel Investment Development Shaanxi China Shaanxi China Infrgstruclure construction \o 1750
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)

Joint Ventures (continued) —

Real estate investment and

Chongaing Jiayi Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Chongaing, China Chongging, China development business No 50.00
CSCEC Xi'an Xingfu forest belt construction investment Shaani, China Shaenxi, China Infrqstructure construction \o 2100
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
Jinan Zhonghai Dongcheng Real Estate Development . ‘ Real estate investment and
0o, Ld. (Note 2 Shandong, China Shandong, China development business No 34.00
Suzhou Maolong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China e etale mvestlment and No 51.00
development business
Beijing Zhonghai excellent urban and rural construction Beijing China Beijng China Other business No 05

investment fund (Limited Partnership) (Note 2)

Real estate investment and

Guangzhou XingLv Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China development business No 50.00
Guangzhou fuchuang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China Guangdong, China fea esale mvsstlmem and No 34.00
development business
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)
Associates —
Fast Shift Investments Limited Macao China Macao China e esale Wesr.mem and No 29.00
development business
Beumg thngjwan Runlong Elecromechanica Beijing China Beijing China Housing construction business No 30.00
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Jinmao investment (Changsha) Co., Ltd. Hunan, China Hunan, China e esale mvest.ment and No 20.00
development business
MACAU CEMENT MANUFACTURING CO. LTD. Macao China Macao China Sales materials No 31.34
hengznou Yirong fijan Supply Chain Managerert Henan, China Henan, China Sales materials No 18.00

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Infrastructure construction

Jiging High Speed Railway Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Shandong, China Shandong, China business No 7.1
Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction Hebel China Hebel China Infrastructure construction \o 1900
Management Co., Ltd. business
Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China fee esale mvestlment and No 20.00
development business
Xuzhou Line 1 Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Lnjr;;;r:scture consiructon No 38.30
Shanghai Xingxin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Shanghai China Shanghai China e etale mvsstlment and No 40.00
development business
. A L Real estate investment and
Beijing Jinliang Xingye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Beijing China Beijing China evelopment business No 40.00

Infrastructure construction
business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

business

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)
Associates (continued) —
Jinyu Jiaxing Nanjing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Nanjing, China Nanjing, China feal estle rnvesrment and No 30.00
development business
Beijing Zhengde Fengze Real Estate Development o o Real estate investment and
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Beijng China Beijng Cina development business o 1652
Qingdao Changming Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China feal estle rnvesrment and No 2250
development business
Changsha Xirong Real Estate Co., Lid. Hunan, China Hunan, China e esale rnvesrment and No 33.00
development business
Qingdao Yufu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China feal estate rnvesrment and No 20.00
development business
CSCEC new urbanization (Xinjiang) Investment Co., Ltd. Xinjiang, China Xinjiang, China Ej:ﬁxm consiructon No 20.00
Suzhou Mudu Zhongin land Co,, Lid Jangsu,Chia Jingsu, Ching e estale miestmentand %0
development business
Xuchang chenheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. Henan, China Henan, China e esale rnvesrment and No 39.00
development business
Zherrgzhou public Zhongcheng road and Henan, China Henan, China Infrastructure construction \o 2500
Bridge Construction Management Co., Lid. business
Hebei Chenghong pipe gallery Engineering Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Hebei China Hebei China rjﬁ;g::we consirucion No 5.00
Shandong Qilu ningliang Expressway Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Igrj::;r:scture consieton No 49.00
Jinan Hongbi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China e esale rnvesrment and No 20.00
development business
Suzhou Junda National Road 2006 Construction Co., Ltd. Anhui, China Anhui, China Housing construction business No 20.00
HONG KONG CONCRETE COMPANY LIMITED Hong Kong, China ~ Hong Kong, China ~ Sales materials No 31.50
Shanghai Jiasheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Shanghai China Shanghai China feal estate rnvesrment and No 49.00
development business
Guangzhou Zengcheng Runyu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China feal estle rnvesrment and No 20.00
development business
Jinan Taihui Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China feal estate ‘nvesment and No 33.00
development business
Guangzhou bison Real Estate Development Co., Lid. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China e esale rnvesrment and No 14.28
development business
Zhongge Yongmao (Suzhou) Real Estate Jiangsu, Cha Jiangsu, China Real estate rnvesrment and \o 2500
Development Co., Ltd. development business
Guangzhou lvrong Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China fea esale rnvssrment and No 16.66
development business
Shanggiu Yunheng Urban Construction Development Henan, China Henan, China Infrastructure construction \o 761
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)

Associates (continued) —

Shanggiu Zhongjian Yuncheng urban construction and

Developrment Co, Lid. Company (Note 1) Henan, China Henan, China Other business No 9.00
CSCEC \Nuhan yangsigang road and bridge construction and Hubel China Hube China Infrqstructure construction \o 1000
Operation Co., Ltd. business
Xinyu Huancheng Road Construction Investment A P Infrastructure construction
Co. Ld. (Note 1) Jiangxi, China Jiangxi, China business No 10.00

Infrastructure construction
business

Nanjing Zhongjian Rural Tourism Construction Infrastructure construction
Investment Co., Ltd. business

Rizhao China Construction Eighth Bureau culture and Infrastructure construction

Technology Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Standong, China business o 1400
Shanghai Fuhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China fee etale '”veSt.mem and No 30.00
development business
Beijing Jianyan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Beijing China Beijing China e etale mvestlment and No 49.00
development business
Shanggiu xinhangcheng development and Construction Henan, China Henan, China Other business No 6
Management Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
Putian Puyang University Construction Co., Ltd. Fujian, China Fujian, China Housing construction business o 32.90
China Construction Third Bureau Shengshi Jingzhou . - Real estate investment and
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Flbel Crina Flbel Crina development business o o100
Panzhihua China Construction Third Bureau Government Infastruciure construction
Affairs Service Center Project Construction and Sichuan, China Sichuan, China ‘ No 9.00
business
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
Wuhan Hongtai Manulife Zhongjian Yipin Real Estate Hube China Hubei China Real estate mvestlmem and No 5100
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) development business
Wuhan Zhongjian Yipin Zhaoying Real Estate Co., Ltd. Hubei China Hubei China fea esale mvest.mem and No 50.00
development business
China Construction Haoyun Co., Ltd. Hebei China Hebei China Other business No 35.00
China Construction Technology Jingmen Co., Ltd. Hubei China Hubei China Other business No 50.00
o . ‘ ‘ . . Real estate investment and
Chongaing Jinke Zhaoji Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Chongaging, China ~ Chongging, China development business No 45,00
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Xianning Infastiucture construction
Big Continent Lake ecological construction and Hubei China Hubei China ‘ No 45,00
‘ business
Operation Co.,Ltd.
CSCEC Wuhan Huangxiaohe airport river water environment Inrastructure consiruction
comprehensive treatment construction and Hubei China Hubei China ‘ No 42.20
‘ business
Operation Co., Ltd.
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Nanchong ! . ' . Infrastructure construction
Environmental Construction Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Sichuan, China Sichuan, China business o 0
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Jingzhou Hubei China Hubei China Infrastructure construction No 2000

Huanchang Lake construction and Operation Co., Lid. business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)
Associates (continued) —
Chma Construction Th|rq Engineering Bureau Yichang City Hubel China Hubel China Infrgstructure construction \o 129
pipe gallery construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business
Sanmenxia lnemona\ highway 31-0 South moving project Henan, China Henan, China Infrastructure construction No 1000
construction management Co., Ltd. business
Beijing Zhongchao Concrete Co., Lid. Beijing China Beijing China Other business No 30.00
Hangzhou Chengtou Wulin Investment Development ; ‘ . . Infrastructure construction
0o, Ld. (Note 1) Zhejiang, China Zhejiang, China business No 15.00

Real estate development and
investment business

Sichuan xijianzhonghe Machinery Co., Sichuan, ichuan, China Other business

Sichuan xijianshantui Logistics Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Other business

Yunnan Huali expressway investment and Infrastructure construction
Development Co., Ltd. business

Haikou tuoyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. Hainan, China Hainan, China

Jining Yanzhou Zhongjian Transportation Construction Shandong, Ching Shandong, China Infrastructure construction No 3%
Development Co., Ltd. business

Liupanshui Dongda highway investment and Guizhou, China Guizhou, China Infrqstructure construction \o 5000
Development Co., Ltd. business

Hanzhong Zhongjian pipe gallery construction Shaani, China Shaani, China Infrastructure construction No H00

development Co., Ltd. business

Real estate investment and

development business o o
Real estate invesimen and No 4762
development business

Infrgstructure construction No 5050
business

Infrastructure construction No 2.00
business

Infrastructure construction No 30.05

husiness

Other busi
Jinjiang zhongyun sports construction and . . . ‘ Infrastructure construction
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Fujian, China Fujian, China business No 10.00

Infrastructure construction

Shantou CSCEC new urbanization Investment Co., Ltd. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China bUsiness No 36.77
. Ch - constru i Engmeenng BureauX\angyang Lo e Infrastruct ureconstr uct L
West axis construction and Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Fubel China Fbel China business o 1000
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Shiyan aviation Infrastructure construction

road construction and Operation Co., Ltd. business
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

development business

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)
Associates (continued) —
Chengdu Chuantou Airport Construction Co., Ltd. Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Lnjgir::ture consiucton No 20.00
Xi'an Chuxin investment and Construction Co., Ltd Shaanxi, China Shaanxi, China Lnjg?sgsme consicton No 49.00
Luzhou Yangtze River Second Bridge Construction Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Infrgstructure construction \o 10.00
Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Qingyang Znhongjian Yuanging Highway Construction Gansu, Chine Gansu, China Infrastructure construction \o 2190
Management Co., Ltd. business
Jiaozuo Zhongpan souih to North Wat.er Diversion ecological Henan, China Henan, China Other business No 2000
protection construction and Operation Co., Ltd.
Qingdao Zefu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China fea esale mvest.ment and No 20.00
development business
Xiamen Haitou Construction Technology Co., Ltd. Fujian, China Fujian, China e etale mvsstlmem and No 30.00
development business
Changsha rail China Construction credit and Hunan, China Hunan, China Real estate mvestlment and \o 2000
real estate Co., Lid. development business
CSCEC industry finance investment management (Tianjin) Tiarjn, China Tianjn, China Other busiess \o 1667
Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

Zhoukou Xintong Urban Construction Development Co., Ltd. Henan, China Henan, China Other business No 30.00
CSCEC Xi'an Urban Construction Investment Co., Ltd. Shaanxi, China Shaanxi, China Lnj;?r?é?:ture consirction No 30.00
 Ganzhou Hangyu Constucton Co, Lid. (Note )~~~ Jangxi,China Jengi,China  Housngconsirucion busiess~ No 210
CSCEC Wuhan Qingling pipe gallery construction and Hubei China Hubei China Infrgstructure construction \o 9.0

Operation Co., Ltd. (Note 1) business
Qingdao Yuefu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Shandong, China Shandong, China Bea\ estle development and No 20.00
investment
Nanjing Guancheng Hengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, China Jiangsu, China Bea\ estle development and No 33.00
investment
Dongguan Jiangpan Xincheng Real Estate Guangdong, China  Guangdong, China Bea\ estate development and No 3000
Development Co., Ltd. investment
Huizhou Zhongjian Hongsheng Construction Engineering ‘ ‘ Infrastructure construction
Co, Ld. (Note 2 Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China business No 1485
Xiaogan CSCEC Dongfu Urban Infrastructure Investment Hubei China Hubei China Real estate mvestlmem and \o 641
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business
Chengdu Yirong Yijian Engineering Management Sichuan, China Sichuan, China Real estate mvestlmem and No 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business
Hanzhong Zhongﬂan Xingyuan urban development and Shaenxi, China Shaenxi, China Infrgstruclure construction No 857
Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
Zhengzhou Binshui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China Feal esale nvesiment and No 28.57
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

3. Joint ventures and associates (continued)
Strategic to Shareholding
Main place of Place of group ratio (%)
business registration Nature of business activities (Note 4)
Associates (continued) —
Xi'an Zhonghao urban development and Construction Shaani, China Shaanxi, China Infrastructure construction \o 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business

Real estate investment and

Nanyang Fengrong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China . No 28.57
development business
Nanyang Herui construction and Development Henan, China Henan. China Infrgslructure construction \o 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
Luoyang Zhongjian urban construction and Henan, China Henan, China Infrgstructure construction \o 857
Development Co., Ltd. (Note 2) business
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Jiagang Real Estate Development Henan, China Henan, China Real estate mvestlment and No 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business
Shangaiu Haixin Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China nesiuclue mvgstmem and No 28.57
development business
Wenzhou Zhongjn Ivestrent Co., Lt (Note 2 Thejang,China~ Zhgjang, China  Mastiuclure iiestmentand 257
development business
Xianning CSCEC Urban Infrastructure Investment Hube China Hube China Infrastructure mvgstmem and \o 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business
Huaibei Zhongjian Municipal Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Anhui, China Anhui, China niasiielure mvgstment and No 2857
development business
Zhengzhou Haichuang urban infrastructure Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China Lnlj[s?sg:tu{e consicton No 28.57
* XianZnongzu Ivestment Co, Lid. (Note2) Shaami, China  Sheen,China  Housingconsirucion busiess~ No 2857
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Hailin Real Estate Development Henan, China Henan, China Real estate mvestvmem and \o 857
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) development business

Real estate investment and

Xinxiang Zhongjian Hongtu Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China . No 17.14
development business

Henan Haichuang Investment Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China Infrastructure investment business  No 2857

Yongcheng Yunpeng Urban Construction Co., Ltd. (Note 2) Henan, China Henan, China Lnjrs?nsérsuscture consiicton No 20.36

Foshan Jiantou Zhongjian Yipin Real Estate Co., Lid. Guangdong, China ~ Guangdong, China fea esale mvest.ment and No 49.00
development business

Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa Pipe gallery Road investment and Sichuan. China Sichuan, China Infrastructure construction \o 317

Construction Co., Ltd. business

Note 1: The Group holds less than 20% or more than 50% of the shares in the aforementioned joint ventures and
associates. According to the articles of association of these companies, the Group has joint control with
other shareholders or the Group only has significant influence, so these companies are accounted for as
joint ventures or associates.

Note 2: These companies are subsidiaries of joint venture companies or affiliated companies of the Group.
According to the requirements of the “Accounting Standards for Business Interpretation No. 13", these
companies have been disclosed as related parties of the Group since the current period, and comparative
data will not be adjusted retrospectively.

Note 3: Due to changes in equity of these companies and other reasons, on 30 June 2020, the Group judged that
these companies are no longer related parties of the Group.

Note 4: The shareholding ratio is the actual share of the net assets of the subsidiary that the Group actually
enjoys.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

4. Other related parties

Relationship with the group

China Construction Water Affairs Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd.

Controlled by the same parent company

China Construction e-commerce Co., Ltd. Controlled by the same parent company
CSCEC aluminum new materials Co., Ltd. Controlled by the same parent company
China Automobile Trade Co., Ltd. Controlled by the same parent company

Beijing Zhongjian Qiming Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction Engineering
Investment Co., Ltd.

China Construction Environmental Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.

China construction aluminum new materials
Chengdu Co., Ltd.

China construction aluminum new materials
Henan Co., Ltd.

Controlled by another shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

Controlled by another shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

Controlled by another shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

Controlled by another shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

Controlled by another shareholder of
a subsidiary of the Group

5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties

(1) Related party goods and services transactions

Purchase of goods and accepting services from related parties

For the six-month For the six-month

period ended period ended
Nature of the transaction 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Zhengzhou Yirongyijian Supply Chain Purchase of goods 899,102 992,310

Management Co., Ltd.

Purchase of goods and
accepting services

1,189,638
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(2) Contract engineering and projects sub-contracted out

Contract engineering

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

Nature of the transaction 30 June 2020 30 June 2019

CSCEC Chengdu rail transit investment and Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 998,235 -

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Jingzhou Huanchang Lake

construction and Operation Co., Ltd. Contract engineering LA 3
s Soilr 14 rurg S B G ke oy s :
o Chuxmmvest - Construct\onC o R Contractengmeer |ng ........................ 3 96,021 e
Urumq| Zhongc - ngS|IkR o Sp o Managemem i L Contracteng o mg ........................ 3 87,004 ................ sotis
. Slpg ; ayport S Co L o eng o mg ........................ 3 55,770 ................ e
meu i uancheng S nvestmentCoLtd .............................. Contracteng o mg ........................ 3 23’922 ............... 590 e
* CSCEC Xi'an comprehensive pipe gallery Investment Development Co, Lid.  Coniract engineering 32356 -
Bem ngJ|anyan Rea\ Estate D evelopment C O Ltd ....................................... Comracteng meer mg ........................ 3 09,704 ............... 21 2 893 .
Zhangzhou S hanyuan Enwronmental Techno \ogyCo Lt d .............................. Contracteng meer mg ........................ 3 02,042 ....................... -
. Putla - uyang Umversn y ConstrucnonCo Lt d ........................................... Contract eng meer mg ........................ , 75’434 ............... 1 78 552 .
. Jlaozquhongjlan south to Nort § Wat er D\versmec o\ogl cal protect |on ............. Comract eng meer mg ........................ 2 70’346 ............... 414 342 .
construction and Operation Co., Ltd.
ChengduChuamou Alrpor tConstruct\on C o g Comractengmeer |ng ........................ , 66,31 - B -
 Jinjiang zhongyun Sports Consiruction Development o, Ltd. Conract engineering au3ssh 599,453
* CSCEC Wuhan Qingling pipe gallery construction and Operation Co., Lid. ~ Coniract engineering 287,286 44368
 Jining Yanzhou Zhongjian Transportation Construction Development Co., Lid. ~ Coniract engineering 2865 26971
LD Mt g o e SO CTORE gt g —
. Ganzhou Hangyu Const ; uctlon Co Ltd .................................................... Contract eng |neer mg ........................ 2 31 ,185 ............... 1 26 S
. Chma Constructlon - rd Eng| ne enng Bureau X|angyang East West .................. Comract eng meer mg ........................ 2 25’197 ............... 1 93 822 .

axis construction and Operation Co., Ltd.
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Contract engineering and projects sub-contracted out (continued)

Contract engineering (continued)

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
Nature of the transaction 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Quanzhou Taiwan Business Investment Zone China Construction Fifth Contract engineerin 217971 ~
Bureau Haiwan Avenue Investment Co., Ltd. 9 g ’
Xi'an Zhuzhong Investment Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 210,785 -
Xuzhou Line 1 Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 196,748 814,145
Wuhan Zhongxia Road Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 194,994 562,508
Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction Management Co., Ltd Contract engineering 172,381 1,023,008
Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng road and Bridge Construction Contract engineefing 158,633 590,681
Management Co., Ltd.
Zunyi South Ring Expressway Development Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 124,216 449,733
China Construction International (Xiangyang) Construction Co., Ltd. Contract engineering 123,168 318,784
CSCEC Wuhan yangsigang road and bridge construction and Contract enginesing 120,171 619,545
Operation Co., Ltd.
Chongging Rail Line 9 construction and Operation Co., Ltd. Contract engineering - 752,612
Fast Shift Investments Limited Contract engineering - 276,864
Others Contract engineering 9,364,313 6,942,705
Total 25,878,430 21,067,583
Projects sub-contracted out
For the For the
six-month six-month
period ended period ended
Nature of the transaction 30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Projects sub-contracted out 131,116 121,306

Projects sub-contracted out

Beijing China Construction Runtong Electrical Engineering
Construction Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(3) Related party leasing

As lessor
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
Types of leased assets 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
China Construction Water Affairs Environmental Protection Co., Ltd..  Office Building 474

As lessee
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
Types of leased assets 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Shandong Zhongcheng Machinery Leasing Co., Ltd. Machinery equipment 91,653 73,590
Sichuan xijianzhonghe Machinery Co., Ltd. Transport equipment 26,260 27,152
China construction aluminum new materials Chengdu Co., Ltd Materials 22,848 7,622
Sichuan xijianshantui Logistics Co., Ltd. Transport equipment 22,207 24,275
Others Office buildings, etc 14,968 4,501
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Related party guarantee

Offering guarantee to related parties

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2020

Amount of
guarantee

Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 511,520

Starting date of
guarantee

13 July 2018

Maturity date of
guarantee

21 May 2021

Whether the
guarantee has
been fulfilled
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(4) Related party guarantee (continued)

Offering guarantee to related parties (continued)

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2019

Whether the
Amount of  Starting date of Maturity date of guarantee has
guarantee  guarantee guarantee been fulfilled

Guangzhou Lihe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 288,000 13 December 2016~ 12 December 2019 No
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Inter bank loan of related parties

Capital borrowings

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2020

Borrowing
amount Starting date  Ending date
Luminous Dream Limited 1,044,780 20 January 2020  No fixed maturity date
SuzhouMaoIongReaIEstateDeveIopmentCoLtd B e e
Guangzho e Rl ente D evelopment CoLtd ............................................ 26 Fo bruary e )
XlanJlarunRongchengReaIEstate CoLtd ...................................................... i3 o uary 2020 No fixed maturlty e
Shangha|J|ashengReaI EstateDeveIopmem CoLtd ........................................... 23January e )
PutwanHmpaReaIEstateCoLtd 1January2020 44444 Noﬂxedmaturltydate ........

China Shipping Hongyang Haifu (Hefei) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Jiangmen Pengjiang tianque Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

China Construction Development and construction
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.

Dongguan Jiangpan Xincheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

For the six-month period ending 30 June 2019

Borrowing
amount Starting date  Ending date

Sunrise JV Limited 2,400,000 11 March 2019 22 August 2024
SunrlseJVleltedBMOOO .......... i Nof\xedmaturltydate ..........

CtheieSlch):frﬁienn% gg“gﬂzng Haifu (Hefei) Real Estate 369,160 26 June 2019 No fixed maturity date
 Xi'an Dingsheng Dongyue Properties Co., Ltd. 229987 28 January 2019  No fixed maturity date
' Dongguan Jiafang Real Estate Development Co., Lid. 82072 1January 2019  No fixed maturity date
ngdao FangchuanR R Co Lo e 24May soie 23May2020 .......................
ngdao FanghwReal o ateCoLtd ................................................ TR 31May i 30May2020 .......................
ngdao Fangchen SR Ltd ............................................. T o p oots aea pr oy
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

Inter bank loan of related parties (continued)

Fund lent

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2020

Loan
amount Starting date
Shanghai Fuhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 1,132,856 1 January 2020

EMPIRE

China Construction Water Affairs Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd.

China Construction (Tangshan Caofeidian) Engineering
Construction Co., Ltd.

For the six-month period ended 30 June 2019

Amount Starting date

Luminous Dream Limited 2,593,945 15 April 2019
Marble EdgeL|m|ted .................................................................... 1188395 ............. 29May 2019 444444
 Xuancheng Haijia Lancheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. 435064 20 February 2019
* Shanghai Xingxin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 403972 1January 2019

China Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction 378,882 28 June 2019

Investment Co., Ltd.

China Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction
Investment Co., Ltd.

Ending date
30 June 2020

Ending date

No fixed maturity date
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Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

A takes deposits
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Increase in the  Decrease in the
1 January 2020 current period current period 30 June 2020

China Construction Group 5,513,287 (1,545,246) 3,982,177

China Construction e-commerce Co., Ltd.

China Construction Water Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd.

Beijing Zhongjian Qiming Enterprise

Management Co., Ltd. 34,489 60,772 (68,719) 26,542
Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction Engineering 2357 20,033 (2,410) 19,980
Investment Co., Ltd.
China construction aluminum new materials _ e _ R

Chengdu Co., Ltd. J

Nanjing Zhongjian Rural Tourism Construction
Investment Co., Ltd.

For the six months ended 30 June 2019

Increase in the  Decrease in the
1 January 2019 current period current period 30 June 2019

China Construction Group 407,401 12,632,338 (8,696,905) 4,342,834

China Construction Water Environmentall
Protection Co., Ltd.

Beijing Zhongjian Qiming Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction
Engineering Investment Co., Ltd.

Nanjing Zhongjian Rural Tourism Construction
Investment Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its related parties (continued)

(7) Transfer of related parties assets

For the six-month For the six-month
Nature of period ended period ended
the transaction 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Overseas Oceans Trademark use right 160,570 109,060
(8) Other related parties transactions
For the six-month For the six-month
period ended period ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Key management’s remuneration 1,663 2,911
6. Amounts due from related parties
(1) Notes receivable
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision amount provision
szhqu Zhlonguan Hongsheng Construction 670,000 _ B B
Engineering Co., Ltd.
Hanzhong Zhongjian Xingyuan urban development and
. 336,600 - - -
Construction Co., Ltd.
Chengdu Yirong Yijian Engineering Management Co., Ltd. 166,320 - - -
Qingdao Fanggian Real Estate Co., Ltd. 59,776 - 50,930 -
Hanzhong Zhongjian pipe gallery construction
59,400 - - _
development Co., Ltd.
Xiaogan Zhongjian Dongfu Urban Infrastructure
29,700 - - -
Investment Co., Ltd.
Others 47,827 - - -
Total 1,369,623 - 50,930 -
(2) Accounts receivable
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision amount provision

808,016 (24,702) 1,168,242

CSCEC Xi'an comprehensive pipe gallery Investment

Development Co., Ltd. i) R N N
China Cohstruct\on Water Affairs Environmental 558,733 B 297,404 B
Protection Co., Ltd.
Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction 508,469 (104,817) 518,241 (103.714)
Management Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. 450,655 (20,279) 722,021 (32,491)
Shangang group Ruitai Development Co., Ltd. 392,715 (57,205) 435,363 (46,321)
Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and 333,140 (6,663) 333.140 (6,663)

Development Investment Co., Ltd.
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X.
6.

(2)

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Amounts due from related parties (continued)

Accounts receivable (continued)

30 June 2020

Carrying
amount

270,363

Impairment
provision

(12,166)

31 December 2019

Carrying
amount

240,975

Impairment
provision

Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment
Management Co., Ltd.

Guizhou Leirong Expressway Investment
Management Co., Ltd.

Zhaotong Zhongjian Construction Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou Zhongjian Zhicheng comprehensive
pipe gallery construction management Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park
Construction Development Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou Bohai New Area China Construction Port
Construction Management Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Wuhan yangsigang road and bridge construction
and Operation Co., Ltd.

Chengdu CSCEC Minjiang Construction Engineering
Investment Co., Ltd.

Shangang group Ruixiang Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.

Luoyang Zhongjian city construction and
Development Co., Ltd.

Liupanshui Dongda highway investment and
Development Co., Ltd.

Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa guanlang road investment and
Construction Co., Ltd.

Dalian CSCEC sponge City Construction
Development Co., Ltd.

Sanmenxia national highway 31-0 South moving project
construction management Co., Ltd.

China Construction International (Xiangyang)
Construction Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(3) Other receivables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision amount provision
Guangzhou fuchuang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 1,412,576 (56,503) - -

China Construction Third Bureau Shengshi Jingzhou

Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Ries (7] 418,200 (12,546)
Changsha rail China Construction credit and

real estate Co., Ltd. 127,027 (5,081) - -
Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa guanlang road investment and

Construction Co., Ltd. 120,446 (T 192 (6)
China Construction Industry Finance Investment

Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. it LB N N
Dongguan Zhonghai Century City Education Technology

Development Co., Ltd. 95,986 (4,299) 180,486 (11,059)
Dalian CSCEC sponge City Construction

Development Co., Ltd. 90,000 (2,700) 90,000 (2,700)
CSCEC Xi'an Urban Construction Investment Co., Ltd. 85,000 (2,550) - -
Suzhou Junda National Road 2006 Construction Co., Ltd 80,442 (5,631) 91,804 (3,686)
Xiamen Haitou Construction Technology Co., Ltd. 74,250 (5,198) - -
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Jiagang Real Estate B B

Development Co., Ltd. Ll (i)
Qingyang Zhongjian Yuanging Highway Construction 54.639 (3,067) 99 099 (704)

Management Co., Ltd. ’ ’
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Xiangyang 53.242 _ B B

East West axis construction and Operation Co., Ltd. ’
Shantou CSCEC new urbanization Investment Co., Ltd. 52,920 (10,584) 52,920 (3,704)
CSCEC Dacheng Construction Co., Ltd. 51,129 (96) 7,245 (52)
Rizhao China Construction Eighth Bureau culture and 50,000 (4,000) 450 000 (18,000)

Technology Development Co., Ltd.

Panzhihua China Construction Third Bureau Government
Service Center Project Construction Development Co., Ltd. '
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X.
6.

(4)

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)

Amounts due from related parties (continued)

Contract assets

30 June 2020

Carrying Impairment
amount provision
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment Management Co., Ltd. 785,747 (3,650)

H'Sanmenxia national highway 31-0 South moving project
construction management Co., Ltd.

Shenzhen Shenshan special cooperation zone Zhongpu
Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd.

Liupanshui urban pipe gallery construction and
Development Investment Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Xi'an Xingfu forest belt construction
investment Co., Ltd.

Hanzhong Zhongjian Xingyuan urban development and
Construction Co., Ltd.

Fuzhou Strait culture and Art Center construction and
Development Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng road and Bridge
Construction Management Co., Ltd.

Cangzhou CSCEC Bohai investment Logistics Park
Construction Development Co., Ltd.

Zhaotong Zhongjian Construction Investment
Development Co., Ltd.

Shanggiu Zhongjian Yuncheng Urban Construction
Development Co., Ltd.

Qingyang Zhongjian Yuanging Highway Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Fujian Zhongjian Yuanhong Zhuhai construction and
Development Co., Ltd.

China Construction Development and construction
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.

31 December 2019

Carrying

amount
707,917

Impairment
provision
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
6. Amounts due from related parties (continued)

(4) Contract assets (continued)

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment

amount provision amount provision

Panzhihua China Construction Third Bureau Government 74.876 (75) - -
Service Center Project Construction Development Co., Ltd. ’

China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Shiyan aviation
road construction and Operation Co., Ltd. 70,357 (534) 10,005 (34)
Shishi Gongfu transportation construction and 67,540 (312) ~ ~

Development Co., Ltd.

Shanggiu xinhangcheng development and Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Mianyang Zhongjian Kefa guanlang road investment and
Construction Co., Ltd.

Shijiazhuang Jiaojian Expressway Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

(5) Other current assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision amount provision
Shanghai Fu Hong Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2,779,350 (111,174) 2,143,194 (85,728)

China Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction

Investment Co.. Ltd. 609,480 (42,664) 609,480 (22,324)
Jinan Zhonghai Dongcheng Real Estate _ B B

Development Co., Ltd. LA
China Ge Yongmao (Suzhou) Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. 504,122 (33,440) 529,122 (26,041)
Shanghai Jiasheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 491,937 - 801,723 -
Guangzhou Zengcheng run Yu Real Estate Co., Ltd. 365,600 - - -
Jinjiang zhongyun Sports Construction Development Co., Ltd 360,000 (10,400) 320,000 (8,800)
Tianjin Shun Ji Property Co., Ltd. 332,668 (55,364) 339,918 (34,729)
Jinyu Jiaxing Nanjing Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 300,000 (14,400) 300,000 (14,400)
Shanggiu Yun Heng Urban Construction 210,967 (8,000) 210.967 (6.329)

Development Co., Ltd.
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X.
6.

(5)

(6)

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Amounts due from related parties (continued)

Other current assets (continued)

30 June 2020

Carrying Impairment
amount provision
Tianjin Wan Jiang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 189,084 -

o

Long-term receivables

30 June 2020

Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment

amount provision amount provision

Mlégﬁ?ricztroonn%]flf;fa guanlang road investment and 120,000 (360) B B
e ngzhou Y|rong : Y|J|a 5 Sup p Iy . Management R o T 46,875 .................. (141) ...................... R o
angdaoYufuRea\EstateCoLtd .............................................................. S —216840(217)
ngdao T Co e R - e (97) .
e R 22,6 o (483) ...................... R o
Total189,495 .................. (984)313695(314)

31 December 2019

Carrying Impairment
amount provision
213,760 -

31 December 2019
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X.
6.

)

Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
Amounts due from related parties (continued)

Debt Investments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Carrying Impairment Carrying Impairment
amount provision amount provision
Ultra Keen Holdings Limited 4,324,054 - 4,235,495 -

Jiangmen Pengjiang tianque Real Estate

Development Co., Ltd. il - 221,126 -
EMPIRE LAND INVESTMENTS LIMITED 360,380 - 473,088 -
Sanya Bi Hai Jin Cheng Business Management Co., Ltd. 291,558 - 446,258 -
Changsha Yida Chuangzhi Property Development Co., Ltd. 288,524 - 274,103 -
China Construction Xi'an Infrastructure Construction 270,050 (2,701) 270.264 (2,703)

Investment Co., Ltd.

73

Note: As at 30 June 2020, the entrusted loan amounted RMB270,050 thousand lent to a joint venture of the Group,
CSCEC Xi’an Infrastructure Construction Investment Co., Ltd. and CSCEC Xi'an Urban Construction Investment
Co., Ltd. an associate of the Group, amounted RMB103,547 thousand, are presented in the entrusted loans of
Note V (12).

Note: As at 31 December 2019, the entrusted loan amounted RMB270,264 thousand lent to Zhongjian Xi'an
Infrastructure Construction Investment Co., Ltd. a joint venture of the Group, and the entrusted loan amounted
RMB100,659 thousand lent to Zhongjian Xi’an Urban Construction Investment Co., Ltd. an associate of the Group,
are presented in the entrusted loan of Note V (12).
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties

(1) Accounts payable

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Zhengzhou Yirongyijian Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. 831,315 1,244,520

Beijing China Construction Runtong Electrical Engineering

Construction Co., Ltd. A 37,695
Others 517,617 370,568
Total 2,893,060 2,693,116

(2) Other Payables
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Nanjing CSCEC Gubei Urban Development Co., Ltd. 1,026,074 -
FastnghtInvestmentslelted ...................................................................................... 980,000 ........................ 995000
Sunr|seJVL|m|ted .......................................................................................................... 918,376 ........................ 924473
ngtronEnterpr|sesL|m|ted .......................................................................................... 780,000 ........................ 765000
ChongqngmkeZhaopRealEstateDevelopmentCoLtd ....................................... 645,750 ........................ 706500
. Xlan . Dmgsheng . Dongyue Pro pemes Co Ltd ............................................................ 639,942 ........................ 639942 -
X|anJ|arunRongchengReaIEstateCoI_td .............................................................. 550’000 ........................ 200000
Suzhoul\/laolongReaIEstateDevelopmentCoLtd ................................................... 543’1507
ShantouCSCECnewurban|zat|onInvestmentcoI_td .............................................. 500’0007
X|anHehu|X|ngshangPropemesCoI_td .................................................................. 475’000 ........................ 550000

China Shipping Hongyang Haifu (Hefei) Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties (continued)

(2) Other Payables (continued)
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Zhengzhou Zhongjian Jiagang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 151,060 -
China Construction Group 142,473 -
Qingdao Songmao Real Estate Co., Ltd. 141,066 -

Beijing Zhonghai excellence urban rural construction investment
fund (limited partnership)

ELITE MIND INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Wuhan Yangsigang road and bridge construction and

operation Co. Ltd. B 254,930
Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng Lugiao Construction
- 222,488
Management Co., Ltd.
Others 2,408,184 2,303,737
Total 13,008,105 11,862,278

(3)  Contract Liabilities
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

CSCEC Chengdu rail transit investment and Construction Co., Ltd. 3,385,841 -
Gu|zhouLe|rongExpresswayInvestmentManagement CoLtd ............................ 1,392,256 ........................ 746159
CCCCJ|J|aoExpresswayInvestment&DevelopmentCoLtd ................................ 1’342,019 ..................... 1003852
YunnanHua||expresswaymvestmentandDevelopmentCoLtd ............................. 955’573_

e o e g e e
Hu|zhouZhongJ|anmumc|palf|fthRoao|Investmentco|_td ..................................... 369,75432
Shangq|uYunhengUrbanConstrucnonDevelopmentcoLtd .................................. 299,7227
J|aozquhong]|ansouthtoNorthWaterD|vers|oneco|og|ca| .................................... 299228_

protection construction and Operation Co., Ltd. ’
ZhoukouxmtongUrbanconstruct|onDevelopmentco|_td ..................................... 279,852—
Anhu|BengwuExpresswayInvestmentManagementCoLtd ................................... 278,057 ........................ 240112
ZhengzhouCSCECShenzhenRa||Trans|tCoLtd .................................................... 272,142_
Ch|naConstruot|onTh|rdEngmeermgBureauNanChong ........................................... 2713447
Environmental Construction Investment Co., Ltd. ’
Sanmenx|anat|ona|h|ghway31OSouthmovmgproJect ............................................. 261’075_
construction management Co., Ltd.

Chg;igggfgéﬁtgg. Y([It?jr.”ln) Rail Transit Investment 250,047 B

CSCECX|ancomprehenswep|pega|lery|nvestment ................................................. 245’091_

Development Co., Ltd.

Zhengzhou public Zhongcheng Lugiao Construction
Management Co., Ltd.

Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development
Investment Co., Ltd.
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X. Related party relationships and transactions (continued)
7. Payables to related parties (continued)

(3) Contract Liabilities (continued)

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Shanghai Port Group Israel Haifa New Port Wharf Co., Ltd. 149,701 234,303
HalkoutuoleeaIEstateCoLtd ................................................................................. 145’740 ........................ 114815
XuzhouMetroLlne OnelnvestmentDev elopment Co Ltd ........................................ 140’357 ........................ 186597
Xmg];g:gtllg?zgguﬁgeecologmalconstruchonand ....................................................... 93,657 ........................ 463975
Shangha|Internat|ona|(Group)RU|ta|DevelopmentCoLtd ....................................... 84,974 ........................ 208037
HangzhouChengtouWuImInvestmentDevelopmentCoLtd ..................................... 60,413 ........................ 1 17464
J|ngzhouhuanchangh u const ruct|onandO pe rat|onCo Ltd ...................................... 31,800 ........................ 147784
X|anZhonghaourbandevelopmentandConstruct|onCoLtd ................................... 17,279_
X|aoganZhongJ|anDongqurbanInfrastructure ............................................................ 15’1757

Investment Co., Ltd.

(4)
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
CSCEC 2,002,111 2,000,000
JmmaoInvestment(Changsha)CoI_td ...................................................................... 540,000 ........................ 440000
e 2,542,111 ..................... 2440000

(5) Long-term Payables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Sunrise JV Limited 2,400,000 2,400,000

2 304
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XI.

(a)

Share-based payment

Overview
For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Number of restricted shares unlocked - 112,527,800
Number of restricted shares forfeited - 10,604,200
The remaining term of the contract of the outstanding 2.5 30
stock options at the end of the year/period
For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Total amount of employee services in exchange for 228,179 554,496
share based payment
The equity-settled share-based payment is as follows:
For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Accumulated amount of equity-settled share-based 1,402,396 1174217

payment in capital surplus

228,179

Share-based payment plan

Share-based payment by the Company

(1)

In accordance with the authorisation of the first extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on
19 December 2016, the Company held the 104th meeting of the first session of the Board of Directors
on 29 December 2016, and the Board of Directors approved the resolution of China State Construction
Engineering Corp., Ltd. Granted Second Batch Restricted Shares Incentive Plan (A share) (“the second
batch Incentive Plan”), in which the Company was approved to grant the restricted shares incentive to
1,675 targets (“the second batch Incentive Targets”). From 23 December 2016 to 27 December 2016, the
Company completed the repurchase of 260,130,000 shares (“the second batch of Restricted Shares”)
in total from secondary market and completed the granting to the second batch Incentive Targets on 29
December 2016 (“the second batch grant day”). The second batch Incentive Targets’ purchase price
is RMB4.866 per share and the limited sales period is 2 years. If the unlock condition of the restricted
shares prescribed by the plan is met, the second batch Incentive Targets can unlock the shares with the
upper limit of 1/3, 1/3 and 1/3 of the granted shares on 29 December 2018 (the first batch of Phase II),
29 December 2019 (the second batch of Phase Il) and 29 December 2020 (the third batch of Phase II)
respectively.

In accordance with the authorisation of the third extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on
3 December 2018, the Company held the 15th meeting of the second session of the Board of Directors
on 26 December 2018, and the Board of Directors approved the resolution of China State Construction
Engineering Corp., Ltd. Granted Third Batch Restricted Shares Incentive Plan (A share) (“the second batch
Incentive Plan”), in which the Company was approved to grant the restricted shares incentive to 2,081
targets (“the third batch Incentive Targets”). From 4 December 2018 to 21 December 2018, the Company
completed the repurchase of 599,910,000 shares (“the third batch of Restricted Shares”) in total from
secondary market and completed the granting to the second batch Incentive Targets on 26 December 2018
(“the third batch grant day”). The third batch Incentive Targets’ purchase price is RMB3.468 per share and
the limited sales period is 2 years. If the unlock condition of the restricted shares prescribed by the plan is
met, the third batch Incentive Targets can unlock the shares with the upper limit of 1/3, 1/3 and 1/3 of the
granted shares on 26 December 2020 (the first batch of Phase Ill), 26 December 2021 (the second batch
of Phase Ill) and 26 December 2022 (the third batch of Phase Ill) respectively.
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XI.

(a)

(b)

Share-based payment (continued)
Share-based payment plan (continued)

Share-based payment by the Company (continued)

(2) The market price of the second batch of Restricted Shares was RMB9.16 per share at the second batch
grant date. The price paid by the second batch Incentive Targets was RMB4.866 per share, considering the
influence from gain restrictive, the fair value of the second batch of Restricted Shares granted this time was
determined to be RMB2.2118 per share at the second batch grant date. Due to converting reserves into
shares approved by the resolution of the general meeting of shareholders on 3 May 2018, the subscription
price of the second batch Incentive Targets was adjusted to RMB3.476 per share.

The market price of the third batch of Restricted Shares was RMB5.58 per share at the third batch grant
date. The price paid by the third batch Incentive Targets was RMB3.468 per share, based on which, the
fair value of the third batch of Restricted Shares granted this time was determined to be RMB2.2112 per
share at the third batch grant date.

3) Increase/decrease of restricted shares in the reporting period

For the

six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Number Qf restricted shares at the beginning of 709,868,803 833,000,803

the period/year

Number of restricted shares unlocked in current period/year - (112,527,800)
Number of restricted shares forfeited in current period/year - (10,604,200)
Number of restricted shares at the end of the period/year 709,868,803 709,868,803

4) The impact on the Company’s financial position and operating results from restricted shares is as follows:

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020 2019
Total expenses recognised in equity-settled 228,179 554,496

share-based payment

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Accumulate_d amqunt of equity-settled share-based 1,402,396 1174217
payment in capital surplus

Share Option Schemes by China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd

On 29 June 2018, China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd offered to grant share options (the “Share Options”) to
certain eligible persons (collectively, the “Grantees”), to subscribe for a total of 107,320,000 shares, subject to
acceptance of the Grantees, under the share option scheme adopted by China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd
on 11 June 2018. Out of the 107,320,000 Share Options granted, a total of 2,000,000 Share Options were granted
to directors of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. The exercise price is HK$25.85 per share.

The Share Options granted will vest on 29 June 2020, 29 June 2021 and 29 June 2022 respectively. As at 30 June
2020, 98,280,000 share options were granted for the plan (31 December 2019: 102,310,000).

The fair value of the Share Options was determined by the Binomial Options Pricing Model. For the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the relevant cost was RMB73,058 thousand arising from staff services.(For the 2019:
RMB205,425 thousand).
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Xll. Commitments and Contingencies
1. Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Contracted, but not provided for Capital commitments 4,526,426 4,276,122

(b) Investment commitments

The Group’s significant investment commitments for the subsequent years are as follows:

Total Investment Retained

investment amount as at investment

Investee/Project amounts 30 June 2020 amounts

Yunnan Huali expressway Investment Development Co., Ltd. 2,561,000 790,000 1,771,000
i |e|rongE><pressvvay InvestmentManagementCoLtd ................................... 1866951 742344 ........... 11 24607 .
AnhwProvmceYuehuangExpressway CoLtd ....................................................... 1121855 224000 897855 .
* China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment Development Co., Ltd. | 1275000 478824 796,176
ZhonguanXlanUrbanConstrucUonInvestmentCoLtd708040 ................. 3000705040
' Qingyang Zhongjianyuanaing Highway Construction Management Co., Lid. 763500 100000 663500
WuhanZhongJ|anwud|deve\opmentandConstruct|oncoLtd600300 .............. 1 50000 450300
Sanmenx|a Nat|ona| nghway 31OSouthward PrO]eCt Construct|on ............................... 1328670 900000 428670 .

Management Co., Ltd.

Zhongshan Cuiheng new area water conservancy investment and
Construction Co., Ltd.

In addition, the Group’s other investment commitments in the future were approximately RMB4.3 billion.
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XIl.

3.

Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Operating lease commitments

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases with its lessors falling due as
follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Within 1 year 785,250 585,259

Contingencies

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Contingent liabilities arising from

pending litigations or arbitrations ks e 6,069,121 Notes 1
Contingent liabilities arising from

the provision of guarantees DAL a0 73,144,373 Notes 2
Total 86,191,054 79,213,494

Notes 1: As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, pending litigations in which the Group was the defending
party are listed as follows:
30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Disputed value Disputed value
China Construction Third Engineering Bureau Co.,Ltd. 2,520,966 1,824,125

China Southwest Geotechnical Investigation&Design
Institute Co.,Ltd.

Note: The above pending litigations are mostly related with project quality, progress payment, etc. Please refer
to Note V, 39 for the progress of litigation matters at 30 June 2020 and the confirmed losses of judgment results,
and relevant liabilities are not recognized for the event that the potential obligations generated do not meet the
conditions for the recognition of provisions for other liabilities and charges.
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Xll. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

3. Contingencies (continued)

Notes 2: As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group’s external guarantees are listed as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Guarantee amount Guarantee amount

Mortgage guarantee provided to property owners (Note) 72,284,845 67,602,266

, 723,757 5, ,107

Note: The Group provides guarantees to property owners and property owners pledge the houses they
have bought when taking loans from banks. For the six months ended 30 June 2020 and for the year of
2019, there was no significant breach of contract from commodity house buyers and the Group considers
the risk associated with the guarantee obligation is immaterial.

XIll. Events after the balance sheet date

After the balance sheet date, the bonds issued by the subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:

Interest
Issuer Type of bond Value in issue Issuance date rate (%)
China Shipping Enterprise Development Group Co., Ltd. Housing rental special corporate bonds 2,000,000 August 13 2020 3.20

China Construction International Group Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 2020
1000000 .......... Ju|y272020 .............. G
1000000August172020 .............. e
500000 .......... July282020 .............. 149

XIV. Other important matters
1. Segment reporting

Operating segments

For management purpose, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and has five
reportable operating segments as follows:

(1) Building construction engineering;

(2) Infrastructure construction and investment;
(3) Real estate development and investment;
(4) Prospecting, design, etc.;

(5) Others.

Management monitors the results of its operating segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on the profit or loss of
reportable segment.

The intersegment transactions are transacted with reference to the prices used for transactions made to third
parties at then prevailing market prices.
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)
1. Segment reporting (continued)

Operating segments (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Building  Infrastructure
construction construction
engineering and investment

Revenue from external 464,365,337 144,408,601

For the six months ended 30 June 2019

Building  Infrastructure
construction construction

Real estate
development
and investment

108,624,505

Real estate
development
and investment

97,703,703

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Prospecting
and design

3,935,982

Others Unallocated
6,853,342 -

47

For the six months ended 30 June 2019

Prospecting
and design

5,040,661

Others Unallocated
7,914,285 -

=
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Elimination

Elimination

Total

728,187,767

652,192,456

Total
685,419,315

engineering  and investment
Sale fo external customers 434305976 140,454,690
Intersegment sales 10,925,000 32,923
Total 445230976 140,487,613
Cost of goods sold (422,606,818)  (128,201,775)
Credit impairment losses (789,785) (445,020)
Assets impairment (losses)/reversal (10,072) (1,691)
Depreciation and amortisation (2,464,372) (818,612)
Profit before income taxes 11,875,322 8,798,812
Less: Income tax expenses
Net profit
Total segment assets 479,381,589 403,874,406
Total segment liabilities 305,011,239 318,342,070
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)
1. Segment reporting (continued)

Other information

Information about products and services

Revenue from external customers

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Building construction engineering 464,365,337 434,305,976

728,187,767

Geographic information

Revenue from external customers

For the For the

six months ended six months ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

Mainland China 690,298,352 638,375,198
In other countries/geographical regions 37,889,415 47,044,117
Total 728,187,767 685,419,315

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Mainland China 258,835,942 260,947,653
In other countries/geographical regions 42,278,728 30,635,140
Total 301,114,670 291,582,793

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of the assets and excludes financial assets,
long-term equity investments and deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

The Group does not rely on one or several major customers.
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XIV. Other important matters (continued)
2. Leases

As lessee

Finance Leases: As at 30 June 2020, the unrecognized financing charge amounted to RMB21,074 thousand (2019:
RMB23,679 thousand), which was amortised using the effective interest method over each period of the lease term.
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases with its tenants lessors falling
due as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Within 1 year, inclusive 141,303 169,689
1to2yearS|ncIUS|ve .................................................................................................... 160,165 ........................ 152288
2t03yearS|ncIUS|ve ...................................................................................................... 34,926 .......................... e
Overayears ..................................................................................................................... 27,567 .......................... sainn”
e 363,961 ........................ 413992

As a lessee, the operating lease commitments refer to note XlI, 2 for details.

XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements

1. Accounts receivable

The aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Within 1 year 21,090,338 23,888,813

Provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020:

Opening balance Provision during Reversal during  Write-off during Other movement Closing balance

of the period the period the period the period during the period of the period
1,829,600 485,004 291,297 - (23,789) 1,999,518
2019
Opening
Balance at Changes in balance at Other Closing
the end of accounting the beginning Provision Reversal Transfer movement balance
prior year policies of the year ~ during the year ~ during the year  during the year  during the year of the year

1,683,960 585,495 2,169,455 595,711 891,982 52,441 8,857 1,829,600
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

1. Accounts receivable (continued)

Accounts receivable and impairment allowance are disclosed by category:

30 June 2020

Carrying amount Impairment allowance
Amount Ratio (%) Amount FACHECL r?:/i:;
Impairment allowance individually accrued 13,508,863 44.82 1,026,160 7.60
Impa|rmenta||owanceaocruedby585

credit risk portfolio

31 December 2019

Carrying amount Impairment allowance
Amount Ratio (%) Amount AR S r?:/i:;
Impairment allowance individually accrued 14,609,339 48.83 1,009,564 6.91
Impalrmentallowanceaccruedby .................................................................. 5117 .............. 820036536

credit risk portfolio

As at 30 June 2020, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Expected
credit loss
Amount Impairment ratio (%) Reasons
Company 1 2,034,171 447,517 22.00 Recovery possibility
Company 2 480,363 103,563 21.56 Recovery possibility
Company 3 333,140 6,663 2.00 Recovery possibility

Recovery possibility

As at 31 December 2019, impairment allowance of accounts receivable individually accrued is as follows:

Expected
credit loss
Amount Impairment ratio (%) Reasons
Company 1 2,004,490 440,988 22.00 Recovery possibility

Company2 ............................................................ 517409103677 .................. oon Recoveryp033|bll|ty .....
Com pany S 4954 w 4 ae o0 Fecon ery p033|bll|ty .....
o pany L 3786 o 22 pg cor Rocou ery p053|bll|ty .....
Company o 270299 .............. 210371 .................. e Recovery p053|bll|ty .....
Other10943072 .............. 227154 .................... Sos Recoverypossnbmty .....
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XV.

1. Accounts receivable (continued)

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

The accounts receivable with impairment allowance accrued by credit risk portfolio are as follows:

Portfolio 1
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Estimated Estimated

gross gross
carrying Expected Lifetime carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 4,786,106 2.00% 95,722 4,871,767 2.00% 97,435

Portfolio 2
30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Estimated Estimated

gross gross
carrying Expected Lifetime carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 820,070 6.00% 49,204 2,025,215 121,513

Portfolio 3

30 June 2020

31 December 2019

Estimated Estimated
gross gross
carrying Expected Lifetime carrying Expected Lifetime
amount at credit loss expected amount at credit loss expected
default ratio (%) credit loss default ratio (%) credit loss
Within 1 year 7,879,313 4.50% 354,568 6,345,230 285,535
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XV.

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

Accounts receivable (continued)

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, impairment allowance amounted to RMB485,004 thousand
(2019:RMB595,711 thousand), reversal or collection of impairment amounted to RMB291,297 thousand (2019:
RMB891,982 thousand).The major amount reversal or collection are as follows:

Amount of

Reason for reversal/ Basis for determining the reversal/ Way of
collection impairment allowance collection  collection

Company 1 Acqounts receivable of Individually accrued 27,316 Cash
project collected

Company 2 Accpunts receivable of Collectively accrued 15,899 Cash
project collected

Company 3 Acgounts receivable of Collectively accrued 14,792 Cash
project collected

Company 4 Acgounts receivable of Collectively accrued 13,625 Cash
project collected

Company 5 Acgounts receivable of Collectively accrued 12,735 Cash
project collected

others Acgounts receivable of InleldluaIIy and 206,930 Cash
project collected collectively accrued

Total 291,297

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the Company has no accounts receivable written-off (2019:RMB52,441
thousand).

As at 30 June 2020, the five largest accounts receivable according to customers are as follows:

Amount of % of total

impairment accounts

Amount allowance receivable

Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 4,951,704 550,133 16.43%

As at 31 December 2019, the five largest accounts receivable according to customers are as follows:

Amount of % of total

allowance for accounts

Amount impairment receivable

Total amount of the five largest accounts receivable 5,107,065 473,479 17.07%

Other receivables

30 June 2020 31 December 2019

Dividends receivables 5,671,406 1,173,991
Interest receivables 4,414 3,157
Others receivables 20,385,638 21,392,563
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XV.

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables

The aging analysis of other receivables is as follows:

30 June 2020
Within 1 years 22,245,822

31 December 2019
16,322,284

Natures of other receivables are as follows:
30 June 2020

31 December 2019

Receivables from related parties 18,611,926 20,073,488
o posn sandpettyc e 890,628 ..................... 1150454
B 5,671,406 ..................... 1173991
e 1,579,738 ..................... 1010403
U ONPRNUSYUSTNUUNUTOPRROOURNURROUSTNOOO .. ... 26,753,698 ................... 23408336
LessProv|s|onfor|mpa|rment ..................................................................................... ( 692,240) ...................... (838625)
Total ............................................................................................................................ 26,061,458 ................... 22569711
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
2. Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

Changes in impairment allowance recognised for the 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime expected credit
losses on other receivables are as follows:

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Stage 3

credit losses

Stage 1 Credit-impaired

12-month financial assets

expected (Lifetime expected)
credit losses credit losses) Total
Opening balance 35,688 802,937 838,625

Changes due to the opening balance
— Transfer to Stage 3 (200) 200 -
— Transfer to Stage 1 1,462 (1,462) -
Accrual 43,171 869 44,040
Reversal (27,252) (160,807) (188,059)
Write-off (370) - (370)
Other changes 41,893 (43,889) (1,996)
Closing balance 94,392 597,848 692,240
2019

Stage 3

credit losses

Stage 1 Credit-impaired

12-month financial assets

expected (Lifetime expected)
credit losses credit losses) Total

Opening balance , 788,881 881,472

The gross carrying amount of other receivables contributed to changes in the impairment allowance are as follows:
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Stage 3

credit losses

Stage 1 Credit-impaired

12-month financial assets

expected (Lifetime expected)
credit losses credit losses) Total

Opening balance 22,553,132 855,204 23,408,336
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XV.

Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

2019
Stage 3
credit losses
Stage 1 Credit-impaired
12-month financial assets
expected (Lifetime expected)
credit losses credit losses) Total
Opening balance 21,021,896 807,605 21,829,501

The amount of impairment allowance for the six months ended 30 June 2020 is RMB44,040 thousand (2019:
RMB1,036,552 thousand), reversal or collection of impairment amounted to RMB188,059 thousand (2019:
RMB71,183 thousand). The major amount reversal or collection are as follows:

Basis and rationality for Amount of

Reason for determining the provision for reversal/ Way of

reversal/collection impairment collection  collection
Company 1 Receivable collected Individually accrued 149,579 Cash
Company 2 Receivable collected Individually accrued 16,000 Cash
Company 3 Receivable collected Individually accrued 3,264 Cash
Company 4 Receivable collected Collectively accrued 1,247 Cash
Company 5 Receivable collected Collectively accrued 1,052 Cash
Others Receivable collected Indmduglly and 16,917 Cash

collectively accrued

Total 188,059

For the six months ended 30 June 2020, the written-off of other receivables amounted to RMB370 thousand (2019:
RMB1,010,461 thousand).



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
238 CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION ENGRG. CORP. LTD INTERIM REPORT 2020

XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
2. Other receivables (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

As at 30 June 2020, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Provision for

Closing % of total Relation to the impairment

balance balance Company Aging amount

Company 1 1,705,027 6.37 Due from Related parties Within 1 year -
Company21,702,051636 ...... DuefromReIatedpartles .............. W|th|n1year ....................... -
Company31,058,251396 ...... DuefromReIatedpartles .............. W|th|n1year ....................... -

Company 4 942,402 3.52 Due from Related parties R 11y_zayreaar:_cs‘ -
Company5772,226289 ...... DuefromReIatedpartles .............. W|th|n1year ....................... =
e 6,179,9572310 ............................................................................................................. -

As at 31 December 2019, other receivables from the five largest customers are as follows:

Provision for

Closing % of total Relation to the impairment

balance balance Company Aging amount

Company 1 3,417,687 14.60 Due from Related parties Within 1 year and -
1-5 years

3. Long-term equity investments

30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Subsidiaries 167,010,698 162,880,983
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Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)

Subsidiaries under direct control

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening Current period Closing Cash dividend

balance movement balance declared in the

of the period during the period of the period current period

China Overseas Holdings Limited 49,444,328 - 49,444,328 4,000,000
China Construction First Building (Group) 7,576,219 _ 7,576,219 1,238,830

Corporation Limited

China Construction Fangcheng Investment &

Development Co., Ltd. il - RELCEL -
Shenzhen China Overseas Investment 3,601,537 (3,300,000) 301,537 B

Management Co., Ltd.
Infrastructure Business of China State Construction 10,194,030 - 10,194,030 920
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. 4,724,554 - 4,724,554 162,064
China Construction America, Inc. 2,655,833 - 2,655,833 -
China State Construction Development Co., Ltd. 1,410,947 379,690 1,790,637 -
China Construction Liupanshui Infrastructure 800,000 B 800,000 _

Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering

(Group) Co., Lid., 2,641,967 - 2,641,967 91,280
China Construction (South Pacific) Development 520,630 _ 520,630 75,120
Co. Pte. Ltd.
China Construction Decoration Group Ltd. 548,375 - 548,375 53,380
China Construction Capital Holding Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 5,305,000 8,305,000 -
China State Railway Investment Construction 1,673,183 B 1,673,183 _
Group Co., Ltd.
Zhongjian Sllg Qonstruchon Investment 1,166,000 B 1,166,000 _
Company Limited
Zhongjian Changjiang Construction 886,096 B 886,096 _
Investment Co., Ltd.
China Construction North Investment Co., Ltd. 903,981 - 903,981 -
CSCEC Overseas Limited 400,000 - 400,000 -
Zhongjian Technology Limited 1,200,000 500,000 1,700,000 57,010
Others 13,395,797 7,680 13,403,477 327,490
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries under direct control (continued)

2019
Opening Current period Closing Cash dividend
balance movement balance declared in the
of the year  during the year of the year current year
China Overseas Holdings Limited 49,444,328 - 49,444,328 7,281,230
China Construction First Building (Group) 7576,219 B 7576.219 667,230

Corporation Limited

China Construction Fangcheng Investment &

Development Co., Ltd. 5851624 N 5.851,624 N
Shenzhen China Overseas Investment 3,601,537 B 3,601,537 B
Management Co., Ltd.
Infrastructure Business of China State Construction 3,855,956 6,338,074 10,194,030 -
China State Construction Finance Co., Ltd. 4,724,554 - 4,724,554 -
China Construction America, Inc. 2,655,833 - 2,655,833 -
China State Construction Development Co., Ltd. 1,400,947 10,000 1,410,947 18,000
China State Construction Shandong 1,000,000 (1,000,000) ~ B
Investment Co., Ltd.
China Construction Liupanshui Infrastructure 800,000 B 800,000 B

Investment and Development Co., Ltd.

CSCEC Xinjiang Construction & Engineering
(Group) Co., Ltd.

China Construction (South Pacific) Development
Co. Pte. Ltd.

China State Railway Investment Construction

Group Co., Ltd. 1,673,183 - 1,673,183 -
Zhongjian Sllg Qonstructlon Investment 833,000 333,000 1.166,000 B
Company Limited
Zhongjian Changjiang Construction 553,006 333,000 886,096 B
Investment Co., Ltd.
China Construction North Investment Co., Ltd 816,435 87,546 903,981 -
CSCEC Overseas Limited 400,000 - 400,000 -
Zhongjian Technology Limited - 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Others 10,161,447 3,234,350 13,395,797 129,588
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Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
Long-term equity investments (continued)

Subsidiaries under indirect control

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Opening Current period Closing Cash dividend

balance movement balance declared in the

of the period during the period of the period current period

China Construction transportation construction 1,279,000 B 1,279,000 49,270

Group Corp Ltd.

CSCES Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as China Construction 739,664 - 739,664 56,770
Steel Structure Corp. Ltd

Hangzhou China Construction Guobo Property

Investment Co., Ltd. CEE - e -
CSCEC Strait Construction and Development Co., Ltd. 300,000 - 300,000 543,504
China Construction Tunnel Construction Co., Ltd. 300,000 - 300,000 -
China Construction Electric Power

Construction Co., Ltd. UL - L -
China State Construction Foshan Transportation

Joint Investment Co., Ltd. L - A -
China Construction Overseas Development 100,000 B 100,000 _

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

China Construction Wuhan Construction

Investment Co., Ltd. 60,000 - 60,000 -
China Construction Bridge Co., Ltd. 300,000 - 300,000 -
Others 250,690 1,237,345 1,488,035 -
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(2) Subsidiaries under indirect control (continued)

2019
Opening Current period Closing Cash dividend
balance movement balance declared in the
of the year  during the year of the year current year
China Construction transportation construction 1,279,000 B 1.279.000 39,870
Group Corp Ltd.
West Construction 942,264 - 942,264 10,860
China Construction Installation Engineering Co., Ltd. 837,305 - 837,305 -
CSCES Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as China Construction 739,664 - 739,664 -
Steel Structure Corp. Ltd
Hangzhou China Construction Guobo Property 668,432 B 668,432 ~
Investment Co., Ltd.
Nanning China Construction Yongshen City
Construction Investment Co., Ltd. 356,700 (356,700) - h
CSCEC Strait Construction and 300,000 B 300,000 B

Development Co., Ltd.

China Construction Electric Power

Construction Co., Ltd. 230,000 N 230,000 B

China Construction Chongging Infrastructure 180,000 (180,000) B -
Investment Co., Ltd

Chmg State Construction Foshan Transportation 4800 B 4,800 15.800
Joint Investment Co, Ltd.

China Construction Overseas Development 100,000 B 100,000 ~

(Shanghai) Co, Ltd.

China Construction Wuhan Construction
Investment Co., Ltd.

China Construction Langiang Infrastructure
Investment and Development Co, Ltd.
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(3) Joint ventures
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Movement during the period

Investment Other
Opening Increase/  income/(losses)  comprehensive Closing
balance  (Decrease) in under income  Distribution of balance
of the period investment  equity method adjustment dividends Others  of the period
Joint ventures
Zhaotong CSCEC Construction Investment 504445 _ (3,587) _ _ _ 500,856
Development Co., Ltd.
China Railway Construction Capital Construction 500,023 _ _ _ _ _ 500,023
Investment Co., Ltd.
CSCEC Road & Bridge Group Co., Ltd. 409,465 - 6,756 - - - 416,221
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Shenzhen Rail Transit Co., Ltd 325,180 184,460 - - - - 509,640
Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development 320,063 _ 8 _ _ _ 320,146
Investment Co., Ltd.
CSCES Zhanuang Dadao Investment and 318,458 13222 (3342 _ _ 2644 330982
Construction Co., Ltd.
ASEC CIMENT SPA 289,048 - (293) - - (18,767) 269,988
Yinchuan Sheﬂyang Road Underground Pipeline 268,484 _ _ _ _ _ 268,484
Construction & Management Co.
China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment 235,092 225,692 _ _ _ _ 460,784
Development Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment 29205 _ _ _ _ _ 29205
Management Co., Lid.
Dalian Zhongjian Cavernous city construction and 227,360 _ (123) . _ _ 21297
Development Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Metro Line Three Investment 100,000 _ _ _ _ _ 100,000

Development Co. Ltd.
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(3) Joint ventures (continued)
2019

Movement during the year

Investment Other
Opening Increase/  income/(losses)  comprehensive Closing
balance  (Decrease) in under income  Distribution of balance
of the year investment  equity method adjustment dividends Others of the year
Zhaotong CSCEC Construction Investment 511431 ) (6.986) ) ) ) 504445
Development Co., Ltd.
China Railway Construction Capital Construction §75477 B 124,546 ) ) ) 500023
Investment Co., Ltd.
CSCEC Road & Bridge Group Co., Ltd. 330,703 - 28,952 345 - 49,465 409,465
Zhengzhou Zhongjian Shenzhen Rail Transit Co., Ltd. - 325,180 - - - - 325,180
Changsha CSCEC Chengtou Pipe Well Development 300218 19500 5 ) } } 320063
Investment Co., Ltd.
CSCES Zhamlang Dadao Investment and 16,000 31453 (12.08) . ) ) 318,458
Construction Co., Ltd.
ASEC CIMENT SPA 287,279 - (437) - - 2,206 289,048
Yinchuan Shenyang Road Underground Pipeline 268 484 B . . . ] 268 484
Construction & Management Co.
China Construction (Tianjin) Rail Transit Investment ) 235,092 ) ) . ) 235,092
Development Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Zhengxi Expressway Investment 229905 B ) ) ) ) 229905
Management Co., Ltd.
Dalian Zhongjian Cavernous city construction and 27019 B 2 ) . ) 2730
Development Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou Metro Line Three Investment
Development Co. Ltd. 100,000 ) ) ) ) ) 100,000
CSCEC-Dacheng Construction Ltd 97,042 - 2,163 - (5,000) - 94,205
Qinghai Zhengping Jiaxi Highway Construction Co., Ltd - 58,800 - - - - 58,800
Chongging Railway Line No. 9 Construction & 1600751 (1600751) B ) ) ) )

Operation Co. Ltd.

8
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(4) Associates
For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Movement during the period

Investment Other

Opening Increase/  income/(losses)  comprehensive Closing

balance  (Decrease) in under income  Distribution of balance

of the period investment  equity method adjustment dividends Others  of the period

CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment & 1,302,988 35725 (63:340) _ _ _ 1555373
Development Co, Ltd

Yunman Huali Expressway Investment & 790,000 _ _ _ _ _ 790,000
Development Co, Ltd

Xuzhou Metro Line One Investment & 465,000 B B _ _ B 465,000

Development Co., Ltd.
Sanmenxia National Highway 310 Southward Project 450,000 _ _ _ _ _ 450,000

Construction Management Co., Ltd

Shenshan Special Cooperation Zone Harbour City

Investment & Construction Co,, Ltd. 198754 B 7,445 . . . 27,188
Liyang Znongjian Sander Environmental 140,880 _ 1947 _ _ _ 102827

Management Co, Ltd.
Cangzhou Development Zone Beigi Industrial Park

Invesiment CenterLP) 75,301 (37,500) 815 (1,638) 36,978
Xinyu Ring Road Construction Investment Co, Ltd. 60,000 - - - - - 60,000
Taizhou Lugiao New Island Investment

Development Co., Ltd. 2 B LY ) ) . e
Shijiazhuang Transportation Investment Jinshi

Expressway Construction Management Co, Ltd. L L
Zhangzhou Zhanyuan Environmental 19,000 2500 _ _ _ _ 4750

Technology Co, Ltd.
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)
3. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(4) Associates (continued)
2019

Movement during the year

Investment Other

Opening Increase/  income/(losses)  comprehensive Closing

balance  (Decrease) in under income  Distribution of balance

of the year investment  equity method adjustment dividends Others of the year

CCCC Jijiao Expressway Investment & 1.248821 131,000 (76,833 . ) ) 1302988
Development Co, Ltd

Yunman Huali Expressway Investment & - 790,000 - - - - 790,000
Development Co, Ltd

Xuzhou Metro Line One Investment & 186,000 279,000 ) ) ) ) 465,000

Development Co., Ltd.
Sanmenxia National Highway 310 Southward Project 300,000 150000 B B B B 450,000

Construction Management Co., Ltd

Shenshan Special Cooperation Zone Harbour City

Investment & Construction Co., Ltd. 193,270 B 6484 ) ) ) 190,754
Liyang Znongjian Sander Environmental 2947 107,008 3,905 B B B 140,880
Management Co, Ltd.
Cangzhou Development Zone Beii Industrial Park 75 301 B 653 ) (6.5%) ) 75 301
Investment Center(LP)
Xinyu Ring Road Construction Investment Co, Ltd. 10,000 50,000 - - - - 60,000
Taizhou Lugiao New Island Investment
Development Co, Lid. 10,000 10,000 (273) - - - 19,727
Shijiazhuang Transportation Investment Jinshi
Expressway Construction Management Co, Lid. 19,600 ) ) ) ) ) 19,600
Zhangzhou Zhanyuan Environmental
Technology Co, Ltd. ) 19000 B ) ) ) 19000
Shjazhuang City Jiaojan Expressway Development 78400 B (78,400 ) . } )
Management Co., Ltd.
Others 384,148 2,561 (7,634) - (1,085) 8 378,028
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XV. Notes to the Company’s financial statements (continued)

4, Revenue and cost of sales

For the six months ended
30 June 2019

For the six months ended
30 June 2020

Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
Revenue from main operations 40,678,728 39,714,307 48,735,887 47,041,706
Revenuefromotheroperanns ........................................... 27,509 ................ 17,76118042 ................ 28010
Ao T AT Ao ACTNUUUUSRRROR 40,706,237 ......... 39,732,068 ......... 48753929 ......... 47069716
Revenue is as follows:
For the For the

six months ended
30 June 2019

six months ended
30 June 2020

Revenue from contracts with customers 40,687,338 48,737,776
Rentals 18,899 16,153
40,706,237 48,753,929

As at 30 June 2020, part of the Group’s project contracting business is still in the process of operation, and the
transaction price allocated to the unfulfilled or partially unfulfilled performance obligations is related to the progress
of the corresponding contract, and will be recognized as revenue according to the progress of performance in the
future performance period.

The breakdown of revenue generated by the contract with customers is as follows:

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020

For the
six months ended
30 June 2019

Timing of revenue recognition

Housing construction project 8,013,370 11,843,323
Infrastructure construction and investment 32,586,199 36,882,869
Others 77,883 11,276
Total 40,687,338 48,737,776

5. Investment income
For the For the

Investment income from disposal of long-term equity

six months ended
30 June 2020

six months ended
30 June 2019

investments under cost method 23,422,476 11,583,070
Investment loss from disposal of long-term equity

investments under equity method (71,348) (155,918)
Investment income from disposal of financial assets

measured at fair value through profit or loss - 23,570
Investment income from other equity instrument investment 4,004 54,321
Investment income from debt investment 240,910 270,905
Total 23,596,042 11,775,948
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the six months ended 30 June 2020 Expressed in thousands of RMB

1. Statement of non-recurring profit or loss

For the
six months ended
30 June 2020

Gains/(losses) from disposal of non-current assets 12,763

Government grants recognised through profit or loss (other than government grants
which are closely related to the Company’s normal business operations,
which comply with national policies and can be enjoyed continuously based on
a fixed amount or a fixed quantity)

In addition to the normal operation of the company’s effective hedging business,
Income/losses arising from changes in fair value and from disposal/redemption of
the financial assets held for trading, derivative financial assets, financial liabilities
held for trading, derivative financial liabilities and other debt investments

Reversal of the provision on receivables and contract assets for
impairment on an individual basis

Investment income from disposal of subsidiaries

The Group’s recognition of non-recurring profit or loss items shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions
of “Explanatory Notice of Corporate Information Disclosure of Public Securities Offering No. 1 — Non-recurring Profit
or Loss” (CSRC Announcement No. [2008]43).

2. Return on net assets and earnings per share

For the six months ended 30 June 2020

Weighted Earnings per share
average
return on
net assets (%) Basic Diluted
Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary 6.98 0.47 0.46

shareholders

Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary
shareholders after deducting non-recurring 6.53 0.43 0.43
profit or loss

For the six months ended 30 June 2019

Weighted Earnings per share
average
return on
net assets (%) Basic Diluted
Net profit attributable to the Company’s 752 0.45 0.45

ordinary shareholders

Net profit attributable to the Company’s ordinary
shareholders after deducting non-recurring 7.06 0.42 0.42
profit or loss
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